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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM and generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents
of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of China
Demeter Financial Investments Limited (“Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM (“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this annual report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

»
FE R HEEH
Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (‘“Directors”) of China
Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), it gives me great pleasure to

present to you the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

RESULTS PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately HK$141,903,000 (2021: HK$164,764,000) from
continuing operations. Loss attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$18,844,000 (2021: HK$20,558,000).
The net loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022 was mainly attributable to the impairment loss
on goodwill of approximately HK$5,168,000, and the general and
administrative expenses of approximately HK$121,686,000, which
were offset by loan interest income of approximately HK$2,713,000,
income from financial services business of approximately
HK$15,214,000, the fair value gain on financial assets through
profit or loss of approximately HK$3,341,000, income from food
and beverage business of approximately HK$117,564,000, income
from alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous business
of approximately HK$1,596,000, income from children education
business of approximately HK$4,500,000, and the government grant
of approximately HK$6,598,000 in respect of COVID-19-related
subsidies.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the year, the Group used its surplus liquidity to fund its money
lending business through its indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Loan interest income under this business segment amounted to
approximately HK$2,713,000 during the year (2021: HK$2,006,000).
During the year, interests of the loan receivables were charged at rates
ranging from 9% to 18% per annum.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the year, revenue of financial service business amounted to
approximately HK$15,214,000 (2021: HK$12,777,000).

The Group has investments in securities of listed and non-listed
companies, debt securities and funds in order to diversify its
investment portfolios and increase returns to shareholders. During
the year, the Group recorded a gain in fair value of financial assets
through profit or loss of approximately HK$3,341,000. The Board
will continue to closely monitor the performance of securities and
investments to mitigate possible financial risks.

During the year, the Group had disposed of the food and beverage
business in Singapore. The Group planned to focus its resources
in Hong Kong. The turnover of the food and beverage business
for the year amounted to approximately HK$117,564,000 (2021:
HK$144,067,000).

The turnover of the alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous
business for the year amounted to approximately HK$1,596,000 (2021:
HK$1,264,000). The Group will monitor the performance of the
business to assess the future development.

The turnover of the children education business for the year amounted
to approximately HK$4,500,000 (2021: HK$4,448,000). In 2022,
face-to-face classes has been resumed. The Group is looking for new
opportunities and seeking for future development.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

A ()

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The past year has presented significant challenges for businesses
in Hong Kong, with strict social distancing measures and staff
infections leading to temporary and permanent closures for many
shops and services. In response, we have undertaken consolidation and
internal operations enhancement to prepare for the eventual lifting of
lockdowns and the capture of opportunities.

We have implemented several initiatives throughout the year aimed
at improving customer satisfaction, food quality, and operational
efficiency. These initiatives include upgrading our customer
relationship member systems, launching new products and attractive
offers, and enriching our social media content to boost brand
awareness.

Despite ongoing economic uncertainties, such as US-China tensions
and interest rate hikes, we remain cautious about the loan-to-value
ratio of collaterals and the quality of margin finance clients to limit
exposure for our margin financing and money lending businesses.
We will carefully monitor the economic landscape and adjust our
strategies as needed to ensure growth and profitability.

We would like to express our heartfelt appreciation to all investors,
suppliers, customers, and business partners for their continued support
and trust in 2023. We recognize that our success is built on strong
relationships with each of you, and we remain committed to delivering
value to all stakeholders. We extend sincere gratitude to our fellow
directors, the management team, and staff for their unwavering
dedication to the Group’s success. Together, we will continue to
navigate challenges and capitalize on opportunities to achieve
sustained growth and profitability.

Ng Man Chun Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (“Company”
and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) recorded a net
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$18,844,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“Year”) (31
December 2021: HK$20,558,000). This was mainly attributable to
the impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$5,168,000,
and the general and administrative expenses of approximately
HK$121,686,000, which were offset by loan interest income of
approximately HK$2,713,000, income from financial services
business of approximately HK$15,214,000, the fair value gain on
financial assets through profit or loss of approximately HK$3,341,000,
income from food and beverage business of approximately
HK$117,564,000, income from alcoholic beverage distribution and
miscellaneous business of approximately HK$1,596,000, income from
children education business of approximately HK$4,500,000, and
the government grant of approximately HK$6,598,000 in respect of
COVID-19-related subsidies.

Revenue from continuing operations for the Year decreased by
approximately 13.9% to approximately HK$141,903,000 (31
December 2021: HK$164,764,000), while gross profit for the
Year was approximately HK$95,803,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$109,994,000). Revenue from continuing operations for the
Year comprised of loan interest income amounting to approximately
HK$2,713,000 (31 December 2021: HK$2,006,000), provision of
financial services amounting to approximately HK$15,214,000 (31
December 2021: HK$12,777,000), dividend income from listed
equity investments amounting to approximately HK$316,000
(31 December 2021: HK$202,000), food and beverage business
amounting to approximately HK$117,564,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$144,067,000), alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous
business amounting to approximately HK$1,596,000 (31 December
2021: HK$1,264,000), and provision of children education services
amounting to approximately HK$4,500,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$4,448,000).

o B W B o

S 5 B 3 5 1ol

R SRR ERRAR(TARAW] > &
[vi] B g 2 m) A R (A S 1 ) A A & —
FE_HE+TFA=Z+—HILEE (T4
W 1) Bk AF AN B HEA N AL B 1E R B A
s 118,844,0000C (—F ~—4+ " H=
+—H : #%20,558,00000) > EEH R
PR 28 ol (L M 48 40 5 165,168,000 70 A Je —
W S AT L BH 3245 %5 121,686,000 > HfE
BB R IS A A # %52,713,0000T ~ 4
il IR 5 SE S WA 49 5 % 15,214,000 0T
FE 0N SUAEE R AR 25 2 4 B ik 25 4 s
3,341,000 ~ 2 B & & KX ACRSEFS 1Y)
WA )i ¥ 117,564,0000C ~ TR R4
B B TE SE S U A 7 151,596,000 7T
GLEE HOR IRB U A £ i 5 4,500,0000C
T 7Y e R 9 2 AR B 1 IBURE 4l B 40 v
6,598,000 7C T K&

N RERFESEEBIRABDH
13.9% % 1% 141,903,00000 (& ——
F+—H=1+—H : #%164,764,000
J6) > TAR 2R B RS 2 E A
%9 5 5 595,803,000 (—F —— 4+
HA=+—H : #%109,994,0007C) ° £
K R A AR T 2 A B BRI B
WA & %62,713,00000 (& —— 4
A=+—H : #%2,006,0007C) * #£14t4
Pl IR 5 4 9 95 15,214,00000 (& ——4F
+ZH=+—H : #%¥12,777,0007C)
A RERE KAL) 316,000
T ZE_—F+ A =1+—H : ¥
202,00070) ~ B &b K BB EH A K
117,564,0007C (= F _—4F+ = =+
—H : #%%144,067,0007C) * E R TR
381 SR TE SE T 4 5 15 1,596,0000T (%
T+ H=+—H : #%1,264,000
J6) M ARt 5 3 2E RS 4095 74,500,000
B —E_—F+_A=+—H : B%
4,448,0007T) °

B AT
ErEL I



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

General and administrative expenses from continuing operations
for the Year decreased to approximately HK$121,686,000 (31
December 2021: HK$124,991,000). Such decrease was mainly due
to the decrease in salaries and other benefits in the food and beverage
business.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The Group commenced its money lending business since December
2013 through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, each of which has
obtained a money lenders licence under the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Since then, the Group
has put efforts and resources to develop this business and provides
diversified money lending services to match the needs of people with
different backgrounds.

The licensing of money lenders and regulation of money-lending
transactions are governed by the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong), in which a person or company
carrying on business as a money lender in Hong Kong must obtain
a money lender licence. The market of money lending business by
licensed money lenders in Hong Kong is keen and competitive.
Based on the list of existing money lenders licensees as maintained
by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong, there were more than
2,410 licensed money lenders (including applications for renewal in
progress) in Hong Kong as at 31 December 2022.

The subsidiaries of the Group which carried on the money lending
business compete with other licensed money lenders, authorised
institutions such as banks, restricted licensed banks and deposit-
taking companies in providing money lending services. However,
licensed money lenders, such as the Group’s subsidiaries, may offer
an advantage in providing loans with simpler approval procedures and
greater flexibility.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group’s money lending business offers both secured and
unsecured loans to customers comprising individuals and corporations.
The scope of money lending services provided by the money lending
business generally includes personal loans, business loans and
mortgage loans. Within a loan category, the interest rates, the duration
of the loan and repayment terms of the loan vary. The money lending
business generates revenue and profit by way of providing loans to
earn interest income. The source of funding for this business segment
is from the internal resources of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group mainly provided
term loans to individuals and companies where interests are payable
by tailor-made schedule at fixed interest rate. The Group’s money
lending business do not usually grant loans to connected persons
of the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
has extended the grant of a loan to a former executive Director of an
principal amount of approximately HK$786,000 at an interest rate
of 9% per annum for a term of six months. The loan was fully repaid
during the Year. The Directors are of the view that the terms of such
loan are on normal commercial terms or better as compared with loans
provided to independent third parties by the Group’s money lending
business. Such loan constituted a fully-exempt connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report — Connected Transactions” and
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

The Group has complied with requirements, to the extent applicable,
set out in Chapter 14 and (where applicable) 14A of the Listing Rules
when it granted the loans to each of the customers under the Group’s
money lending business segment, whose loans was still outstanding as
at 31 December 2022.

The Company did not have any agreement, arrangement,
understanding or undertaking (whether formal or informal and whether
express or implied) with a connected person with respect to the grant
of loans under Group’s money lending business segment, whose loans
was still outstanding as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of the loans and
interest receivable in this segment was approximately HK$14.2
million, the personal loans represented approximately 100% of the
value of the Group’s total active and outstanding loan portfolio, each
of the customers is an independent third party. The majority of loans
are short-term loans repayable within a year. As at 31 December 2022,
approximately 100% of the outstanding loan balance were repayable
within one year.

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rate of the active and
outstanding loans in the loan portfolio of the Group’s money lending
business ranged from approximately 10% to 18% per annum. Most
of the loans granted by the money lending business of the Group
are unsecured loans. To justify the higher credit risk, the Group
typically charges a higher interest rate. Unsecured loans represented
approximately 83.3% in total number of loans, and approximately
88.8% in total value of the Group’s total active and outstanding loan
portfolio with effective interest rate ranged from approximately 12%
to 18% per annum as at 31 December 2022. Most of such unsecured
loans were advanced to well-heeled and reputable individuals and are
short-term in nature and therefore, the Group has not requested for
additional personal guarantees in respect of such loans.

Given that the majority of the loans granted by the Group’s money
lending business are short-term loans provided to our customers who,
as mentioned above, were well-heeled and reputable individuals and
well-established companies who/which look for funding for short-term
personal/business needs, such borrowers are not prepared to arrange
for the collateral security. On the other hand, the creation and release
of collaterals for short-term loans will also create administrative
burden to the Group and may at the same time lower the profit margin
of the Group’s money lending business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In order to enhance the recoverability of the loans, the Group may also
requests personal/corporate guarantees as security in specific cases.
In determining whether a personal/corporate guarantee is required,
the Group will consider, on a case by case basis, the reason for the
borrowing, the credit history of the borrower with the Group, the
borrower’s financial background and the Group’s credit exposure for
the loan. As at 31 December 2022, loan which is backed by mortgage
in respect of a property represented approximately 16.7% in total
number of loans, and approximately 11.2% in value of our Group’s
total active and outstanding loan portfolio with effective increase rate
at 10% per annum.

The Group’s money lending business does not generally target the
general public. In order to differentiate itself from other licensed
money lenders in the market, the Group would lend personal loans to
well-heeled and reputable customers, and their occupations vary from
executives, businessmen to professionals. In regards to business loans,
the Group targets well-established companies with business operations
in Hong Kong and/or the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, all of the customers in the
Group’s money lending business are either Hong Kong or PRC
residents or companies with business operations in Hong Kong and/
or the PRC. The Group has 1 to 5 years of relationship with the
customers and these customers were approached by the Group through
different channels which include, without limitation, referrals from
existing customers and also from the directors and/or employees of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

As at 31 December 2022, the largest customer of the Group’s money
lending business with principal amount of the loans and interest
receivables was approximately HK$3.9 million, accounted for
27.8% of the loans and interest receivables of the Group, and the
five largest customers with in aggregate amount of the loans and
interest receivables was approximately HK$14.2 million, accounted
for 100% of the loans and interest receivables of the Group’s money
lending business as at 31 December 2022. The five largest customers
comprised of 5 individuals, all of which were third parties independent
with the Company and its connected persons. During the year, the
credit period of the loans granted to the major customers ranged from
6 months to 1 year, which was negotiated on an arm’s length basis
with reference to the commercial practice and the Group’s credit
policy. The management of the Company will closely monitor the
loan portfolio, in particular the loans to major customers, periodically
and will continue to adopt risk control and management strategies
while broadening the customer base. As far as the Directors are aware,
neither the Directors, their close associates nor any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the five
largest customers of the money lending business during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Impairment loss on loans and interest receivables

The Group’s impairment losses mainly relate to 12-month expected
credit loss (“12m ECL”) allowance for loans and interest receivables.
Generally speaking, the 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. ECL assessment is done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions. The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognise lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group recorded an impairment loss on loans and interest receivables
of approximately HK$2 million as compared to approximately HK$0.4
million for the corresponding period in 2021. The significant increase
in impairment loss on loans and interest receivables is principally due
to an increase in loans receivables which have past due during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The impairment loss of approximately HK$2 million for the year
mainly derived from unsecured loans, involving three individuals,
with principal amount of HK$1.8 million, HK$3 million and HK$3
million respectively. The tenure of the abovesaid unsecured loans is
12 months and the effective interest rate is 14%, 18%, and 15% per
annum respectively. Such impairment loss amounted to approximately
HK$2 million which represented approximately 11.9% of gross
loans and interest receivables of the money lending business as at 31
December 2022. The Group will continue to adhere to the established
internal control measures of the money lending business to monitor
the timely repayment, control credit risks and enhance recoverability
of the customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since

initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring

on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk

of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of

initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers

both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and

supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort. In particular,

the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

16

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Subsequent events

For the loans granted to the customers, further information are set out

as follows:
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Loan amount of HK$1.8 million — subsequent to 31 December
2022, such loan has not been renewed and has matured and not
been repaid in full as at the date of this report. As at the date of
this report, the Group has received repayment of principal of
approximately HK$664,000, and payment of interest and default
interest of approximately HK$436,000. The Group has initiated
its debt recovery procedures to recover the late payment/default
in payment of the customer and (a) demand letters have been
sent by the Group; (b) the Group has engaged a law firm on the
matter and demand letters have been sent by the law firm; and
(c) the Group has initiated legal action against the borrower in
which the statement of claim and writ of summons were filed.
The Group recorded an impairment loss on loans and interest
receivables of approximately HK$0.8 million for such loan in
2022.

Loan amount of HK$3 million — subsequent to 31 December
2022, such loan has not been renewed and has matured and not
been repaid in full as at the date of this report. As at the date of
this report, the Group has received repayment of principal of
approximately HK$386,000, and payment of interest and default
interest of approximately HK$734,000. The Group has initiated
its debt recovery procedures to recover the late payment/default
in payment of the customer and (a) demand letters have been
sent by the Group; (b) the Group has engaged a law firm on the
matter and demand letters have been sent by the law firm; and
(c) taking into account the then-recent circumstances in relation
to the customer’s financial situation as noted by the Group, the
Group has initiated legal action against the customer in which
a final judgment from the District Court was received and the
borrower to pay the outstanding principal and interest and the
legal cost. In early March 2023, the Group has consent to the
borrower to repay the outstanding principal and interest within
6 months by negotiation. The Group recorded an impairment
loss on loans and interest receivables of approximately HK$1.1
million for such loan in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

(3) Loan amount of HK$3 million — subsequent to 31 December
2022, such loan has not been renewed and has matured and not
been repaid in full as at the date of this report. As at the date of
this report, the Group has received repayment of principal of
approximately HK$36,000, and payment of interest and default
interest of approximately HK$514,000. The Group has initiated
its debt recovery procedures to recover the late payment/default
in payment of the customer and demand letters have been sent by
the Group. The Group will consider further legal action against
the customer depending on the actual circumstances. The Group
recorded an impairment loss on loans and interest receivables of
approximately HK$0.07 million for such loan in 2022.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 365 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise. Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

For further details of the accounting policies regarding the impairment
of financial assets (including loans and interest receivables) and the
financial risk management policies in respect of loans and interest
receivables, please refer to note 3 and note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Internal Control and Loan Approval Process

The Group has established standardised and central management credit
policy for the loan approval procedures.

The Board has set up a credit committee (“Credit Committee”)
and adopted a credit policy for the credit approval procedures. The
Credit Committee has full authority to deal with all credit matters.
The members of the Credit Committee are appointed by the Board
and the quorum of the Credit Committee is at least two committee
members. The primary duties of the Credit Committee are, among
other things, to approve and oversee the credit policy of the Group’s
money lending business and to monitor our loan portfolio. The credit
policy of the Group’s money lending business is subject to the review
and amendments by the Credit Committee and the Board from time to
time in line with changes in the market environment. Given the fast-
changing environment, the Board and the Credit Committee endeavour
to review the credit policy at least once a year.

As at 31 December 2022, the members of the Credit Committee
comprise of two members, one of which an executive Director,
the chief executive officer of the Company and a director of the
subsidiaries engaged in the Group’s money lending business segment;
and one of which the finance manager of the Company who has
over ten years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management.

The Group would apply various factors to assess the potential
customers, which may differ from case to case as the circumstances
arise given the different backgrounds of the potential customers and
the nature of the proposed loans.

When loan applications are received by the Group, the Credit
Committee members will be responsible for verifying and processing
loan application documents. Such process mainly involves credit
assessment procedures to assess the repayment ability of the customer.
The Group has set out strict credit assessment procedures to verify
the creditworthiness of the customers. Since each loan is different and
unique, the Group does not have any specific quantitative conditions
or criteria imposed for approving each loan. Approvals on application
for loans are decided on a case-by-case basis. Credit Committee
members are the main contact point with customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

The following is a summary of the general guidelines of assessing the

loan applications by the Credit Committee:
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Identity proof — such as identity card and passport (for
individuals) and business registration certificate, certificate of
incorporation and the constitutional documents (for corporate
entities) must be verified;

Address proof — such as utility bills, bank/credit card statements
or formal correspondence issued by a government or statutory
body is required to be produced;

Repayment ability assessment — to assess and justify the
repayment ability of the customer, criteria such as availability of
guarantor, the background of the customer, and where applicable,
the past payment record and any other relevant information are
to be considered. The Credit Committee may request further
information from the customer including but not limited to the
followings: tax demand note, tax return, bank book record,
bank statement, payroll slip, MPF statement, employer’s letter,
employment contract, rental income receipt, tenancy agreement,
financial statements, and auditor’s report etc.; and

Legal search — a legal search will be conducted on the customers
(and as the case may be, the guarantors) to ascertain if the
potential borrowers have any prior legal cases in the past, which
may cast doubt on credit worthiness and repayment ability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

For individual customers

In general, in evaluating loan applications from potential individual
customers more emphasis would be placed in considering (1) income
proof of the potential customer; (2) asset proof of the potential
customer; and (3) whether the potential customer was able/willing
to provide personal guarantee/security. The income and asset proofs
are to assess the recoverability of proposed loans, and there is no
minimum amount per se as it would depend on the amount and term
of the proposed loan. Depending on the circumstance, a credit report
will be obtained from the potential customers to assess recoverability
and also the terms of the proposed loans (in particular, the interest
rate to be fixed). If the potential customer was able/willing to
provide a personal guarantee, the identity and background of the
proposed guarantor would also be required to be considered. The
Credit Committee will consider, among other things, the above three
factors and that the Credit Committee would have to be satisfied
with at least one of the three factors as mentioned above before any
potential loan applications were to be considered. The Group has not
set any restrictions on a particular age group or particular occupation,
but prime consideration will be given to those who are business
executives, businessmen or professionals.

For corporate customers

In general, in evaluating loan applications from potential corporate
customers more emphasis would be placed in considering (1) revenue
stream and track record period of the potential customer; (2) asset
proof of the potential customer; and (3) whether the potential customer
was able/willing to provide personal guarantee/collateral security. The
income and asset proofs are to assess the recoverability of proposed
loans, and there is no minimum amount per se as it would depend on
the amount and term of the proposed loan. If the potential customer
was able/willing to provide a personal guarantee, the identity and
background (including credit report) of the proposed guarantor would
also be required to be considered. The Credit Committee will consider,
among other things, the above three factors and that the Credit
Committee would have to be satisfied with at least one of the three
factors as mentioned above before any potential loan applications were
to be considered. The Group has not set any restrictions on a particular
industry or place of principal business operation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

As with the credit assessment of borrowers, guarantors who provide
personal/corporate guarantee in favour of a loan are also required
to meet the same basic eligibility and approval criteria, and will be
required to go through the same verification and approval procedures.

The Credit Committee members will also be responsible for
determining the interest rates charged to the customers, having taken
into consideration factors such as the credit risks of the customers,
their recoverability and the prevalent market interest rates. Typically,
higher interest rates will be charged for unsecured loans to justify the
higher credit risk.

After credit assessment and review of the loan applications by the
Credit Committee, loan documents will be prepared and the loans will
be recommended to the directors of the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company which operates the money lending business for final
approval.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

If the applicable percentage ratios as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules in respect of the making of the loan under the loan application
would constitute a discloseable transaction of the Company pursuant
to Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the loan application will be
forwarded to the Board and a meeting of the Board will be held to
consider and approve the loan application. It is the Group’s policy not
to make any advance to a borrower if such a proposed loan transaction
will constitute a major transaction or above under the GEM Listing
Rules.

Apart from the loan approval procedures, the Group has also
established internal control measures to control its credit risk and
manage its credit operations, which includes regular analysing and
reviewing of the Group’s loan portfolio and compliance matters and
carrying out monitoring of loans after drawdown in a regular manner
by updating the status of the borrowers. In addition, the Group usually
required customers to provide signed and post-dated bank cheques
with payments in accordance with tailor made repayment schedules.
The Group has also implemented debt recovery procedures to provide
an orderly and established system for monitoring and recovering any
late payment or default in payment of the customers. Such internal
control measures are adopted to facilitate the secure operation of the
Group’s money lending business and compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

With the visibility on the economic outlook remained unclear, the
Group has taken a cautious approach to strengthen the overall credit
risk management and control mechanism in its money lending
business. The Group refined the loan approval procedures and was
prudent on the assessment of the existing and potential clients. The
Group will monitor the market situation closely and adjust the interest
rate and loan-to-value ratio timely, in order to optimise the balance
between risk and capital. During the Year, the Group used its liquidity
to fund the money lending business, loan interest income from this
business segment amounted to approximately HK$2,713,000 during
the Year (31 December 2021: HK$2,006,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)
FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

The financial services business of the Group is carried on by China
Demeter Securities Limited (“CDSL”), which became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company in June 2017. CDSL is a securities
brokerage firm incorporated in Hong Kong in 2010 and a licensed
corporation to carry on Type 1 (Dealing in Securities), Type 4
(Advising on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”).

The financial services business of the Group principally refers to
the acting as an intermediary between buyers and sellers of listed
securities in Hong Kong. The sources of income of CDSL include
(i) commission from brokerage services; (ii) interest income from
margin financing customers; (iii) management fee and performance
fee from providing asset management services to customers; and
(iv) underwriting or placing commission income from acting as an
underwriter or placing agent of the listed issuers or brokers. Through
CDSL, which is an Exchange Participant and a direct clearing
participant of HKSCC, the Group offers securities dealing and
brokerage services to its customers for investing securities listed on the
Stock Exchange, including stocks, derivatives and debt instruments.

Brokerage commission is derived from providing a trading system for
customers to trade securities via the trading platform established by
the Stock Exchange.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Asset management services are targeted at investors who wish to gain
in assets but have insufficient time to manage their investments and
insufficient capital to engage the services provided by investment
banks. By leveraging on the experiences of the asset management
team, it could help to achieve the investment objective of the
customers. The Group could also generate revenue from the asset
management business by receiving monthly management fee and
performance-based incentive income.

The margin financing business mainly targets active trading customers
with substantial amount of assets (principally comprised of listed
securities) who intend to utilise the value of such assets without losing
the title thereto to increase its investment portfolio.

CDSL also provides placing and underwriting services by acting
as underwriter, sub-underwriter, placing agent or sub-placing agent
in fundraising activities conducted by issuers in both initial public
offerings and secondary fundraising. In return, CDSL is able to
receive commission from the listed companies and the customers with
accounts in CDSL.

CDSL has a wide range of client base, including Hong Kong, PRC
and overseas retail and corporate clients. The monetary resources
are mainly from share capital and the revenue generated from CDSL
itself, but as well as from the parent company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group mainly provided
margin financing to individuals and companies where interests are
payable by tailor-made schedule at fixed interest rate. For the year
ended 31 December 2022 the Group have granted margin loans to the
connected persons of the Company. Please refer to the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report — Connected Transactions” and note
41 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of the trade receivable
in relation to the margin financing was approximately HK$78 million,
the personal clients represented approximately 34% and business
client represented approximately 66% of the value of the Group’s total
active and outstanding margin financing portfolio.

At 31 December 2022, trade receivable from margin clients are
secured by clients’ securities pledged as collateral with market value
of approximately HK$467.2 million (2021: HK$482.2 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rate of the active and
outstanding loans to the margin client of the Group’s financial services
business ranged from approximately 8% to 13.6% per annum. The
margin loans are repayable on demand and bear variable interest at
commercial rates. Margin clients are required to pledge securities
collateral to the Group in order to obtain the margin facilities for
securities trading.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the largest customers of the Group’s margin
financing business with amount of the loan to margin clients was
approximately $11.9 million, accounted for 15% of the loan to margin
clients of the Group, and the five largest customers with in aggregate
principal amount of the loans to margin clients was approximately
$49.7 million, accounted for 64% of loan to margin clients of the
Group. The five largest customers were related to the Group’s margin
financing business and comprised of 4 corporations and 1 individual,
all of which were third parties independent with the Company and
its connected persons. The management of the Company will closely
monitor the margin financing portfolio, in particular the loans to major
margin clients, periodically and will continue to adopt risk control and
management strategies while broadening the customer base. As far as
the Directors are aware, neither the Directors, their close associates
nor any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in the five largest customers of the margin financing
business during the year.

Impairment loss on loans to margin clients

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss
(“ECL”) model on trade receivables which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings should tailor to
reporting entity’s specific facts and circumstances.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

ECL assessment is done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions. The Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognise
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition. For the year ended
31 December 2022 and 2021, no impairment loss was recognised on
loans to margin clients.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. In particular,
the following information is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 365 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise. Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

For further details of the accounting policies regarding the impairment
of financial assets (including trade receivables from margin client)
and the financial risk management policies in respect of trade
receivables from margin client, please refer to note 3 and note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

During the Year, the Group used its liquidity to fund the financial
service business, interest income from this business segment amounted
to approximately HK$8,957,000 during the Year (31 December 2021:
HK$7,640,000).

Management has assessed the market values of the pledged securities
of each individual client who has margin shortfall at the end of each
reporting period. Based on the assessment, the loss given default is
low in view of the estimated realised amount of ultimate disposal of
the collateral and the management considers the ECL for receivables
from margin clients is insignificant and therefore no impairment
allowance was recognised.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

Internal Control

)

30

Credit risk assessment of customers

The Group is highly concerned with the credit risk associated
with customers when conducting margin financing activities.
Before granting credit limit to customers, any relevant
documents showing their financial capacity such as tax return,
salary advice, bank statement, bankruptcy report, civil litigation
search, other assets proof as approved by the responsible officer
(“RO”) of CDSL are required to be taken into consideration.
Besides, CDSL also considers the clients’ historical status of
margin calls, bounced cheques and their stock positions.

Stress test report is issued and provided to the ROs for reviewing
and monitoring every month or in the case of adverse market.
The stress test is to evaluate the level of the excess liquid capital
against the effect of the stressors and suggest ROs to take the
required follow-up actions such as decreasing margin ratio of
the relevant collaterals and reducing the outstanding margin
loan limit of the relevant margin customers. In addition, a loan
limit report (includes margin loan limit and marginable value for
relevant margin customers), margin list (includes margin ratios
for particular stocks), products and also client’s margin loan
concentration risk report are updated regularly and provided to
the directors of CDSL for ongoing monitoring the level of credit
risks associated with margin clients and considering any possible
follow-up actions to be taken.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o B B o B (7))

(ii) Mechanism in determining loan terms

The margin loan terms shall be determined and may be
adjusted from time to time based on the amount of margin loan
requested by the customers, their profile, track record such as
civil litigation search and bankruptcy report, quantity and most
importantly the marginable values of collateral provided, the
variety of the collaterals provided. Furthermore, when a margin
client is the sole director of a company, an agreement in relation
to the personal continuing guarantee unlimited shall be duly
completed and signed in order to apply for margin loan.

(iii) Approval process

Customers must submit an application form and relevant
documents as financial proof for margin loan limit approval.
Apart from reviewing the fundamental client information stated
in the application form and the financial proof, the directors
and ROs of CDSL shall consider the customer’s bankruptcy
reports as well as civil litigation searches and also the values of
collaterals provided by that customers. If the directors and ROs
believe that the clients have assets with adequate marginable
value or have good track records, the application for margin loan
limit shall be approved.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

(iv) Monitoring loan repayment and recovery

)

32

The ROs monitor the outstanding borrowing of each client
during the trading time. A margin call will be made to clients
when the outstanding loan is bigger than the total marginable
value of the client’s collaterals. In the margin call, the licensed
persons of the Company and ROs are required to specify
the deadline to restore the margin level or the conditions to
implement forced liquidation. Margin call letter with such details
shall be issued every day until the margin level is restored.

The licensed persons and ROs are required to make daily margin
call and suggest follow-up actions upon the client’s response
in the daily margin call report every day for the next 30 days
(“Grace Period”) until the margin level is restored.

Taking actions on outstanding margin loans

If the margin level cannot be restored within the Grace Period,
the forced liquidation shall be triggered accordingly. On the first
day after the Grace Period, application of forced liquidation shall
be submitted immediately and approved by any two of ROs.
However, Grace Period can be extended with specified period by
any two of ROs with a valid reason.

Apart from that, when the outstanding margin loan is bigger
than 90% of the total market value of the collaterals as reviewed
by client’s margin loan concentration risk report, the forced
liquidation shall also be triggered.

For the procedure of forced liquidation, CDSL shall start selling
at the best price of the collateral with the largest market value
in client’s portfolio on the market before market close until the
margin level is restored once the approvals for forced liquidation
is sought.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Given structural inflation pressures around the world, the ongoing
global regime shift toward higher interest rates and less liquidity will
drive transformations of business investment and the allocation of
resources. This is expected to bring challenges to the interest income
from margin financing services and the commission from brokerage
services. Nonetheless, CDSL has upgraded its securities service
mobile application to enhance the user experience and add more
comprehensive functions during the Year. This upgrade enables CDSL
to better serve its retail customers and improve its competitiveness
in the financial services segment. CDSL is also promoting its brand
through various marketing channels, such as online social platforms
and charity events, to increase brand awareness and build stronger
customer relationship.

SECURITIES INVESTMENT BUSINESS

The Group’s diversified securities investment portfolios cover both
listed and non-listed companies and debt securities, in order to
diversify its investment portfolios and increase returns to shareholders.
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held by the
Group were all shares of listed companies in Hong Kong. The fair
value change of the debt securities were recognised in debt instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

During the Year, the Group recorded gain from the changes in fair
value of financial assets through profit or loss of approximately
HK$3,341,000 (31 December 2021: HK$8,567,000), no changes
in fair value of equity instruments through other comprehensive
income (31 December 2021: HK$Nil), no changes in fair value of
debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
(31 December 2021: loss of approximately HK$609,000, which was
comprised of the reclassification of accumulated fair value loss of
debt instruments through other comprehensive income to profit or
loss of approximately HK$763,000 and prior year fair value loss of
approximately HK$154,000.)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

The Directors consider that an investment in the equity securities and
the debt securities with a carrying value of 5% or more of the net asset
value of the Group as at balance sheet date as significant investments
(“Significant Investments”). As at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2022, the Group did not hold any Significant Investments.

The Group will continue to review the portfolio in order to decide
whether to invest, enjoy the capital gains or stable cash inflow from
dividends and coupon payments.

FOOD AND BEVERAGE BUSINESS

During the Year, food and beverage business is one of the Group’s
principal business through operating of restaurants serving Japanese
cuisine, Thai food and western food in Hong Kong. During the
Year, the revenue from food and beverage business amounted to
approximately HK$117,564,000 (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$144,067,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a total of 11 restaurants in
Hong Kong (2021: 12 restaurants). The Group is committed to offering
customers high-quality ingredients from the origin of the country at
an affordable price under its food and beverage business. The Group
has developed different brands in its brand portfolio to capture a broad
spectrum of customers. The Group mainly focus on the residential
area and most of the Group’s restaurants in Hong Kong are located in
major shopping malls in various residential regions in Hong Kong.

No impairment loss on property, plant and equipment was recorded for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$7,171,000). During the year ended 31 December 2021,
approximately HK$6,798,000 were impairment of right-of-use assets
(included in the property, plant and equipment), which are the leases
of the restaurants in the Group’s food and beverage segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

During the Year, the onset of the unprecedented and protracted
COVID-19 pandemic has put unrelenting pressure on the normal
operation of the food and beverage business. The Hong Kong
government has re-introduced the banning of dining in after 6:00 p.m.
from 7 January 2022 to 21 April 2022. Although the government
announced that progressively relaxation of certain distancing measures
and restriction on operating hours and capacity for catering premises,
the revenue from this segment dropped significantly during the Year.
At the beginning of 2023, the Hong Kong government released all the
COVID-19 measures and the revenue from this segment recovered.

As a result after considering the above, the management concluded
that there was no indication for impairment on the Group’s assets.
The management conducted impairment assessments on recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets in
relation to the food and beverage business as at 31 December 2022,
and engaged an independent valuation expert to perform impairment
assessments on the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) of food and
beverage business segment and estimate the recoverable amount of the
asset for the Year.

Profit/Cash flow forecasts were made by the management for all
CGUs to consider whether there are any indication for impairment
on the individual assets of the Group. Indications for impairment
would include internal source of information and external source of
information: (a) whether the group of CGUs is be loss-making as
a whole for the financial year that the economic performance of an
asset is, or will be, worse than expected, while losses caused by pre-
operating expenses of new shops will be disregarded for this purpose;
(b) significant changes with an adverse effect on the entity have taken
place during the period, or will take place in the near future, in the
economic or legal environment in which the entity operates or in
the market to which an asset is dedicated or in the extent to which,
or manner in which, an asset is used or is expected to be used; (c)
evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an asset;
and (d) whether there are any extenuating circumstances which would
require the management to perform an impairment assessment.

The independent valuation expert performed impairment assessment
of the carrying amounts of each CGU as at 31 December 2022 by
estimating their value in use through the management’s forecasts.
The calculation of value in use of the relevant assets subjected
to impairment testing are by reference to the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to derive from the assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

Based on result of the assessments, no impairment loss was recognised
as none of the restaurants generated nil cash flow/net cash inflow but
recoverable amount is less than the CGU’s carrying value.

On 14 January 2022, the Group disposed of Amber Glory and its
subsidiary, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which
principally engaged in food and beverage in Singapore. Upon
completion of the disposal, the Group has discontinued to engage in
the food and beverage business in Singapore. For details, please refer
to the announcement dated 14 January 2022.

Since 1 March 2023, all mandatory mask-wearing requirements have
been dropped, allowing society to fully resume normalcy. However,
the food and beverage industry in Hong Kong remains a challenging
industry with intense competition and high operating costs, such as
rising rental expenses, food costs, and labor costs. Nevertheless, the
Group remains committed to developing our brand portfolio through
various approaches, such as refining its existing brands, launching
new brands, and finding commercially attractive locations for new
restaurants on commercially acceptable terms.

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE DISTRIBUTION AND
MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

Alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous business is
principally engaged in distribution of alcoholic beverage in Hong
Kong and trading of miscellaneous goods.

Aiming to diversify the business profile and with a potential to
complement the food and beverage business of the Group, the Group
entered into the alcoholic beverage distribution business through its
acquisition of Belicious (HK) Limited (“Belicious”) as a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group in April 2018.The Group currently sells
individual and corporate clients with fine wine, collection whiskey
and other miscellaneous products through the Group’s network and on
close connection with customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

During the Year, revenue from the distribution of alcoholic beverage
and miscellaneous business amounted to approximately HK$1,596,000
(31 December 2021: HK$1,264,000).

To address the weakening performance, the Group will be building
a competent sales team while keeping costs at a minimal level. The
Group aims to maintain the high level of service and quality that was
expected of by its customers, while also ensuring that the Group will
operate in a cost-effective manner.

At 31 December 2022, the Group carried out an impairment
assessment to the goodwill attributable to the alcoholic beverage
distribution business and impairment loss of goodwill of
approximately HK$5,168,000 (2021: HK$9,999,000) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In conducting impairment assessments, the independent valuation
expert was engaged to evaluate the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The calculation of value in use of the relevant assets subjected
to impairment testing are by reference to the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to derive from the assets.
Based on result of the assessments, impairment loss on goodwill
was recognised on this segment which generated net cash inflow but
recoverable amount is less than the cash generating unit’s carrying
value, part of the goodwill allocated to this segment has been impaired
as at 31 December 2022.

PROVISION OF CHILDREN EDUCATION SERVICES

The Group’s provision of children education services business is
carried on through Nobel Education Organisation Limited, which
became a 51% owned subsidiary of the Group in October 2018. Nobel
Education Organisation Limited provides children education services
through the operation of Hong Kong Nobel Preschool, a kindergarten
registered under the Education Ordinance (Chapter 279 of the laws of
Hong Kong), offering kindergarten and pre-school education. During
the Year, revenue from the provision of children education services
amounted to approximately HK$4,500,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$4,448,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

As the fifth wave of the COVID-19 epidemic broke out in early
2022, the Hong Kong Government resumed strict blockade measures
to prevent the spread of the epidemic, which hit the local economic
activities hard, the Education Bureau announced the suspension of
face-to-face teaching and school activities on or before 14 February
2022. By the middle of April 2022, the local epidemic has eased, and
the number of new cases has reduced to thousands, the Education
Bureau arranged kindergartens, primary schools and secondary
schools to resume face-to-face teaching in stages from 19 April 2022.
Although face-to-face classes were reopened, the semester was closing
to the end, the resumption of classes failed to attract the students who
had dropped out of school to return to school, thus the revenue in the
first half of the year was also affected to some degree.

In order to improve the school’s competitiveness, the Group will
introduce its own school-based courses, which are made by its own
teachers. It is more unique and will help students learn new knowledge
during the study period and cultivate students’ interest in learning. In
June 2022, we began to recruit students, which was well received. If
the epidemic situation remains balanced in the next year, the number
of students is expected to rebound.

During the year, the Group was faced with challenges such as a
declining birth rate, emigration trends, and rising labour costs. In
response, we have proactively enriched the content of our programmes
and extracurricular activities, with the aim of building stronger
relationships and positive perceptions among parents. Despite the
pandemic situation, the performance remained stable, reflecting
the ongoing efforts of our dedicated team and the resilience of our
business model. Looking ahead, the Group plans to open new branches
subject to favourable terms and conditions in residential locations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN SINGAPORE

The joint venture was engaged in investing in the business of
operating restaurants, cafes and takeaway outlets in Singapore. During
the Year, the Group did not record the share of loss of a joint venture
(31 December 2021: HK$Nil). Since late 2019, the share of losses
of a joint venture exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.

The COVID-19 outbreak has brought huge negative impacts on the
global economy. In the beginning of 2020 COVID-19 cases have
started to be reported in Singapore and that the number of confirmed
cases has increased continuously since February 2020. The Singapore
government announced a number of measures such as promoted social
distancing and instruct the employers for mandatory work from home
arrangement. The impact resulted from the COVID-19 and the related
measure was reflected by the significant drop in the revenue for the
joint venture’s restaurants. As at 31 December 2020, all restaurants
held by the Joint Venture have ceased to operate and all restaurants
premises was returned to the landlords.

In the past financial years, the Group has ventured into the operation
of restaurant business in Singapore by opening and operating of
certain restaurants in Singapore through the subsidiary or joint
venture. In light of their financial performance, it is expected that
the Group would need to make further capital contribution to the
subsidiary or joint venture for the continuance of its operation, which
the management believes that at the time the Group should better
focus its resources to the Group’s food and beverage business and
other businesses in Hong Kong. As such, the Directors believe that
cessation the operation in Singapore is preferable which can allow the
Group to streamline its business direction with a view to providing
growth potential of the Group and a reasonable decision made under
the current circumstances.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)
PROSPECTS

The Hong Kong government has relaxed almost all of the anti-
pandemic measures and has recommitted to the economy, to boost
public confidence. It creates opportunities for the Group to capitalize
on the ongoing recovery in Hong Kong’s economy.

At the same time, global tensions and rising inflation have signaled
the possibility of a global economic downturn or even a recession.
Therefore, the Group remains cautious in terms of the quality of
collaterals and our exposure to margin financing and money lending
businesses. We will closely monitor the economic indicators and
adjust our strategies as necessary to ensure risk weighted profitability.

As belts are tightened, consumers become more cautious about their
spending. We enhance our dining offerings to attract them to our
restaurants. Renovations introducing the new Wagyu More design
have been successful in pilot stores, and the design changes will
continue to be implemented gradually across the network and new
outlets. This presents a significant brand-building opportunity for
the Group. We are putting much planning into various upcoming
promotional campaigns to capitalize on it.

Travel between the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and
mainland China has resumed to normalcy. The number of daily visitors
peaked on 4 March 2023 at 86,800, representing some 70 percent
of pre-pandemic levels. It is expected that more inbound arrivals
from mainland China and the rest of the world will boost the city’s
various sectors. To capture the opportunities, we remains focused
on expanding our presence in Hong Kong, enhancing the customer
experience and maintaining high levels of service and product quality.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

(a)

(b)

@

On 14 January 2022, City Ally Holdings Limited (“City Ally”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
sale and purchase agreement with an individual (“Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to purchase, and City
Ally agreed to sell, (i) the Sale Share, representing the entire
issued share capital of Amber Glory, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands with limited liability; and (ii) the Sale Loan,
representing all the shareholder’s loan owing by the Amber
Glory, at an aggregate consideration of S$5,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$29,000). The Purchaser is a director of a
subsidiary of Amber Glory and a director of a joint venture of
the Group which was engaged in investing in the business of
operating restaurants, cafes and takeaway outlets in Singapore.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
14 January 2022.

Acquisition of right-of-use assets

On 25 April 2022, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, accepted and entered into the addendum with
Harriman Leasing Limited (as agent for the landlords, Plaza
Hollywood Limited, Mullein Company Limited, Wettersley
Company Limited, Bright Smart Limited and Excellent Base
Limited), in respect of the extension of the lease of the premises
for a term of two years commencing on 1 May 2022 and ending
on 30 April 2024 (both days inclusive) for operation of one
of the Group’s restaurants, with a total aggregate value of
consideration payment of HK$6.4 million in aggregate (exclusive
of management charge, air-conditioning charge, rates and
promotion charge) during the term.

The value of the right-of-use assets recognised by the Company
under the extension of lease is amounted to approximately
HK$6.0 million, calculated with reference to the present value
of the aggregated lease payments to be made under the extension
of lease in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases. For details of the
extension of lease, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 25 April 2022.
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o BLE W) B gt (%)

(b)

(ii)

(iii)
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Acquisition of right-of-use assets (Continued)

On 27 May 2022, two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, entered into the tenancy agreements with Joinyield
Limited, the landlord, in respect of the extension of the lease of
two premises for a term of three years commencing on 26 July
2022 and ending on 25 July 2025 (both days inclusive); and for a
term of three years commencing on 26 August 2022 and ending
on 25 August 2025 (both days inclusive) respectively, which
are for the operation of two of the Group’s restaurants. The total
aggregate value of consideration payment for the two restaurants
are amounted to HK$5.2 million and HK$1.94 million in
aggregate respectively (exclusive of management charge, air
conditioning charge, rates and promotion charge) during the
term.

The value of the right-of-use assets recognised by the Company
under the extension of leases is amounted to approximately
HK$6.52 million, calculated with reference to the present value
of the aggregated lease payments to be made under the extension
of lease in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases. For details of the
extension of lease, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 27 May 2022.

On 16 September 2022, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the offer letter with Henderson
Leasing Agency Limited (as agent for the landlords, The Yin Nin
Savings, Mortgage Loan & Land Investment Company Limited,
Shung King Development Company Limited, Join Fortune
Development Limited), in respect of the lease of a premise for a
term of three years commencing on 25 October 2022 and ending
on 24 October 2025 (both days inclusive) for the operation of
two of the Group’s restaurants. The total aggregate value of
consideration payment for the two restaurants are amounted to
HKS$8.2 million in aggregate (exclusive of management charge,
air conditioning charge, rates and promotion charge) during the
term.

The value of the right-of-use assets recognised by the Company
under the lease is amounted to approximately HK$7.5 million,
calculated with reference to the present value of the aggregated
lease payments to be made under the extension of lease in
accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases. For details of the lease,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 16 September
2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of right-of-use assets (Continued)

(iv) On 24 November 2022, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, received notification from the Goodwell-
Fortune Property Services Limited (as agent for the landlord,
Mega Gain Resources Limited) that it had accepted and entered
into the offer letter, in respect of the lease of a premise for a
term of three years commencing on 16 November 2022 for the
operation of one of the Group’s restaurants. The total aggregate
value of consideration payment for the restaurant is amounted
to HK$7.2 million in aggregate (exclusive of management fees,
air conditioning charges, government rates, government rent and
other charges) during the term.

The value of the right-of-use assets recognised by the Company
under the lease is amounted to approximately HK$6.5 million,
calculated with reference to the present value of the aggregated
lease payments to be made under the extension of lease in
accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases. For details of the lease,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 November
2022.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company does not have any significant
acquisition and disposal during the Year.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$42,325,000 (2021: HK$40,577,000) and net current
assets of approximately HK$102,307,000 (2021: HK$112,945,000).
Current ratio (defined as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities) was 1.97 times (2021: 2.03 times).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group have other borrowing of
approximately HK$20,054,000 (2021: HK$20,061,000). The
other borrowing is secured by corporate guarantee executed by the
Company. It has interest at prevailing market rates and repayable in
accordance with the relevant loan agreements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)

We fund our operations principally from cash generated from our
operations, other debt instruments and equity financing from investors.
Our cash requirements relate primarily to production and operating
activities, business and asset acquisitions, repayment of liabilities
as they become due, capital expenditures and any unexpected cash
requirements. During the Year, our profit before interest, taxes and
depreciation amounted to approximately HK$1,778,000.

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated on the basis of the
Group’s total liabilities to the total assets, as at 31 December 2022 was
48% (2021: 48%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had equity attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$128,546,000 (2021:
HK$132,947,000).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE RIGHTS ISSUE

On 29 March 2021, the Company announced its proposal to raise,
before expenses, not less than approximately HK$45.9 million by
issuing not less than 459,088,545 rights shares (“Rights Shares”) and
not more than approximately HK$49.6 million by issuing not more
than 495,808,545 Rights Shares on the basis of three Rights Shares
for every one share held on the record date at the subscription price of
HK$0.10 per rights share (“Rights Issue”).

The Right Issue was completed on 29 July 2021. The Board intended
to apply the net proceeds from the Rights Issue of approximately
HK$44.2 million as follows (i) as to approximately HK$9.0 million
to capital expenditure and related expenses on expanding the
restaurants of the Group’s food and beverage business segment; (ii)
as to approximately HK$20.0 million will be allocated to the Group’s
financial services business segment for margin financing; (iii) as to
approximately HK$10.0 million for repayment of a loan of the Group
and (iv) as to approximately HK$5.2 million will be used as general
working capital of the Group. Subsequently, the Group changed the
intended use of proceeds HK$5.0 million from capital expenditure and
related expense on expanding the restaurants to salary expense of the
Group’s food and beverage business segments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Details of the Rights Issue are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 29 March 2021, 13 April 2021, 7 May 2021, 14
May 2021, 28 May 2021, 22 June 2021, 22 July 2021, 28 July 2021,
11 February 2022 and 22 February 2022, the Company’s circular
dated 28 May 2021, and the Company’s prospectus dated 6 July 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had unutilised the net proceeds
from the Rights Issue as intended.

ISSUE OF SHARES UNDER THE GENERAL MANDATE

On 9 September 2022, the Company and Ruibang Securities Limited
(“Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement pursuant to
which the Placing Agent agreed to place, on a best endeavor basis, in
aggregate, up to 125,483,612 placing shares of the Company at the
placing price of HK$0.1 per share to not less than six placees who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent third parties under
general mandate (“Placing”). As disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 27 September 2022, the completion of the Placing
took place on 27 September 2022 in accordance with the terms
of the placing agreement. The Company received net proceeds of
approximately HK$12.2 million, which will be used for replenishing
general working capital of the Group, and as fund for the revamp of
restaurants, settlement of rental expenses and outstanding payables to
suppliers and development of business projects in food and beverage
business of the Group.

o B B o B (7))

A B SRR FE R R A AT B A —F

T =H-1+JLH » ZEFE - —4FNH
+=0 ZF 2 —-F0HLEH - ZF
—HERLA+MNAE s ZF - —FEREA -+
NH > ZF-—F A+ -H =&
——HtA-+=H - _F_—%tH
“tANH - ZFEHE At —H R

FEHECASTHZAE AN
H A ~ZF - —44AaH 1+ /\HZHEK
BANFHAE —E_—FLHAXNHZ
PR TR o

REFZFFZA=1T—H > A%H
B 32 R 25 0 A AL BT 15 SR OE T
B o

AR — A 452 B 5% A7 M

RZFEZTAEIAIUE > AL A B
75 5 PR A A (TG QB ) DA v oy BE e
UL B TR R o PR > BB ACEEE B
*Eﬁ*ﬂ%%%?ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%‘o 177G 2 At &
B RPN BREANREE SRS
125,483 612)&2&”?@6%}&% (L8 =
JH]) > MR AR K& TEmEa AN

RS =T5 wﬁﬂﬂﬂi/\‘]Eiﬁﬁf% %
CCHERAA ST EHZ A EHEE - i
& HIEAR R W sk ot —F T

AHZHERER - A2 R S fE 5

TE V40 4 15 112,200,000 70 14 1 i 6 78 A4
%@*%“EQAM&WWQ%%W
&5 R B S M AT A I R 1 R &
u&$%@€m&@ﬂ%ﬁM¥ﬁﬁa
PlEEE 4 o

B i B AT LA 7
“ex——pgw 45



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2022, The Group has unutilised the net proceeds

MREFEZHEF A=+ —H  AEH

from the Placing as set out below:

B T 5 = TE BT 45 KCE T R I DL AN

T
Net proceeds Intended use Actual use of the net Expected timeline
Date of Fund raising raised of the net proceeds as at for the unutilised
Announcement  activity (approximately)  proceeds 31 December 2022 net proceeds
REF-2E AB It i
i S 52 i P ok SRR A=A R
AERH SETH SEBH(E) Rl i o ok JEL R A O A ¢

9 September 2022 Placing of 125,483,612 new HK$12.2 million

B S
AUARLH

shares at the placing price
of HK$0.10 per share under
generate mandate.

A% — i R % & B VB 112,200,000C
B0 10 C B E R E
125,483 612685 e

(a) Approximately HK$9.8 million (a) Utilised in full as intended. (a) N/A.

to be used as fund for the revamp
of restaurants, settlement of
rental expenses and outstanding
payables to suppliers and
development of business projects
in food and beverage business of
the Group.

Approximately HK$2.4 million
to be used for replenishing
general working capital of the
Group.

#115%59,800,0007C I 1S B
B BEAER S RIS kR
TR G AE RAE BB
Rk £ H BB
Lo

(b) Utilised approximately
HK$0.8 million as
intended.
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(b) By February
2023.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE B B % ) 2R S B

For the year ended 31 December 2022, most of the Group’s business
transactions, assets and liabilities were principally denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), Singapore dollars (“S$”), United States
dollars (“US$”) and HKS is the Group’s presentation currency. The
Group is exposed to potential foreign exchange risk as a result of
fluctuation of S$ and US$ against HKS$. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign
currency assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider using hedging instruments
in respect of significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

When appropriate and at times of interest rate or exchange rate
uncertainties or volatility, hedging instruments including swaps and
forwards will be used by the Group in the management of exposure
affecting interest rates and foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company has issued a
corporate guarantee in respect of other borrowing made by an
independent third party to a subsidiary. The fair value of the guarantee
has not been provided for in the Company’s financial statements as
the directors of the Company consider the amount involved to be
insignificant.

CHARGES OF GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group did not
have any charges of group assets.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 244 employees
in Hong Kong (excluding directors of the Company) (2021: 296
employees in Hong Kong and Singapore). The Group’s remuneration
policy is to provide competitive level of remuneration to employees
and directors based on their performance, qualification, experience
and the prevailing industry practice.

Apart from regular remuneration, discretionary bonus and share
options may be granted to eligible staff by reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’s performance.

We aim to provide employees with resources and an environment that
encourages them to develop careers with us. We provide management
personnel and employees with on-the-job education, training and other
opportunities to improve their skills and knowledge.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 30
September 2013, the Board may grant options to eligible persons,
including employees and directors, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. During the Year, the Company granted 15,300,000 share
options to directors, employees and other eligible persons on 17
January 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

o BLE W) B gt (%)
ENVIRONMENT

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in Hong Kong and
Singapore. The Group has established environment policies and
procedures aimed at compliance with local environmental and other
laws. For the food and beverage production process, part of the food
waste and all of the waste oil were recycled and collected by the
environmental parties. During the year, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance of laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to air and Greenhouse Gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, or generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. The management performs regular reviews to
identify environmental risks and to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate to manage these risks.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The fair value of listed equity securities are determined based on the
quoted market closing price available on the Main Board and GEM of
the Stock Exchange at the end of the reporting period.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the realised gains and unrealised losses on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) from changes in fair value on
financial assets at FVTPL held as at 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately HK$636,000 and HK$5,984,000 respectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the seventh Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report of China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (“China
Demeter”) (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), outlining the Group’s efforts to drive sustainable
development forward during the financial year from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES AND BOUNDARY

This report has been prepared in compliance with ESG Reporting
Guidelines set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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(the “Stock Exchange”) and the reporting principles are applied as  #5 Ji5 Bl %8 i it 3C
below:
Materiality: Stakeholder engagement is undertaken annually to identify the material sustainability
topics which are addressed in this report.
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Quantitative: Data in this report are checked and analysed to account for year-on-year changes and
are presented in a way that allows for comparison with previous performance. Please
refer to the Performance Data Summary of this report for standards used for calculation
of environmental performance indicators.
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Balance: We prepare the report in a transparent manner in which both positive and negative
impacts are disclosed.
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Consistency: To maintain comparability of information, unless otherwise stated, the data and
statistical methods in this report are presented in a consistent manner, which allows for
meaningful comparison over time.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BB A d RO s ()

The boundary of this report follows that of the annual report, covering
the money lending business, financial services business, securities
investment business, food and beverage business, alcoholic beverage
distribution and miscellaneous business and provision of children
education services in Hong Kong.

FEEDBACK

We value your thoughts and feedback regarding how we can improve
our reports and sustainability performance in the future. Please send us
your feedback at info@chinademeter.com.

BOARD STATEMENT

Food and beverage business is the Group’s core business, with the rest
being predominantly office-based in Hong Kong. Sound management
of ESG issues is crucial for the Group to continuously grow and
prosper in the future. The Board of Directors (the “Board”) bears
the overall responsibility of overseeing the Group’s sustainability
performance and regularly evaluating sustainability strategies, targets
and performance. The Board has reviewed and approved the report
for integrity of the disclosures. To the best of its knowledge, this
report addresses all relevant material issues and fairly presents ESG
management approach and performance of the Group.

The ESG Working Group, consisting of senior management who
reports to the Board on ESG issues, regularly holds meetings to
suitably evaluate, prioritise and manage material ESG-related issues
and their corresponding risks and opportunities. By implementing
proper ESG management and integrating sustainable practices
into daily operations, we endeavour to improve our sustainability
performance and create long term values to meet stakeholders’
expectations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Ensuring health and safety in restaurants operations has been our top
priority. We have established a set of safety instructions and adopted
appropriate measures to prevent possible hazards to consumers. When
facing the challenges posed by the COVID pandemic, we engage with
employees and customers to keep everyone safe and healthy. We take
proactive actions to support the government by requiring customers
to scan the LeaveHomeSafe QR code when they enter the restaurants.
At the same time, we pay closer attention to the well-being of our
employees also, providing a hygienic and safe workplace through
regular cleaning and sterilisation.

In the drive to take sustainable development forward, we put in
efforts to strengthen our environmental management and ensure our
operations are in compliance with relevant laws and regulations. This
year, we have established environmental targets in various aspects for
ongoing review and improvement. Moreover, green office initiatives
have been adopted to minimise environmental impacts and create low-
carbon operations. For combating climate change, we have put in
place a climate change policy and strive to address issues associated
with climate change by taking adaptation and mitigation measures.

In financial operations, we attach great importance to protecting
private information and maintaining high ethical standards across
all our operations. A stringent quality control system has been
implemented to select qualified suppliers. We make every effort to
enhance operational excellence, shouldering responsibility to provide
quality products and services to our customers. Together with all our
stakeholders, China Demeter is dedicated to creating a sustainable
business and delivering great value to the society.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Stakeho

lder engagement is an essential process for enhancing

transparency and understanding stakeholders’ needs and identifying

potential

ESG risks and opportunities. We engage with our internal and

external stakeholders including customers, employees, the community,

the government and investors through various communication

channels, shown in the table below.

it %2 5

Fifn & 2 BUR R mIE W E X T R &
FoR DGR VA R B~ AL IR A
B BB R B BB o FRAMIEIR T R
B B 45 Tl 7 200 02 20 BEL O 8 e SR R 0
(BFEEF -~ A - HE - BUFREE
HIETHE) o

Engagement Channels

Stakeholders Concerned Topics

Fitr & I T

Investors . Economic performance
. Operational compliance

BREH o RPRH

. EEAH

R

. Annual reports, quarterly reports and
interim reports

. Press releases

o ARk - TR KPR

o MM

Employees . Talent management

. Training and development
. Compensation, rights and interests
. Occupational health and safety

C Weekly staff meetings
. Complaints system
. Employee activities

& B - AAEH - HHEBTE®
o HidlELEtE o HERmIE
o HPMEA AR - ATHEH
o BRSEfERELAE
The Government . Anti-corruption . Compliance with applicable laws
. Business ethics and regulations
. Operational compliance
. Prevention of child labour and
forced labour
B «  REN o ESTREANEG LEM
. WA
. BEGH
o EREE TSI L
Customers . Information security and privacy . Company website
. Customer satisfaction . Feedback from frontline employees
. Health and safety of products
. Quality of products and services
%R o [BFERERER o AR M
. KFWMEE . HISMERRBER
o EhmfEREZE
o EMMRBER
Community . Community involvement . Support charity organisations
. Environmental compliance
I . HEZH . XFFEEHEE
. BEAH
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

ESG issues that have significant impacts on the Group and
stakeholders are identified through materiality assessment. The
process of materiality assessment consists of four steps, including
identification, prioritisation, validation and review.

Identification

Based on HKEX ESG Reporting Guide, we assessed a broad list
of ESG topics. In 2022, a total of 20 potential material topics were
identified and included in the assessment, covering different aspects.

Prioritisation

Senior managers from the Group were administered a questionnaire to
determine the importance of different ESG-related issues to the Group.
All material ESG topics were ranked into three levels, which is shown
below.
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Level II1

Level I Level IT

%5 B8R
Emissions management Talent management
PEmciE B ANA B
Energy and resources management Occupational health and safety
AE IR B B TR T SE fek e L 22 &
Greenhouse gas emissions Training and development
it %5 S Pk 5 ol BEL 5% 2
Environmental compliance Compensation, right and interests
BRELEH ot I A 1) S R
Climate change Information security and privacy
e e 5B %2 T B AL

Prevention of child labour and
forced labour

ik A B R 5 ) 45 L
Community involvement

i [ 2 B

B=5
Supply chain management
A e g e 2L
Health and safety of products
FEE it fi R B 4 2
Quality of products and services
E i B s B R
Customer satisfaction
HE R
Business ethics
[EESEE:
Anti-corruption
&S
Operational compliance
BEAHR
Economic performance
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CRURAEH
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Validation and Review

The result of the materiality assessment has been validated and
approved by the Board of the Group. We regularly review the list of
material topics and identify gaps for improvement.

OUR PEOPLE

China Demeter strives to create an inclusive work environment that
nurtures a desirable work culture among its employees. We are an
equal opportunity employer, providing employees with the support and
encouragement they need to grow and prosper within our organisation.
We recognise and reward efforts to increase employees’ engagement
and productivity.

Employment

Employees Composition

As at 31 December 2022, we employed 185 full-time and 65 part-time
employees in Hong Kong. The male to female ratio in full-time staff

was 85:100, with the number of females being slightly higher than that
of males.

Employee Profile by Gender
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Bl £85 + 100 » 2 MR B A\ BUmg = i B v
PN &

e B 2 B T4 A
Female Male
L B
54% 46%
® Male @ Female
5 ZH
Employee Profile by Age Employee Profile by Position
AR Z B Lo kAL 2 B 43 b
>50 <31 )
24% 24% Managerial
General Staff E=giil
—ET 19%
81%
31-50
52%
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Majority of our employees are aged between 31 and 50, accounting K58 B AF A 31 25058 - 16
for 52% of the entire workforce. All of the employees are located 2B T ANBMS52% - AR BNRE
in Hong Kong. In terms of employee function, managerial staff and ¥  7E1E BEREE 7 > & LK B M5
general employees account for 19% and 81% of the total, respectively. BTk B TAEM19% X% 81%

The Group’s employee turnover rate and new hire rate were 112% and & . B4 > ALEE IR B i R K

121% in FY2022. The charts below show the distribution of turnover T AR5l 55112% 12 121% - F £ 5

rate and new hire rate by region, gender and age. HE A L~ P A R AT e ) 4y 2 T R
AR

Turnover & New Hire Rates by Region
M I 2 % AR B H A kR

114% .
100%
0%
HONG KONG SINGAPORE
Uk g
® Turnover Rate  ® New Hire Rate
A AR
Turnover & New Hire Rates by Gender Turnover & New Hire Rates by Age
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Employees’ Rights and Welfare

We believe that employees are the most valuable assets of the
Company. We ensure individuals from different groups integrate and
feel equally involved, safe, and supported in all areas of the workplace.
We are committed to supporting all our employees to thrive and
develop their long-term careers at China Demeter. Therefore, we
offer competitive remuneration and benefits packages in addition to
statutory welfare, including allowances, insurance, and discounts to
suit different needs of individual employees.

Benefit
1 A1

Benefit type

i A

1 B 19 REFY K 15 7

RIMEE R B —RA R A REENEE -
oA Al LR A TR AL FI B B R SEREE > B
A 7E TARBREE (4 BT A 75 T 349 IR 2 -4
BIF LR KRR SR o WAMBOTR 1
B A B TAE B R BRI 3 A O
M3 o FILL - FRAMBR TRtk e fE A
b > TR B A BB T 04 I AR A
B IR - RER T LNE R
THIAR K

Criteria of entitlement

38 P e

Allowances Overtime meal allowance For all office staffs, if they work beyond
the designated time

G T BEE £ R B TAE RS BLE R FAE B T

Allowances Ordinary meal allowance For staffs involved in frontline food and
beverage operations

G A R B B B RO E RS RO T AR B T

Insurance Medical insurance For staffs who have completed
probationary period

3 IR P Se e R B T

Insurance Occupational Injury insurance, Mandatory For all staffs in accordance with legal

Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme requirements
(3 TAG B~ R PR S R RAE A w RIBEHER - fTF R T

Paid leaves Annual leaves, maternity leaves, marriage

leaves, paternity leaves

For all staffs in accordance with legal
requirements

A i kB R R - IR - FRER REIERER > frAR T

Staff discounts Shopping discounts at the Group’s For staffs who have completed
restaurants probationary period

B THm P A B [ 2 R 1) S 400 47 10 SERGEU R B T

Regular benefit packages
R 17 28

All employees receive a handbook that clearly and comprehensively
stipulates policies regarding recruitment, promotion, compensation,
working hours, rest periods, dismissal, benefits, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and welfare measures in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Diversity and Equal Opportunities

We recruit and select employees on the basis of merit, such as their
skills, experience or ability to perform the job, regardless of age, race,
gender, religion, family status or disability. We provide employees
with equal opportunities to be considered for training and development
based on their strengths and needs, and promote employees fairly
based on their contribution and performance.

Dismissal and Annual Leave

Employees with deficient performance are given a verbal warning
and a written warning to improve before notice of termination of
employment. Termination of work takes place after the notice period
stipulated in the contract. Alternately the employee is paid salary for
the notice period before dismissal. The duration of annual leave is
based on an employee’s experience level, which ranges from 7 to 23
days.

Employee Activities

The Group arranged various activities to bring employees closer to
the Company throughout the year, including festival gatherings and
birthday parties. During the Mid-Autumn festival of 2022, moon cake
gift boxes were given to employees. The Company organised dinners
during the festive seasons, which enabled the Company’s management
team and employees to celebrate different festivals together and to
immerse in the happy atmosphere. Birthday parties were held bi-
monthly to enhance the relationships among employees and promote
an engaging corporate culture. In addition, we provide our employees
with all kinds of snacks and drinks to enjoy during their rest time.
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Birthday party
A H BB

Free snacks and drinks
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

We value the rights of our workers. The Group is cautious about
avoiding any prohibited labour practices, such as use of child or forced
labour. We assure compliance with applicable laws in our commercial
operations by setting up an employee identity verification system to
eliminate the risk of child or forced labour. During the recruitment
process, the Human Resources Department thoroughly examines the
candidates’ identification cards and other pertinent information to
ensure that they are in accordance with employment regulations. In
case of any instance of child employment, the contract is terminated
immediately and a rigorous investigation is launched.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations' that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to employment and labour standards. Nor did we
identify any incidents relating to the use of child or forced labour.

Health and Safety

Providing a safe work environment has been our top priority to ensure
smooth business operations. The Group is committed to keeping the
workplace safe from any kind of hazards and work-related accidents
by complying with relevant labour and employment laws and
guidelines. We encourage employees to raise any recommendations,
suggestions and concerns on occupational health and safety or any
issues they are experiencing. In the meantime, we communicate with
contractors and suppliers to impose appropriate health and safety
measures for their employees. We have established health policies to
improve workplace safety; for instance, smoking is not allowed in the
workplace and alcohol or drug abuse is strictly prohibited.

We identify and eliminate potential risks by stipulating various safety
guidelines for our frontline staff involved in our food and restaurant
business. These guidelines stipulate measures for frontline staff to
follow and ensure safe operation of various equipment and apparatus
in kitchens and prevent potential dangers and hazards. The following
table summarises some of the safety procedures.

! Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for employment and
labour standards-related laws and regulations.

BRBE AL & K va el (4)

By 1k % T J 5% i 55 1.

FAME LB THER] o A< 5 BE B 4T o] 32
M“Iﬁﬁﬁi R s o
BT RAPEBF R B B0 EE RS
T B T a0 A TR - R TR AM Y
P SE ST A R - AT IR ERAE
AR AR & USRS 1) B
o A AH BE B RE > DAHECRILAF & 0 1 H
B o dn b BAEAT IR A AR > TR e
7RI IE B 4517 BH R s R A o

AR AR B AS N B A B A R D 55 T
e U T 365 A 4R B A 5RO B 2 AT ) 72 i
EERLIEUL o BAM IR 28 58 BUAT AT 47 B ik 1)
T e i 55 TS -

i e B %K &

fe 2z e i) TARERBE — B2 JAM e fR =€
B ROENEA B R E h 2 o AR AR
BT AR AR B 25 T % AR R i 1 B 45 5|
ORFF AR BT 2 4 - 5 BUAT Ao 1250
W fE F & TAEAE B S bk - Ml B T
ALK S it R Bl 22 4 mCHL I A TH [ 1 o e
R AT - R e BRI o BT
5 > FAM SR (7 L (I R i -
i BB vt 78 1 R % & A e o AN
il E fit e BOK DL B AR 35 B (9 %
Ao WA Ik AR T AR 35 I WA SN e A A 3
B o

oA 4 A8 Ay 2 BB i S B SE S 1 R AR

B T HE &2 2850 alnl B s bR
T Ja B ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ&wnﬁiﬁ%ﬁ

O FE it o AREOR T 5 1A 4% R B A i
ﬁi%ﬁvﬁ%iﬁfﬁf%&ﬁ%o
TR TR

! I T A T 5 96 B AR B 0 1 B - i 2

e [V B L — i o

B i B AT LA 7
Sz——pgg 59



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BB A d RO s ()

Use of equipment

e i 13

Meat slicing machine .

IIEE

Safety measures
A H it

Ensure electric power is cut off when cleaning the machine

Remove any obstacles near the machine before operation

Adjust thickness of slicing carefully and ensure the cutting stand is
fixed in position before cutting

Keep any objects, human body parts or clothes away from the cutting
area

Only authorised personnel who have received official training are
allowed to operate machines

TR T35 122 1% s Ry 7] 7 76 9

AR I BR A &5 BT 19 B B

FFAM R BT R SR BE > SI e DR D7) ) S 1) 7 A 8 9 7 AR T
o1l

PRI - B AR R e U ) [ S

FUA 880 1E A a9 N B 7 vl B /R i

Knife

Always wear a kitchen gown and cut resistant gloves when using a
knife

Pay undivided attention when using a knife, stay focused and never
play with it

Use knives for cutting food only, not other purposes including opening
canned bottles or cutting ropes

Cut on firm and stable chopping boards and tables to prevent accidents
{5 70 R I 55 e 2 25 8 5 T AR IR B By 1

R ) R E T - RIFEE > Y2557 1A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Safety Training

With an aim to handle all kinds of potential emergency circumstances
in a proper and safe manner, the Group has established comprehensive
guidelines for frontline employees, covering both natural disasters
and crimes, besides fire, earthquake, robbery, and power shortage. For
example, when a fire occurs, employees should keep calm and inform
the administration department immediately. Under safe and feasible
conditions, employees should also cut off all power, remove any
flammable or explosive objects, initiate evacuation and try to put off
the flame with fire extinguishers.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations® that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to occupational health and safety. During the year,
there were no work-related fatalities. We had 241 lost days due to
work injury in FY2022. Please refer to the section headed
“Performance Data Summary” for number and rate of work-related
fatalities that occurred in each of the past three years including the
reporting year and lost days due to work injury.

2 Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for Health and Safety-

related laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Combating Covid-19

Considering the severe impact of Covid-19 on employees’ health and
safety, we have imposed organisational protective measures to reduce
spread of the virus and prevent infections in the workplace.

We provide various disinfection products such as disinfection fire wine
and disinfection wet wipes for employees to sterilise their hands at
anytime and reduce the chance of germs spreading. There are different
kinds and sizes of masks for employees to choose from according to
their needs.
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Fight against the virus
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Air purifying machines

2 ST 1L

In addition, for improving indoor air quality, we have placed advanced
air purifying machines that minimise the chance of employees getting
exposed to the virus. Our goal is to safeguard the health and well-
being of employees by doing the best we can to improve workplace
hygiene conditions.
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Training and Development

China Demeter provides training and development opportunities to
its employees to ensure they fully understand how their roles fit into
the Company’s goals. The Group has actively invested in human
capital required to sustain business growth, providing exceptional
possibilities to all workers. External training programmes are sourced
to help workers master the expertise as well as skills needed for their
positions. Our talented employees are motivated to expand with the
Group thanks to a well-established promotion mechanism and career
development path. Please refer to the section headed “Performance
Data Summary” for the percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category and the average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.

4.9%
Total training hours of staff 186

Percentage of trained staff to all staff
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Training and Development
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Communication and Feedback

Resources and Courses

Mandatory participation in certain
courses which have significant
impacts or cover major regulatory
updates for relevant employees
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Encourage employees to proactively
raise their training recommendations
or training courses that they consider
necessary
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China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Provide resources of training and
courses to employees, including
directors, senior management, and
frontline stafts to enable them to fulfil
their job duties
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Environmental Management

Principally engaged in food and beverage business, the Group
is aware of environmental impacts of generation of waste and
resource consumption by its operating activities. To minimise the
environmental impacts, we strive to continuously improve resource
usage efficiency, waste reduction and carbon emissions reduction in
our daily operations.

The Group’s other businesses have limited environmental impacts
due to the office-based nature. Nevertheless, we adopt green office
initiatives to achieve green and low-carbon operations. Energy
efficiency measures are adopted, and we strive to achieve paperless
operations.

To ensure continuous improvement in our environmental performance,
we have established environmental targets on GHG emissions, energy
efficiency, waste and water use. To ensure the effectiveness of these
targets, they are reviewed annually and updated when necessary. The
Group’s environmental targets are listed in the table below:

BRBE AL & K va el (4)
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Aspects Targets Base year Progress in 2022
HH HER RMEAEGy R AR
GHG Emissions Reduce 1% by 2026 2021 Increased by 7.7%
. == SR PR A TR TNEZRTBD 1% TER T W%
Electricity 10% usage of LED lights by 2026 2% usage of LED lights
EfE TR TNFZHILEDRE L K AR E 2% LEDRS ¥ I %
#10%
Waste Reduce 1% by 2026 2021 Increased by 28%
JEEFEY) TERTREZHBE 1% SR BN28%
Water Reduce 1% by 2026 2021 Decreased by 12%
K “ETNFEZRTE 1% —EFF BP12%

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance of
relevant laws and regulations® that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

2 Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for emissions-related

laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Resources Consumption
Energy Consumption

Electricity and towngas are the major sources of energy we use.
In 2022, the Group’s energy consumption was 1,808,515 kWh of
electricity and 1,177,296 MJ of Towngas, all consumed mainly by
restaurants in Hong Kong. The decrease of energy use was mainly due
to the closure of a restaurant and the disposal of food and beverage
business in Singapore.

BRI A
E W H FE

B IO TR AR 0 EEERRUR o R
TERICHE S AEENREHEER S
1,808,515 F FLIRF & 1 & 1,177,296 K £ H-
R TEHFBIRENFE - B
FEU D T B ol 7 B PR — [ 3 m 3 1Y
2% K LR B T TN 3H 1) B o R BB SER o

Energy Consumption (GJ)

RETRIHAE R (FAEH)

@ Electricity @ Towngas

The total energy consumption amounted to 7,687.95 GJ, mainly
attributed to food and beverage business. The total consumption
intensity was approximately 0.05 GJ per thousand Hong Kong Dollars
revenue.

AETRAFE R B7,687.95H fEH » F2 A MW
B MARRIETS o MR EXN AE
BT e IR 250.05 7 HEH: -

Energy Consumption and Intensity
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5
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRBE AL & A v e (48

Water

The total water consumption of the Group in 2022 was 25,059 tons, all
of which was consumed by existing restaurants, i.e. food and beverage
business. The intensity was 0.177 tons/thousand Hong Kong Dollars
revenue. During the year, the Company did not have any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for the purpose.

HiA&

AN R T T AE KR A
25,059MF > 2B AR EEHFE - BRI
i S BROREZER o B A By S T ok
720 177M8 o AR > AR A SR BUE I K
Y 5 1 Sf7 4 AT ] [ R

Water Consumption and Intensity

AN = e
K FE 2= B % B
29,000 0.180
0.177 .
28,000 0.175 o~
2 £ i
=1 O
S = 27,000 0170 # 3 =
= %*\ & a IR
2 26,000 0165 2
g I 0.161 s
5 ¥ 25000 : o160 2 S #
g =20\
o @
© 24,000 25,059 0.155 g B
23,000 0.150
2021 2022
St =g
mmmm Consumption e Intensity
THFER R
Packaging Materials WEMF

A total of 5,769.5 kg (equivalent to HK$221,426.90) worth of
packaging materials were used in our operations in Hong Kong
restaurants.

TR A AE 7 o S ) S AR s L R L
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Emissions
Waste

The Group’s operations do not generate any hazardous waste. During
the year, the Group generated a total of approximately 20.29 tons of
non-hazardous waste, including 10.6 tons of general waste, 8.75 tons
of food waste and 0.94 tons waste oil. Of these, approximately 2.3%
(0.47 tons) of waste oil were collected by registered waste cooking oil
collectors. The total non-hazardous waste intensity was approximately
0.00014 tons per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue. Please refer
to the section headed “Performance Data Summary” for the types of
emissions and the corresponding emissions data.

23 &7
JEFEY

A2 EHNEE LA EEE
Yoo N AR B 3L AL £920.20ME S8 E
BEEEY) > 135 10.6MA— i BE Y - 8.75M
[T % S 0.94ME JBE T o Hrp > £92.3%(0.47
WE) % I PR R R RS B & I e o o [l
W o i JBE ) 2 KA 4 550.00014
MR T eI AR o A BE P FE A
B4 8 PECEE > W2 B TR BLEUR T
] —f

Non-hazardous Waste Produced (tonnes)

B E R ()

Wasté 0Oil 0.94, 5%
JEE

Food Waste
&7 ik
8.75, 43%

General Waste

—JESEY)
10.6, 52%

® General Waste ® Food Waste @ Waste Oil
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nance Report (Continued)
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The consumption of Towngas resulted in emissions of approximately
0.02 kg sulphur oxides (“SOx”) and 4.73 kg nitrogen oxides (“NOx”).

Air Emission (kg)
APk g (Fx)

7
6
5
4
3
2
1 0.03 0.02
0
2021 2022
—E A —E——
® NOx ® SOx e PM

AAMY ALY K

Environment and Natural Resources Conservation

The Group’s food and beverage business consumes a wide range of
natural resources, including electricity, fuel, water and packaging
materials. We implement green office practices and promote an
environment-friendly culture in our daily operations, and adopt
multiple energy saving measures at our restaurants.

FBIHFEPER T £0.02 T A1k
USOXJ ) %2473 F s mZ AL W ([NOx))

)

B R H R DR

A B R B OB SR X 2 TR
B - GRS~ BEIR - K R
*Jr FeAm s B E Tﬁﬁ% QR /N

C SRABBRAR AL > AR A BE BRI
*?: 51| B e it -

Energy Water Paper
13773 K HRaR

U Monitor consumption of . Install motion sensing induction ¢ Print on double sides

cooking oil in restaurants faucets T ER

AR BER B FE B B E A UK FEBR *  Recycle ink cartridges and
. Turn off lights when not in . Turn off water faucets when consumed papers

office not in use (] i = 6 K ) Kl

NEHA R > B EE AN > B PAKBEEH *  Paperless meetings

. Use electrical appliances with
Grade 1 energy label
i — SR AE IR R E &=

U Install air purifiers and maintain
room temperature at 25.5C

LA ERE g R

FELEHR 25,52

U Install LED lights in offices
and restaurants

N B T R A 5L EDRE

IEARAL &k

. Circulate meeting materials
through iPad to achieve
paperless working
70 i iPad 77 55 (% AT R -
LA B ARAL A 20
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Climate Change

Y (4

The Group is aware of impacts its operations have on the natural 782 B B3 HSE R B SRR 35 SR )
environment and climate. In view of the increasing attention to 5228 o B8 4 & 35 5045 55 b i B 1
climate change, the Group has established a Climate Change Policy AR > AN AR e SRR S AL BUR -
for guiding the Group in combating climate change. Adaption and A& 35 7 45 [ i 3 S 58 b - 3% UK B
mitigation measures are listed in the policy, which are applied to all B T 25 78 JiE Sy #85 it » 788 A Pir 7
business activities. Measures listed in the policy are presented in the EHEE o % BURE M ES R R

graph below:

:

Mitigation
Tk g

Adaptation
i

70

Establishing carbon reduction targets and
implementing carbon reduction measures

] 72 Tk i A 10 B G O o A T

Adopting energy efficiency practices, such as the
use of LED lights

HATHIREE DS flan i HLED&E

Exploring opportunities for the use of renewable
energy

B4 W] AR REUR A B A

Educating its employees to minimise carbon

emissions
HE B T BPER
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Identifying and assessing climate-related risks and
opportunities

i 1) 2 A A SR A A ) e g S A4

Incorporating climate-related risks into the Group’s
risk management system

1% SR A I JRL i Ay A A 4 B 1 e A B AR A
Minimising climate-related impacts and exploring
opportunities

ek R SR A B 572 010 5% 0



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

The Group’s operations generate greenhouse gases (“GHG”)
emissions indirectly also, from purchased electricity and the use of gas
bought from Towngas for restaurants in Hong Kong.

In 2022, total GHG emissions amounted to 1,216.60 tons of carbon
dioxide equivalent (“tCO2ze”), of which, direct emissions (Scope I)
and indirect emissions (Scope II) were 62.52 tCOze and 1,154.08
tCOze respectively. The increase of Scope I emissions was due to
the increased use of gas. Emission intensity was computed as 0.0086
tCO2e per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue. To reduce Scope 2
emissions from purchased electricity consumption which accounts for
99% of the total GHG emissions, we continue to adopt energy saving
and energy efficiency measures. For more details, please refer to the

BRBE AL & K va el (4)

A AR F 14 SE 55 R B TR ) B ) B SR
% ) % SRR L v A R i ]
e AR T 2 R ([ 2 5 ))

RoFE - F S BRERBEAERER
1,216.60M8 — FA Ak firc & 12 (W — AL B 5
) > b B B Pk (AR B —) B B2 BE
T (AR ) 43 Al B 62.52M8 — SR AL Bk B
K 1,154.08M8 — A A& = o #olE — PR
ST PR 2 R SR 3 o Bk
KT B R T T I AR 0.0086 ME — 4
b s /& o Ak R FE By I = i
JEE A Y o (B P (G T = SR A AR R ik

section headed “Environment and Natural Resources Conservation”. H999%) » FAM A A8 BR B Be K RE AL IR
THEE o FEE A2 BT ) A ﬁ%ﬂ%‘%
i ] — i o
2022 2021
e ety T T
Scope 1 (Unit: tCO2e) [ — (B - W R AR E =) 62.52 16.24
Scope 2 (Unit: tCO2e) o E (AL M Rk B 1,154.08 1,113.48
Intensity (per thousand Hong Kong W (BT ool as)
Dollars revenue) 0.0086 0.006
We are committed to reducing our GHG emissions by 1% before RIREE _F _ANFZMEHRRER

2026 with a 2021 baseline. To minimise GHG emissions from energy
use, we are committed to achieving a 10% usage of LED lights, and
implementing various energy saving measures. Guidelines for actions
to be taken during emergency situations under extreme weather
conditions are clearly listed in the Staff Handbook.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Suppliers and contractors are evaluated and selected based on their
ability to demonstrate sustainable practices, such as product quality
and adherence to environmental and safety standards. Suppliers who
are ISO 9001, ISO 14001, and OHSAS 18001 certified get priority.
During the year, the Group had 120 suppliers, all of which are in Hong
Kong.

ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁFﬁi%%ﬂ“tt’,#Z:*iE’J%@M@')‘
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Supplier investigation and assessment are overseen by the Procurement
Department and Supplier Investigating Team. Those who fail to meet
our stringent requirements are rejected and removed from our list of
suppliers, as indicated below.

Y T A A Ay R T A I
B/NEE o ARG BA B 2R
B 78 A A0 NI 36 T 44 B e B
WTFFR e

Background check
R A

Investigation

i A

Evaluation

af Al

All suppliers will be initially
screened based on their
background information.

*Eﬁ%%%%ﬂ%ﬂ*ﬁ%ﬂ“@?ﬁﬁ%

JRE P A T i 2

They are then chosen further
if they meet several criteria,
including material and product
quality, as well as equipment
reliability.

A 8 A E B i LA B
SO AT SR MRS TR EJ
HAR M HARE— 2 i

We may request samples to
confirm the quality of our
purchases if necessary.

A AT FE r ZRAR AR A

An annual evaluation is carried
out to evaluate the performance
of the providers.

TR IEAT — YRl DA RPAS {3t
JRE R KRB o

Those who do not meet our high
conditions are disqualified and
removed from our supplier list.
AFF B FAM A BBOH
A ST AR A1 1 1 42 e

[ o

i A i B ) B (fh e

) o

We strive to identify and evaluate risks of the supply chain also.
To mitigate the environmental and social risk of the supply chain,
suppliers willing to participate in environmental protection activities
and community activities are considered first. We search the news
media to verify their ESG related activities.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognises and values the high level of confidence its
customers have in its brand. As a result, we prioritise client satisfaction
and strive for perfection in all aspects of our business. We provide
high-quality products and services to ensure that our clients have the
most satisfying experience when they visit one of our restaurants.
During the year, we received 17 complaints, which is 8 more than last
year’s record, with 4 and 13 complaints relating to restaurant products
and services, respectively. The Group has not encountered product
recall due to health and safety reasons.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Food and Beverage Operation

We aspire to maintain the highest standard in dining services as a food
and beverage-focused company. In our restaurants, a set of detailed
operating procedures and a defined labour division are closely adhered
to. A manager is responsible for overseeing the overall operations of
restaurant branches and discharging duties such as conducting regular
or non-regular branch inspections, examining financial statements, and
awarding and penalising employees based on performance, using a
top-down approach to restaurant management.

We expect every employee, from frontline service providers to
restaurant managers, to take responsibility for maintaining a smooth
and responsible operation through teamwork. Considering the
extraordinary situation because of outbreak of COVID-19, we are
taking extra precautions to ensure that environmental hygiene and
food safety are maintained, ensuring that our customers have a clean,
pleasant, and comfortable dining experience.

Opening of restaurant

BREEPA UG

. Check the quality and use-by dates of food

. WEERWHRKRREY

. Prepare all ingredients and packaging materials
o MERERTH B KR

. Conduct thorough cleaning to ensure hygiene

o RUETER > AR

Restaurant operation

7 B A

BRBE - & B ol (A8

i J Bk B

B — R EER B R AR > &
9 7 SRR BRI A5 9 o R AR T o AT
1) 8 B 1 T ST — B R R I BR AR LR K
BT 2 T o KEBE B 3R BB R BE 2 5 1Y
REE S > WEATAEBE -
B E AR I - A BB R DL K
AR EACE R B B 88 % > SR A L
TR TT A AR

F R AR IR 5 N B B BEACHE > A" 2
g B BREAE > O - R
NEA K B FEATAE 4 o 2 i PR 507 ek i 2% 32
175 45 B T A A A R A DL A BAE R
WO AN TE B HE I - DA AR DR A R BR 55
R A TR A R R
i bR K 3 1) A B

U Report any defects in raw ingredients and the reasons to management

o IV HOE SRR R AT AT R B i R

] Separate raw and cooked food properly

. BESRAEAEY

U Maintain high alertness and a safety record of the restaurants

o RIEFREEE LR RREL SR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Restaurant closure
R BRSSO

. Perform stock-taking and examine the expiry dates and stock of raw ingredients to safeguard service quality

o EATRENGARS FASRR A SO A A o DURECRIRES B &
. Save unused materials properly to avoid contamination

o ZHERRAFRMEAAR - W5 Y

. Disinfect every part of the restaurant

o HIREER R A EOETIHE

. Check that all equipment function properly for the next day of business

o BAEPTARMERDIEFES > LIS PR EEEE
Stock Management

The quality of raw materials and other food items used is critical in
exquisite cuisine. Therefore, it’s critical to handle stock properly. The
methods for receiving and inspecting stock are outlined in our stock
management policy, in order to ensure quality of raw materials and
other ingredients. Only products that satisfy our criteria are accepted,
and those that do not are rejected. Reasons for rejection are required to
be explained to inform supervisors as soon as possible.

To avoid disruption of routine operations, a thorough inspection and
examination of purchased raw materials are required. Employees are
expected to double-check the number and type of products purchased
against the purchase records. They should also be aware of each item’s
packing requirements and storage terms. Regular stock-taking, on the
other hand, is carried out to ensure sufficient supply of materials.

Pleasant Customer Experience

Our dedication to accomplishing the objectives of “101% customer
satisfaction” implies constant improvement of the customer
experience. Throughout the eating experience, we are committed to
meeting their needs wherever possible. We educate our employees
that customer service is more than just putting a smile on their faces;
it’s about striving for excellence in every part of the experience, from
maintaining a pleasant environment to serving meals on time and
accurately so that customers feel well taken care of. Self-assessments,
including non-regular checks, are undertaken at restaurants and in the
Operations Department to truly understand our performance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

We make every effort to meet our customers’ needs. We take their
concerns and opinions seriously in the event of a disagreement. To
settle and resolve complaints, a customer-centric strategy is used, as
shown below.

BRBE AL & K va el (4)

BAMENWEF TR o« E—FF K
BIAH  RMBEHGHRELER -
7y R B > AR DAE B AR
W > AR PR e

1. Listen 2.  Apologise 3. Rectification 4.  Gratefulness
g R #1E &

. Try to understand . Do not judge rightor Take corrective . Appreciate customers’
customers from their wrong actions immediately opinions
perspective ) £} $5 S BIVER B4 Tt BH R E R
Bt E F Mg
THEF

. Do not interrupt
when customers
are expressing their
concerns
EEFRZACH
BIERF » NITERR
F

Following customers feedback, we encourage frontline workers of
restaurants to offer additional information about the matter. This
allows us to determine if there is any miscommunication between
customers and employees. If a particular case is reported, we conduct
an inquiry and publish a Customer Service Report to clarify the
situation. Following that, we correct the situation depending on the
findings of the investigation.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance of
relevant laws and regulations* that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

& Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for Product

Responsibility-related laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Information and Data Privacy

The Group is committed to safeguarding privacy of its own and
stakeholders’ information and data. To that purpose, we have
established standards to govern employee behaviour in this area. It
is forbidden to divulge the Group’s proprietary information without
permission, including trade secrets, market strategy, and customer and
employee personal information.

Employees must return all materials and equipment holding
proprietary information of the Group upon cessation of employment,
and they must not continue to deploy those sensitive materials,
including technical and commercial secrets, after leaving their roles.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that integrity and honesty are essential components
of every commitment. As a result, we expect all employees to maintain
high ethical standards and treat all business partners with respect.
Our Employee Handbook contains a detailed code of conduct that
forbids any sort of corruption. We give anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering training to concerned employees throughout the year. For
details, please refer to our website for the anti-corruption policy.

Bl K BUIR bR

AL BB AR B B B B E
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Solicit or
accept advantages

I 2 4

Violate non-disclosure
agreement

I T ik

Improper handling of
insider information

A b B Y £ S

Accept an award or gift with
economic value without prior
permission from the Group
RNREAR LB RS > %
LA 758 {58 (P 4 ) 2R )

Fail to declare a case where
family members hold a stock or
engage in business relationship
that is competitive to the Group
RA HHRZRE B A
Bl 2 B A AR 1 A 3 T B AR
4 15 1 DL

Disclose without permission
the Group’s confidential
information including trade
secrets, market strategy as well
as customer and employees
personal details

O ARG FF AT 4 5 A A T 1 B
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Sell or buy listed securities of
the Group or persuade others to
do so if the employee possesses
insider information or sensitive
information of the Group that is
not yet disclosed to public
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Prohibited Corruptive Behaviours

2L BT RCAT 2

Training

The Group also conducts programs for imparting integrity education
on a regular basis. During the year, the Group provided anti-corruption
and anti-bribery integrity trainings for staff. We encouraged our
directors and employees to attend the online forums organised by Hong
Kong Company Registry about Anti-Money Laundering Training.
The trainings covered the information of anti-money laundering
regulations, anti-terrorist financing techniques, and the reporting of
suspicious transactions. And we believe a clean working environment
can be created by continuously building and strengthening an internal
integrity culture.

Whistleblowing

Employees are responsible for informing the designated investigating
officer (who is designated by the Chief Executive Officer), of any
suspicious or known misbehaviour on part of any colleague. Email,
textual communication, and face-to-face meetings are all viable
options. The Group responds to reported cases in a timely and
fair manner. Please refer to our website for further details of the
whistleblowing policy.
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Investigation

Those who violate the code of conduct may face disciplinary action,
which may include an oral warning, a written warning, or termination
of employment, depending on the severity of the offense. Cases
involving criminal offenses are sent to law enforcement agencies,
including the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC),
for cases that violate the Bribery Prevention Ordinance.

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations® relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, or money laundering
that had a major impact on the Group during the year. There was no
concluded legal case regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or its employees within the year.

COMMUNITY
Community Investment

We take our social responsibilities toward the community where
we operate seriously. The Group is committed to promoting and
participating in community involvement and other social contribution
activities. As such, we proactively engage in various sponsorship and
fundraising initiatives to contribute to those in need. This year, the
total donation to charitable organisations amounted to HK$80,700, of
which HK$30,700 went to Yan Oi Tong Limited and HK$50,000 went
to Prisoners’ Welfare Fund. In the future, we will continue to evaluate
and fine-tune our efforts to promote positive ideals in society.

1 Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for Anti-corruption-
related laws and regulations.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS R

Considering all ESG aspects, the Group and its subsidiaries have  &F¥IRIE - #& LER& T H > AEH
established and implemented relevant internal policies and have T L 6 2 ) B vt R B A S 1B SR 7
designated specific departments to ensure that business operations 37 2535 # '] DA il R SE 15 58 0 — D) 8
adhere to all applicable laws and regulations. The list of applicable  FH ik S ih#L o A A0 1L FE VL BT B8
laws and regulations is as follows: IR

Laws and Regulations

Emissions . Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong Environmental
e o U EY)IEE RG] Protection
. Air Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong Kong TRk

o HECGERGRE SR

Employment . Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong Our People
i i o IR RG] M AR

. Employees’ Compensation Ordinance in Hong
Kong

o EE BB

. Sex Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong

o EUECHERIBAERGD

. Disability Discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong

o Bl GREREL RO

Health and Safety . Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and Our People
filt B B 22 4 subsidiary regulations in Hong Kong FMr9 N B

o il CBCEL A KA S Mt e i

Labour Standards . Employment of Children Regulations in Hong Kong Our People
- | o FrilE IR A MBI M N B
Product Responsibility . Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in Hong Kong Operating Practices
FE b AT o EUEEANE R FARR) B B
Anti-corruption . Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong Operating Practices
R &5 R XTI R R BEEH

B 2 PR
Sx——apgw 19
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2022 2021 2020
Social Performance e ERB B2 R T TR TR
Total Headcount BAY 250 302 126
By Employment Type 2 A R AT 1 73
Full-time N 185 169 84
Part-time el 65 133 42
By Geographical Distribution R i
(full-time) (E39)
Hong Kong iR 250 152 63
Singapore Bk - 17 21
By Age FRAE B
<31 3UKA T 44 44 19
31-50 31 500K 97 94 49
>50 50 PA 1 44 31 16
By Gender F
Male Bk 85 79 43
Female ot 100 90 41
By Education Level R EH KV
Bachelor’s degree or above Bl F2E 41 44 49
Below bachelor’s degree B4 PN EE 144 125 35
By Employee Category AR R SR 2 )
Management B G 36 47 19
General staff 3= 149 122 65
Employees’ Turnover Rate 1@ B Wi k& 112% 76% 40%
By Geographical Distribution Tz [ 35873 A
Hong Kong GiRE 114% 76% -
Singapore B 100% 82% —
By Age T4 i
<31 3UKA T 111% 107% 58%
31-50 31K 25055k 93% 61% 41%
>50 508 LA E 157% 81% 19%
By Gender T R
Male A 145% 91% 44%
Female pegis 85% 63% 37%

8 0 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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2022 2021 2020
Social Performance LB —F TR AE DR CRE
Employees’ New Hire Rate @ B A Bk 121% 121% 50%
By Geographical Distribution Fiz 158 35 43 i
Hong Kong s 121% 128% -
Singapore B = 59% =
By Age TR
<31 3K LT 123% 164% 89%
31-50 3K Z S0 95% 100% 35%
>50 505% A 177 % 123% 50%
By Gender Tl
Male FrE 152% 127% 42%
Female pegcs 95% 116% 59%
Performance of Health and Safety fi ki 81 % & K Bl
Work-related accidents TAGHK 5 1 0
Work-related injuries T 5 1 0
Lost days due to work-related R TAG SR % H ¥
incidents 241 1 0
Work-related fatalities TAET- N8 0 0 0
Percentage of Trained Employee 32l f& B A 7 tb(%)
(%)
By Gender SR
Male A 5.9% 2.5% 0%
Female g 4.0% 3.3% 2%
By Employee Category 22 A AR A R )
Management B 8.3% 4.3% 0%
General Staff — BT 4.0% 2.5% 2%
Average Training Hours (Hours)  “F 35 35 5l g 8 (/N K§)
By Gender Fie MRl
Male B 1.37 0.15 0.0
Female Eegis 0.70 0.23 0.3
By Employee Category T AR R Y ) 53
Management B g 1.17 0.24 0.0
General Staff — 8 T 0.97 0.17 0.2
Number of Suppliers it R B H 120 142 66
Hong Kong T 120 109 30
Other Regions At b [ - 33 36
Community Investment kI 4%
Donation (HKD) F5 158 (5 ) 80,700 330,740 68,300
B 2 4 il 4% A B 2 W)
Sz oaen 81
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2022 2021 2020
Environmental Performance Rui R - S TR R TFEAE
Total Energy Consumption (GJ)  REURIHFEA & (G5 ML H.) 7,687.95 9,963.58 7,449.48
Energy intensity (GJ/’000 HK$ REVR 2 B (AR H 19
revenue) AT (&) 0.05 0.06 0.05
Electricity (kWh) & (T FLIFF) 1,808,515 2,219,777.21 1,617,293.61
Gasoline TR = = =
Towngas (MJ) R R EEH) 1,177,296 1,954,712 1,622,886
LPG (MJ) BAL ARG ER) - 17,672.5 4,331.5
Tap water (tonnes) H A 7K (M) 25,059.00 28,512.48 20,123.23
Water intensity (tonnes/’000 HK$ TR JE (M5B s W T T
revenue) W i) 0.177 0.161 0.147
Emissions HEi
Air Pollutant 22 R A5 G
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) (kg) fit Bt ¥ (SOx) (T 72) 0.02 0.03 0.03
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) (kg) REILYI(NOX) (T 72) 4.73 6.46 5.40
Particulate Matters (PM) (kg) YR 9 (PM) (T 52) = - -
Greenhouse Gas Emissions % R R
GHG Emissions (tCOze) 1% SR PR i (M — 4R
{bh &) 1,216.60 1,129.72 830.27
GHG intensity (tCO2¢/"000 2 SR 2 B (M — 4R ik
HKS$ revenue) BT ok
%) 0.0086 0.006 0.006
Scope I (tCOze) 40 B — (WA — B AL B
&) 62.52 16.24 12.73
Scope II (tCOze) i [ — (W — Ak
) 1,154.08 1,113.48 817.54
Waste JBE W)
Hazardous waste (tonnes) 2 BE YY) (M) = - -
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes) $E T BEHEY) (MF) 20.29 15.81 15.38
Non-hazardous waste intensity 498 R Y T (W
(tonnes/’000 HK$ revenue) ik o aTH (& ) 0.00014 0.00009 0.00011
Packaging Material AL BB
Plastic materials (HK$) (Note (i)) SR AL R (5 ) (B 5 (1) 221,426.90  372,089.90  289,569.60
Paper box (HK$) (Note (i)) AR (s ) (M 3E () N/A A 105,158.00 52,878.33
Plastic materials (kg) R R (T ) 5769.50 N/ARNEH  N/A ANEH
Paper (boxes) AR (F8) 35 30 27
China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes: fif&E -

This document follows the best practices prevalent in corporate reporting in compliance A SCATHE B W32 2 BT AR 51 > 8RO AR e Y
with guidelines of HKEX. Computation of the GHG footprint is based on the Corporate SRR o UL SR AL Y A (A A B B

Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised edition) for Scope 1 and 2. HERIY (BT ) i — J 55 -

Calculation standards and methodologies for carbon emissions: T BRI = S A e ks

. “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and . T IR B R GE E E 1) CR VS R SR (P 2 -
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purpose) in 78 B 38 ) 1 1 SRR PR B B R
Hong Kong” published by the Environmental Protection Department (EPD) of AT

Hong Kong Government
The sources of published emission factors for reporting of carbon emissions are: o e B IR o ) A R A B 4 T

. Sustainability reports of China Light and Power (CLP), Hong Kong Electric . FPEEEE ) R IR R AT R A R R R
Company and Hong Kong and China Gas Company I

(i)  Due to limitation in data collection, the data for paper box and plastic materials () A BB IR R R R

was in HKD in 2021 and 2020. The data for paper box in HKD in 2021 and 2020 TR G LB IR B R DO R SIE - —
was related to the food and beverage business in Singapore, which was disposed T A B T TR A AR R S BRI n 3
in January 2022. A E i R ZEFS R B > TR BER i —

FoAFE-HE -

B i B AT LA 7
Yol R
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX TR G BN - e RE RN NE
%5l
KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
A S S AR TR GRS ~ e a RE RIS HTIBE Tk
A. Environmental
A BB
Aspect Al Emissions
JEmA1l PEiig ¥

General disclosure
— i R

Information on:
A BB R S R B PR~ K K R RS
BEMREEBEYNEASED

a) the policies; and

a)  BUK K

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

b) ST EEEAT A TR B HE B R R
B

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Environmental Management,
Laws and Regulations

BRIGAE PR~ IR AR

KPI Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. | Emissions, Performance Data
B SR IEALLL PR R I 45 B PECEE - Summary
Penty - R BIBIR =

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) | Climate Change
PSR AIEIEAL2 greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where | &3t

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).

L AT 1) % i 9 D 3 (o [ 2) T 5 SR A P

B (DAMERT 5 ) B (A ) B BE (0 DA g R LA

BRIHFMF )
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, | Waste
PSR TEALS where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of | BEHY)

production volume, per facility).
v 7 AR B W (LA MR BB ) B (A ) ) E (A
Dl B By - BIHRERHE) o
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B St S e TR GRS - dh & AR RS8R E LV T

A. Environmental

A, BRE

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) | Waste
PSR TEALA and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of | BE )

production volume, per facility).
v 7 AR 0 7 B S ) A (DAMRRT 5 ) B (i )
JFE N LA B IHEOE R o

KPIALS
B RATUIAERALS

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

il 2 5% A B4 PR B R A 2 BB B R BT BRI BN 2D
ﬁ% o

Environmental Management
BB E

KPI AL.6
B AUIAERALG

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

fhidt B A N M E BRI Ok > DA Rt s
SE WY AR S AR B E R B 2 BB E R B PR R 2P
B o

Waste, Environmental
Management

JESEY) ~ BRI

Aspect A2 Use of Resources
JE A2 BUR A

General disclosure

— B

Policies on efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

AR E IR (B FEREUR ~ 7K B HA A ) I L
% o

Resources Consumption

E IR AE

KPI A2.1
BB SR AR A2 1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in *000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BRI O3 1) B B SR R AR IR (N~ SR
{H ) #8FE & (LA T8 T B B w80 S 4 B (0 DA
BHA - BB

Energy Consumption

REVR A FE

KPI A2.2
B S AR SR AR A2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

ROFEK B R (DL g B A~ B TH SO
5 e

Water, Performance Data
Summary

IKER ~ R B R

KPI A2.3
bR BUNIE 1R A3

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

Tt S WY RE URE P 254 B R A B E AR T R
By Bk o

Environmental Management,
Resources Conservation

BRETEH - FIRORE

B i B AT LA 7
st |-




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BB A d RO s ()

SR IEA2.4

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

b2 AE L SR BBO P K R R A AR AT R~ R Y
KR E AR K 5 BB E AR B BRI AP B o

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

B St S he B TR GBS - & REREERII8E L T

A. Environmental

A, BE

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing | Water, Environmental

Management

IKER - BRI

KPI A2.5
B ATUIAERALS

Total packaging materials used for finished products
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced.

SR T PR 2 R Y A B (DA R B ) K (nE
FE A A AL

Packaging Materials,

Performance Data Summary

LR KRBT

B R AL

environment and natural resources and the actions

Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
JE A3 BRERRREN
General disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant | Environmental and Natural
— Pk impacts on the environment and natural resources. Resources Conservation
AR EEAT NI BRIE e R ARG IR I I B B | BRI K A A8 R R o
% o
KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the | Environmental Natural

Resources Conservation

the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
fil e £ 48 K% AT R BT N AR Y O SRR
B EE > KA E B EEE I RBUNITE) -

taken to manage them. BREE K B AN E IR R
T SERS TE B BB L R R EIRNE R B LD
PRIUE B B BT
Aspect A4 Climate Change
J& i A4 Rz 5k
General disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant | Climate Change
— = climate-related issues which have impacted, and AL
those which may impact, the issuer.
il | e R 3 © 58 T w] RE € #P B AT N A AR B H
R SRAGAH B R EL R BUR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues | Climate Change
PSR TEALL which have impacted, and those which may impact, | &3/t
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B St S e TR GRS - dh & AR RS8R E sk

B. Social

B. it®

Aspect B1 Employment

J& HiB1 D 1

General disclosure

— R

Information on:

A B HH SR - SR R BT AR R
W PERE - Z2oufl - RO DL R H AR E K
fEMAY

(a) the policies; and

(a) BUK; K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

(b) ST EEEAT NA B R S BEA A B A A R
B E R o

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

Employees’ Rights and
Welfare, Diversity and
Equal Opportunities,
Dismissal and Annual Leave
Laws and Regulations

1 B A HEA AR A
ESH WSS 3o
FRARFIAEAR ~ LR Bk R

KPIB1.1
B S AR A B 1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type
(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

AR~ A Y (R A R - AR R AL A K
ol 3 73 1 4 B AR o

Employees Composition,
Performance Data Summary

1 B AL ~ R B

KPIB1.2
B SRR 1B 1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

FEVER ~ A HA A B ot i ) 73 ) AR B TR o

Employees Composition,
Performance Data Summary

1 B AR ~ R BIBUR 2

B i B AT LA 7
Se-upgw ST
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B St S he B TR GBS - & REREERII8E sk

B. Social

B. i®&

Aspect B2 Health and Safety

J& i B2 it e S ¢ 4

General disclosure

— BB

Information on:
A BRI % 2 TEEREE K AR BRI B & ik M fa
£ -

(a) the policies; and

(@) BUOK K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

(b) PR EEAT NA R BN BIE B
1B ER -

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Health and Safety, Laws and
Regulations

f R B 22 4 ~ FE T SRR

KPI B2.1
B AR R B2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred
in each of the past three years including the reporting
year.

it 2 = AR (ELAE O A BB AR IR T ey AR
HZ -

Performance Data Summary

KB BRI =

KPI B2.2
] S8 UM A 1 B2.2

Lost day due to work injury.

P TR TAF H # -

Health and Safety, Performance
Data Summary

fERREL 2 4 ~ RIBBIRME

KPI B2.3
B S A AR B 2.3

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

SR FIT DR A BTk S i R B 22 2 il > LA AR B
17 KBTI o

Health and Safety
ik e B 42 4
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B St S e TR GRS - dh & AR RS8R E sk

B. Social

B. it®

Aspect B3 Development and Training

J& B3 B B B

General disclosure

— R

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.

A B4R T B AT AR TR Rk % B RE R
H oo Hipl BN TE B o

Training and Development

Al K gk

KPI B3.1
BRSBTS B3

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

P I B AR B AN () v AR B b AR B
J&@) & 7> 2 dIE 8 A ot .

Training and Development,

Performance Data Summary

Bl B gk~ R BUMR

KPI B3.2
] SR U A £ B 3.2

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category.
TV B AR B 38 0 04 45 44 0 B 58 U Y S
PRI o

Training and Development,

Performance Data Summary

Bl b gk~ R EBUBPE

Aspect B4 Labour Standards

J& Hi B4 &y L H

General disclosure Information on: Prevention of Child and
— R iR BB 1 T K i 25 TR Forced Labour,

(a) the policies; and

(@) BURK &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

(b) AT AT AN A B OR B A B IS A B
IR E R

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

Laws and Regulations
By 11 2 T e 53 il 55 T~
B RGER

KPI B4.1
B SRR 1B 4.1

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

i 2t g ok 48 T A (91 Y i e DA A B T R O o 5
T o

Prevention of Child and
Forced Labour

By 1 2 T X% 58 il 55 T

KPI B4.2
B S BB AU FE HE B4 .2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

At 77 3% B IR 5% T B o S 10 i BRI AP R

Prevention of Child and
Forced Labour

By 1k 28 T % 58 il 55 T

B 2 < i B A PR 24 )
CRURAEH
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PR B EBS.1

e [ B oy g L RE R RE

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
A S8 AR B TR G RBRE -~ g RE RIS HTIBE sk
B. Social
B. i®&
Aspect BS Supply Chain Management
J& HiBS 3 1 g 4 B
General disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks | Supply Chain Management
— ki E of the supply chain. Ak e i 3L
PR e Sl B b B At g SR B B BUR -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management,

Performance Data Summary

PURE AT B - R B 2

KPI B5.2
R AR R B5.2

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices are
being implemented and how they are implemented
and monitored.

it A7 PR R A~ e LA T A BRI AR
RO RER B E > DL LA BAE B AT R BT
% -

Supply Chain Management
It e e 3

KPI B5.3
[l S8 U A 1 BS 3

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
ittt 75y o R R S BRI X g e B R RO AL
AR AR BT S BE BT

Supply Chain Management
A g A P

KPI B5.4
S TR A BS .4

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

it 2t 7 PR R 7 I 02 o 22 T BR R ZE oty S IR S e
R > DL R AR BT ST ik -

Supply Chain Management
At e A 3
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B St S e TR GRS - dh & AR RS8R E sk

B. Social

B. &

Aspect B6 Product Responsibility

J& HiB6 b B AT

General disclosure

— R

Information on:
B T B AL 2 AR S 1 £ R L
B FLRE =B UL AR R

s
W
of
iy

(a) the policies; and

(a) BUK; K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

(b) ESFREEAT N A R BN BE A e
B R o

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

Product Responsibility
FE i BT

KPI B6.1
[l S8 UK FE 17 B6. 1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped to recalls
for safety and health reasons.

B o 8 JEE 9K 7 it A I R 2 4 ALt B 3L ol T A4
DN ERs =

Product Responsibility
FE i B AT

KPI B6.2
B S S AR B 6.2

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

W ) 9 2 oty B IR 5 A I 43 9 SR DA R A AT
H o

Product Responsibility
7 i FAE:

KPI B6.3
[l S8 BUMAE 1 B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

i 2t B A i I R I R k2 AT T 1 P A

Our trademarks are registered
under the Trade Marks
Ordinance (Chapter 559) and
the Trade Marks Rules
(Chapter 559A) for territorial
protection

FAM A i A 0 b S LR B
HRABE P B AR 91 (B 5597 )
PR B (SR S S9A T ) fft

KPI B6.4
BH S B AE 1B 6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

Sl ity B g i@ AR S A IR o

Product Responsibility
E dh AT

KPI B6.5
B S A AR 2 B6.S

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies and how they are implemented and
monitored.

e 2 2 G R OR B S AL BRBUR - DL AHBA AT
REEETTE -

Product Responsibility
7 i EAT

B i B AT LA 7
Se——pgg 91
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
B St S he B TR GBS - & REREERII8E sk

B. Social

B. i®&

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption

J& HiB7 R &5

General disclosure

— BB

Information on:

A BB LS ~ B~ TR R UE R ERRY

(a) the policies; and

(a) UK K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

(b) FESFREEAT AN A B ORBR M B I A B
BIE R

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

Anti-corruption, Laws and

Regulations

FCES ~ BRI

KPIB7.1
B S TR BT .1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

JAAE TR 3B BT AN BCH A B 42 I 9 45 19 205 W
AA AT B SR A R o

Anti-corruption
&5

KPI B7.2
BR S BUAE 1BT .2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

TRy ST S SRR AR o LA SR B AT B B AR
Tilk o

Anti-corruption
&5

KPI B7.3
S A R A BT 3

Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.

fdde ) 2 [ B TR LAY e &5 85 o

Anti-corruption
&5
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
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B. Social

B. it®

Aspect B8 Community Investment

J& i B8 A I

General disclosure

— R

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

DAL [ 2 BRUAR T M AT N Pl E A o 5 2 T
PRIECSETS I By & 2% BB A 15 ) 2 ) OR

Community Investment

RIS <y

KPI BS.1
B S SR BB

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport).

HEERERORE - BEET - S TER -
fahk ~ Xft - #E) -

Community Investment

GRITE S <y

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the | Community Investment
B S AR 1B .2 focus area. a7 <
TE ST 0 B0 10 U (0 < B BIRR )
B < B A B )
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul, aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 15 November 2016 and redesignated to
a non-executive Director from 4 October 2021 to 4 January 2023,
and was redesignated from a non-executive Director to an executive
Director with effect from 5 January 2023. He has been appointed as
the Chairman of the Board, with effect from 14 June 2019. Mr. Ng
Man Chun Paul was also the chief executive of the Company from
15 November 2016 to 1 December 2020. Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
obtained a Bachelor of Science from Columbia University, New York,
the United States of America in May 1993. Prior to joining the Group,
he has worked in various international investment banks and securities
firms and is experienced in the area of finance and investments.
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul is (i) a cousin of Mr. Ng Ting Ho, an
executive Director; and (ii) a cousin of Mr. Ng Ting Kit, a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (“Mr. Ng”), aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director on 5 February 2016, re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 16 June 2017 and was redesignated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director with effect from 3 July 2018. He
has been appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company
with effect from 1 December 2020. He is experienced in banking
and finance, and previously worked in various banks and financial
institutions. He is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Ng obtained his Bachelor of Commerce in Finance and Financial
Economics Degree from the University of New South Wales in
2008. Thereafter, Mr. Ng further completed his Master of Science in
Financial Mathematics Degree from the Cass Business School of the
City University in London in 2014. Mr. Ng is (i) a cousin of Mr. Ng
Man Chun Paul, an executive Director; and (ii) the younger brother of
Mr. Ng Ting Kit, a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Ng
is a non-executive director of Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 8081) which is a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Mr. Chan Chi Fung (“Mr. Chan”), aged 42, was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 1 September 2021. He is also
a director of the subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chan holds an
Associate Degree in Business Administration in Financial Services
from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan has approximately
18 years of experience in the financial market. He worked in China
Jianxin Financial Services Limited (formerly known as Win Fung
Securities Limited) from December 2013 to October 2016 and his last
position was a director and was responsible for managing the day to-
day trading operation. Mr. Chan worked in China Demeter Securities
Limited (formerly known as Trinity Finance Investment Limited)
from October 2010 to November 2013 and his last position was a
responsible officer. Mr. Chan is a director and a responsible officer of
China Demeter Securities Limited, which is licensed by the Securities
and Future Commission for engaging in Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (Advising on securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management)
regulated activities. Mr. Chan is responsible for managing the day-to-
day operation of China Demeter Securities Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (“Mr. Chan”), aged 36, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 13 November
2017. He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and the
audit committee, and a member of the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan has over 9 years of accounting experience. He
worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2010 to June
2015 and is a member of CPA Australia. He obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Business (Banking and Finance) from the Queensland
University of Technology in 2009. Mr. Chan was an independent non-
executive director of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8147) from July 2017 to July 2018 which is a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Huisheng International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1340) from 22 March 2019 to 30 June 2022, a company listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. On 9 January 2020, he was
appointed as the company secretary of Sau San Tong Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8200), a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (“Mr. Yum”), aged 44, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 13 November 2017. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company and a member of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee. Mr. Yum has more than 10 years of
management experience in the corporate and financial industry. He
has served as a director in several financial institutions from 2008 to
present. Currently, he serves as a managing director of Ayasa Globo
Financial Services Limited, principally engaged in providing financial
services and as a director of Greenpro Trust Limited, a company
principally engaged in providing a full range of trust services. Mr.
Yum graduated with a Bachelor of Science in Finance degree from the
University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign in 2001.

Mr. Hung Kenneth (“Mr. Hung”), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 27 October 2014
and is a member of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee. He holds a degree of Bachelor of Science
awarded by Woodbury University in June 1995. Mr. Hung has
extensive experience in the entertainment industry. From March 2008
to September 2010, Mr. Hung was the China business development
director for Golden Sun Films Distribution Ltd. From October 2010 to
June 2012, Mr. Hung was the chief operation officer for Top Action
Culture Development Co. Ltd. From July 2012 to October 2013.
Mr. Hung was the business development director for Star Alliance
Movies (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Mr. Hung was the chairman of Sino Vision
Worldwide Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8086) (“Sino Vision™)
from September 2016 to May 2017 and an executive director of
Sino Vision from May 2017 to November 2017. Mr. Hung was an
executive director of Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8081) from February 2014 to August 2018, was an independent
non-executive director of M-Resources Group (formerly known as IR
Resources Limited) (Stock Code: 8186) from March 2015 to April
2019, and has been appointed as an executive director of Smart City
Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8268) on 29 July 2019,
all of which are companies listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lai Ho Bun (“Mr. Lai”), the chief operations officer (COO) and
a director of Star Kitchen Catering Group (HK) Limited, joined the
Group since October 2019. He has over 30 years of experience in the
food and beverage industry and has worked as a management in a
number of food and beverage company. He has expertise in operation,
management of food and beverage business. He is responsible for
managing day to day operation and management of food and beverage
business segment of the Group.

Mr. Lam Ka Hang, the managing director of China Demeter Securities
Limited, joined the Group since September 2016. He is responsible
for overall business development, operations and management
of China Demeter Securities Limited. He has over 20 years of
experience in securities and futures businesses, and has worked in a
number of securities firms. He has expertise in brokerage operations,
sales management and market operations of securities and futures
businesses. He is the Committee Member of Hong Kong Securities
Professionals Association and Life Honorary President of Hong
Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional Commentators
Limited. He is a responsible officer recognised by the Securities and
Futures Commission (the “SFC”) for engaging in the Type 1 (dealing
in securities), Type 4 (Advising on securities) and Type 9 (Asset
Management) regulated activities. He was also a responsible officer
recognised by SFC for engaging in the Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) regulated activities from 2006 to 2015.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping (“Ms. Chan”), the company secretary of the
Company, joined the Group since August 2014. Ms. Chan holds
a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours) in
Accounting from Lingnan University in Hong Kong. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chan
has over ten years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management and previously worked in international accounting
firms before joining the Company. She has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Power Financial Group Limited
(Stock Code: 0397) on 30 September 2021 and Theme International
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 990) on 6 July 2022, all of which are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 17.50A(1) OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

Changes in information of Directors since the date of the 2022 interim
report of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

—  Mr. Ng Ting Ho Director’s fee and salary has been adjusted to
HK$86,080 per month with effect from 1 January 2023.

—  Mr. Chan Chi Fung Director’s salary has been adjusted to
HK$64,937 per month with effect from 1 January 2023.

—  Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul has been redesignated from a non-
executive Director to an executive Director with effect from 5
January 2023. His Director’s fee and salary has been adjusted to
HK$50,000 per month with effect from 5 January 2023.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
and to instituting procedures to ensure integrity, transparency and
quality of information disclosed thereby enhancing the value of the
Company for its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high standards
of corporate governance practices and the corporate governance
principles of the Company are adopted in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles, code provisions and certain recommended best practices set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Part
2 of Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board considers that, the Company has complied, to the extent
applicable and permissible, with the code provisions as set out in the
CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2022 and the Directors
will use their best endeavours to procure the Company to comply
with such code and make disclosure of deviation from such code in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with all the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and for overseeing the business of the Group. The Board
has delegated authority and responsibility to the senior management
for the day-to-day operations of the Group. Key matters will remain
as the responsibility of the Board whose approval will be required.
In addition, the Board has also delegated responsibilities to various
management committees. Details of those committees are set out
in this corporate governance report. Such delegation is reviewed
periodically.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul (Chairman)
(redesignated from non-executive Director on 5 January 2023)

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Chi Fung

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
(redesignated to executive Director on 5 January 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Mr. Hung Kenneth

Details of the members of the Board, including the relationship (if
any) between the Board members, are provided under the section
headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of the annual
report.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors had
participated in continuous professional development with respect to
directors, duties, relevant programmes and seminars or had perused
reading materials and updated information in relation to business
and industrial development. The Directors had provided the relevant
training records to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training
to all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each
Director is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is
fully aware of his roles, functions, duties and responsibilities under the
GEM Listing Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the governance policies of the Group.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has met
the requirements of Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules
of having a minimum of three independent non-executive Directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and
related financial management expertise.

In order to ensure that independent views and input of the independent
non-executive Directors are made available to the Board, the Board
as well as the Nomination Committee of the Board are committed to
assessing the independence of the Directors annually with regards to
all relevant factors related to the independent non-executive Directors
including: (i) the required character, integrity, expertise and experience
to fulfill their roles; (ii) no involvement in the daily management
of the Company; (iii) the commitment to their independent roles
and to the Board; and (iv) no financial, business or family or other
material relationships with other members of the Board or substantial
shareholders or circumstances which would interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgment. Independent non-executive Directors
are required to give an annual confirmation of their independence
to the Company pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
This practice has been observed and the Company considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Chairman had held
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors to discuss issues that they wish to raise
regarding the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

For further details of the terms of appointment of the non-executive
Directors, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report —
Directors and Directors’ service contracts” of the annual report.

BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS

16 Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2022. The Directors use their best endeavours to ensure that for all
Board meetings to be held, Board minutes are kept by the company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”), and be open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Director is entitled to have access
to the board papers and related materials and have unrestricted access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and have the
liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

The Board has established three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
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The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings and the general HE R B R g R D
meetings are as follows: mr :

No. of meetings
attended/eligible to attend
HE B B RS R B

Annual Special
Board General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
HEg Jie i 5
Names of Directors ik HAERE Rk &
Executive Directors: HiTES :
Mr. Chan Chi Fung = 16/16 1/1 0/0
Mr. Ng Ting Ho RIEWE S 15/16 1/1 0/0
Non-executive Director JEPfTEF
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul (Chairman) B SR S ()
(redesignated to executive (R _F =4
director on 5 January 2023) — H A H L2
PATEF) 15/16 1/1 0/0

Independent non-executive Directors: By IEHATE S ¢

Mr. Chan Hin Hang BRATAT e R 16/16 1/1 0/0

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (A% 16/16 1/1 0/0

Mr. Hung Kenneth HHE Rt 16/16 1/1 0/0
AUDIT COMMITTEE EHRZREY

Audit Committee of the Board was established on 26 October 2011, FEHEFZHFEZEZEFO R _F——44F
written terms of reference were adopted in compliance with the T H 1+ /S H WL > E 8 H & GEM
GEM Listing Rules. The main functions of the Audit Committee ETEAZ FHE R B E -
of the Board is to recommend to the Board on the appointment, @ HZZE B &2 FERAEH BT - &
reappointment and removal of the external auditors; to approve the I Kz & (1 1 F] &1 H& A2 3Bl 1) 25 2 5 1 1
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors as well £ 5 L i ZNIE A2 BCAT 2 P 6 S 25 ¢
as any questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditors; to review X > M £ 5 ji& FH Bl 5% 55 A2 B Al BE AT o AR
the quarterly, interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group; RAERZAMEE FRAEHZ ZF
and to oversee the Company’s financial reporting, risk management B P AR R RIRE KA
and internal control procedures. N ) A R R~ JRL B R B e oA R AR
5
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Audit Committee of the Board consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Hin Hang (chairman of the
committee), Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien and Mr. Hung Kenneth.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held
4 meetings. The Audit Committee has reviewed the final results for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and also the quarterly and interim
results during the year ended 31 December 2022, and has reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems, and discussed with the
management and the external auditor about the issues concerning the
accounting policies and practices which may affect the Group, along
with financial reporting matters.

The members and attendance of the Audit Committee for the year

ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name of Audit Committee members

BEMEZR M HEEA

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (Chairman)
BRATAT 2k ()

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
s & ek

Mr. Hung Kenneth
AR

1B S5 v ol (4

EFEEHRZZEGNABUFE =2BL
FATE S - MR e (ZREE
J) ~ AT SRS R AR -

BE_F_—_HF+_A=1+—HIF
o wFEEAGFEANG BT R -
FRZEGOHEMABE T F+ 2
H=+—HIEFEZ RIPEHLEE
T A= R ILEEZFE
Lo B SE A > Al O d v JeL B A B B 1 R
PERA o M BLUE G K S AR B R
sy T HE R AR 4 1 1) B RO BRI
R I el R A % B 5 o S L

WME_F__HF+_A=Z+—HILFEE
ZEMZBENA LT

Number of
meetings attended/

eligible to attend
U a Rk
A% H R B

4/4

4/4

4/4

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee of the Board was established on 26 October
2011. Written terms of reference were adopted in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee of the Board,
with the majority of its members being independent non-executive
Directors, is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration policy of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee has to consult the chairman and/or the chief executive
officer of the Company on their proposals relating to the remuneration
of other executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee may seek
independent professional advice as it considers necessary in respect of
its function.

The Remuneration Committee of the Board consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Hin Hang
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien and Mr.
Hung Kenneth.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings. It reviewed the remuneration policy of
the Company, assessed the performance of the executive Directors and
senior management and recommended specific remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management to the Board with reference
to the level of responsibilities of the individual Director, the scope of
operation of the Group as well as the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has granted
shares options under the share option scheme of the Company to
certain Director and employees of the Group, further details of which
are set out in section headed “Directors’ Report — Share Option
Schemes” of the annual report. The Remuneration Committee took
into account the purpose of the abovementioned grant of share options
made to the Director and employees, which was to recognise and
reward them for their past contribution to the Group. After considering
the performance of and contribution made by each grantee under the
aforementioned grant, the Remuneration Committee was of the view
that it was appropriate for the Company to make such grant without
any performance target or clawback mechanism, which aligns with
the purpose of the share option scheme of the Company to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions made by eligible participants of
the scheme, and also to motivate the Group’s management to further
achieve and contribute to the growth and development of the Group,
which also aligns the interests of the grantees with those of the
Company and the Shareholders.
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The members and attendance of the Remuneration Committee for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

1B S5 v ol (4

2 H E E RS S

Number of

meetings attended/

eligible to attend

Name of Remuneration Committee members RS Ve
HiMEE g A4 B8R R R
Mr. Chan Hin Hang (Chairman) 2/2
BRATAT S ()

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien 2/2
(B8 sy

Mr. Hung Kenneth 212
R4

NOMINATION COMMITTEE RHZERE

Nomination Committee of the Board was established on 26 October
2011. Written terms of reference were adopted in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee of the Board is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed appointment
and re-appointment.

The Nomination Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (chairman
of the Committee), Mr. Chan Hin Hang and Mr. Hung Kenneth.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
of the Board held 1 meeting and has reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the effectiveness of the diversity
practices under the board diversity policy of the Company, reviewed
the nomination of directors policy and assessed the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors.
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The members and attendance of the Nomination Committee for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name of Nomination Committee members

RHZREMEEH

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
BRATAT 5B

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (Chairman)
fEse B A ()

Mr. Hung Kenneth
BRI

BE-Z-_F+A=+—HiEE
ZRATEERERELEELAT

Number of
meetings attended/

eligible to attend
HRCE e
A% R

1/1

171

171

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the members of senior management (comprising
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and senior management)
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 by band is as
follows:

O R AR B i

AL AR LR R B (TS~ JF
PATE R KL m R E AR R E —F
T AT HIEEEZH e
EiEE ST

Number of
individuals
AN
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 3
T W 5T 2 91,000,000 C
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2
#EH1,000,001 7T £ 45 ¥1,500,0000C
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 0
H#EH1,500,001 7T Z #5 %2,000,0000C
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1
H#E2.000,001 7T £ #E¥2,500,0000C
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 0
# % 500,001 70 2 #%3,000,0007C
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1

#H3.000,001 70 2 5 %3,500,0007C

Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 12A and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) on 1 January 2019 and amended on 11 April 2022 to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

In order to achieve a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance and
ensures that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Company will also take into account its own business
model and specific needs from time to time in forming its perspectives
on the Board diversity. The Company will endeavour to ensure that
the diversity of Board is achieved and appointments of Directors are in
the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates to be appointed to the Board and the
continuation of those appointments will be based a range of objective
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, race, skills and professional experience. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Implementation and monitoring

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for identifying
suitable qualified candidates to become members of the Board.
In assessing potential candidates of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will give adequate consideration to the diversity
perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss and propose any
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy as it thinks fit, and
recommend any such amendments to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition taking into
account the diversity perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy are summarised as follows:

A B REHEZ T BRI
W R 2 M 2 ou b R A an
T

Board Diversity Perspective

EFEFLUAHER

Executive Director

PATES

Designation -5
wei U

Age Group £
Al AL m

Length of Service (year) B

MW ()

Professional Experience 2

gpme  fad

Management | Accounting and Finance

# it & G

Educational Background

warn 28

Science

Independent non-executive Director

WL PAT

Finance Multi-media

£ EZ28

Finance

£t

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of six male members
and currently has no female Director. The Board would continue to
take initiatives to identify suitable candidates so as to appoint at least
one female Director on the Board no later than 31 December 2024. To
achieving gender diversity on the Board, the Board has (i) set a target
to have at least one female Director by 31 December 2024, and (ii)
placed emphasis on hiring practices to ensure that qualified female
candidates are given equal consideration alongside male counterparts.
The Company will ensure that, by placing emphasis on gender
diversity in the succession planning process, to have a diverse pipeline
of candidates ready to step into leadership positions when vacancies

arise.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The details of workforce composition are disclosed in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the annual
report.

The Group is committed to employ the appropriate staff for a suitable
position regardless of the gender as its recruitment strategy. The
Group has various departments which are led by different male and
female staff, and in order to enhance efficiency, the Company has
not set a measurable objective for achieving gender diversity at
workforce level. On a merit-based policy, the Company is committed
to providing equal opportunities to its staff in respect of recruitment,
training and development, job advancement, and remuneration and
benefits.

NOMINATION POLICY

The nomination policy has been adopted by the Board with effect from
1 January 2019. Any subsequent amendment of the nomination policy
shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee and approved by the
Board.

1. General Provisions

1.1 The Nomination Committee has formulated a nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) to standardise and enhance
transparency for the nomination procedures and the process
and criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in
selecting and recommending candidates as Directors, in
order to ensure that the Board shall have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

1.2 The Nomination Committee shall be responsible for
reviewing the Nomination Policy and disclosing the
same in the corporate governance report to ensure full
compliance with the CG Code, the GEM Listing Rules, the
Bye-laws of the Company and other relevant provisions.
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2.  Selection criteria for nominating a Director

2.1

22

112

The selection criteria for assessing the suitability of a

proposed candidate as a Director which shall be taken as

reference by the Nomination Committee are listed below:

(a)

(b)

(O]

(d)

(e)

®)

(2)

integrity and reputation;

skill, accomplishment and experience relevant to the
Company’s business;

commitment in respect of available time;
existing and potential conflicts of interest;
diversity of the Board, including but not limited to

gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience of the Directors;

not being prohibited by law from being a Director;
and

any other factors as the Nomination Committee
may deem fit to consider in the best interests of the
shareholders of the Company.

The above selection criteria are not exhaustive nor

conclusive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion

to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.
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3.  Procedures for nomination of a Director

3.1 Any Director may nominate a candidate for appointment,
election or re-election as a Director by the Board or at a
general meeting. Upon obtaining the required information
from the candidate as listed above, the Nomination
Committee shall evaluate whether such candidate is
qualified to be appointed, elected or re-elected into the
Board based on the criteria as set out above and the relevant
GEM Listing Rules and the policies of the Company.

3.2 The Nominate Committee shall convene a meeting to
discuss and consider the recommendation of the candidate
to the Board for appointment, election or re-election as a
Director.

Please refer to the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights — Procedures
for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director” of this
report for procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a Director.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Directors are responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, make recommendations to the Board, review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements. Also, the Directors are responsible
for reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
its disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report
and developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance practices and compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements including compliance with the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

BB ()

3. RH/EHRMBF

3.1 ALfUHEHARAREN > BE
HEBRBRRE LR
N b SR B R E ERHE > 4R
ZT B AR B AR - A
B GEM £ T BRI B AR 2 ]
AT % 4 s R B
BT - S ERNEEE
E -

32 #HZEEOEAMeEE &L
FHRIERE THEF GO REANE
RURAT - MR R E R -

A B R R A AT el e A\ 2o
AR > W52 BACHR S TR 2 R - i
R R R R R

e FEREL 11

ERRATBETAEEIREE > DB K
WA AR 2% RIAE A S0 3R 75 TR 2 BUR KE
B~ R E R - O KRR
R 2 BUR B BB A R R B RUE
AU - 7Sk > EERAHRBHAR A
AR S VA ST R R ST A DL S R AE 4 3
BIRHE AR 2 PR ALE - IS
Wt K B R R A B B S 2 AT BT
S B ) 1 (an ) > DA R nd B BE 2%
I MR AR

EFEFOMAAEEREE —F
T A=+ —HILFEEEAEER TR
L3Sy R I B RRE 7 T (B4 ST 4
BRI 2 BUR RS

B 2 < i B A PR 24 )
CRURAEH

113



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

10 & 8 ¥ ek ()
INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Summary

The Company and the Group have engaged a consultant to conduct
a review on the Group’s internal control environment and report to
the Audit Committee and management for the purpose of evaluation
of the documentation, effectiveness and efficiencies of the control of
the Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems in respect of the year ended
31 December 2022. The Board has conducted a review of the internal
control system and the effectiveness of it operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022, including
financial, operational and compliance control, and risk management
functions. That will ensure that the Directors will oversee and monitor
the Group’s overall financial position so that the interests of the
shareholders are well protected and covered. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control by considering the reviews performed
by the consultant. The Board and the Audit Committee considered
that the risk management and internal control system are effective
and adequate during the year. The Company complies with the code
provisions relating to internal control contained in the CG Code.

Risk Management Philosophy

Risk taking is a necessary and accepted part of the Company’s
business. Effectively managing risk is a competitive necessity and
an integral part of creating shareholder value through good business
practices designed to ensure that the Company achieves its strategic,
business and governance objectives, and protects its corporate
reputation, values and integrity.

Risk management applies to all aspects of the Company’s business
and forms a critical part of developing strategic plans, preparing
operational plans and budgets, completing detailed project approval
requests and designing and managing project plans.
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Risk Management Responsibility

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the oversight of
the Company’s risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for reviewing
and assessing the major risks facing the Company and reviewing,
approving and monitoring the Company’s approach to addressing such
risks annually.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is responsible
for the oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management systems and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee oversees the risk management process and reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems by
conducting the following procedures:

. reviewing the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee, or by
the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems;

. discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed its
duty to have an effective systems; this discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

. considering major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

. reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
. reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any

material queries raised by the auditor to management about the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response;
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. reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

. acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

. ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

. conducting exit interviews with any director, manager, financial
controller or internal credit control manager upon their
resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his departure;

. preparing work reports for presentation to the Board and to
prepare summary of work reports for inclusion in the Group’s
interim and annual reports;

. considering the appointment of any person to be a committee
member, auditors and accounting staff either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional committee member, auditors and
accounting staff or dismissal of any of them;

. reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the relevant code
provisions in the CG Code; and

. considering other matters, as defined or assigned by the Board
from time to time.

Inside Information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
event that may impact the price of the shares of the Company or
their trading volume and decides whether the relevant information is
considered inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as
reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA
of the SFO. Executive Directors also may have responsibility for
approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by the
Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to time.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Process

During 2022, the Company engaged a consultant who conducted an
interview with key personnel and senior management of the Group,
reviewed the internal control manual and related documents and
performed site visit to observe the daily operation to understand the
Company’s risk management and internal control system. The findings
on internal control and enterprise risk management were summarised
and was distributed to the Audit Committee for its review. The Audit
Committee concluded that the Company had in place effective and
adequate risk management and internal control systems. The Company
has ensured that the risk management and internal control provisions
under the CG Code have been complied with. The Board, has
confirmed that the adequacy of the resources and staff qualifications
and experiences of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions during its annual review on the risk management and internal
control systems.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on
(1) the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial
results; (ii) the probability that the risk will occur; and (iii) the velocity
or speed at which a risk could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks as
follows:

. Risk elimination — senior management may identify and
implement certain changes or controls that in effect eliminate the
risk entirely.

. Risk mitigation — senior management may implement a risk
mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity or the
severity of the risk to an acceptable level.

. Risk retention — senior management may decide that the risk
rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable for the Company
and that no action is required. The risk would continue to be
monitored as part of the risk management program to ensure the
level of risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.
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Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks as

follows:

A

118

Credit risk management

For loans granted by the Group, the Credit Committee will hold
meetings on a monthly basis to review the repayment record of
the loan interests and loan principals. The Credit Committee will
assess the credit quality of the outstanding loan portfolio and see
if provision needs to be made for non-performing loans.

The Credit Committee will regularly report to the Board relating
to the repayment record of the loan interests and loan principals
in the loan portfolio, its components and other matters, which
need to be bought to the attention of the Board.

Given that the targeted customers of the Group’s money lending
business are well-heeled and reputational individuals and well-
established companies, in the case of provision of short-term
loans for the purpose of short-term financing for personal/
business needs, the Group will generally not require collateral as
it may not be viable for such customers to provide collaterals and
thus requiring such would only deter them. Moreover, for short-
term loans, the creation and release of collaterals would create
unnecessary administrative cost to the Group. Nevertheless, the
Group would apply the established credit approval policy and
process to assess each and every potential customer such that, the
Group would only approve any loans on the condition that the
Group is of the view that any provision of loan will not constitute
a high credit risk and the Group would usually require customers
to provide signed and post-dated bank cheques with payments in
accordance with tailor made repayment schedules. For details,
please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Money Lending Business” of the annual report.

We are exposed to credit risks during the course of our business
in providing financing services to our customers for trading on a
margin basis.
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The credit assessment of a customer is performed during account
opening through enquiry and collection of information so as
to verify the customer’s net worth and income, and evaluate
their risk profile by understanding their financial condition,
investment preferences and investment experience. We did
not independently obtain credit information from third parties
(such as any credit reports on our customers) during our credit
assessment process. However, given that (i) our financing
service are provided with listed securities pledged as collaterals;
(ii) margin ratio is assigned for each individual securities; (iii)
marginable amount of each of our customer is determined based
on (a) the market value of securities held under the securities
trading account; and (b) the margin ratio for each securities;
and (iv) our margin call policy and trading limit set for each
securities trading account would limit the maximum loss due
to customer’s default, our Directors consider that our credit
assessment procedures are appropriate and sufficient to manage
our credit risk. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Services
Business” of the annual report.

Business and operational risk management

The Credit Committee is responsible for the assessment of the
business and operational risks and implementation of credit
policies. Monthly meetings are held among Credit Committee
members and regular meetings are held between the Credit
Committee and the Board to review the operating activities of
the money lending business.

We have established internal reporting procedures to report
any suspected case (including but not limited to employee
misconduct and fraud). We have formulated credit policies and
operational procedures (which are continuously updated), and
implemented initiatives which include:

- segregating duties between credit assessment, loan file
reviews and loan approval to establish checks and balances
in the loan approval processes;

—  checking and recalculating loan repayment schedules
upon loan settlement to ascertain the accuracy of interests
charged in accordance with the stated effective interest
rates;
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- adopting staff handbook which documented our
requirements on employees’ code of conduct and contained
reporting policy as a procedure guideline for staff to report
fraud or suspicious fraud case, if any;

- adopting information security guidelines to prevent
unauthorised access to our information system and
to reduce the operational risk caused by failures of
information technology systems by maintaining backup
data for the key data processing systems; and

- strengthening our anti-money laundering monitoring efforts
via verification of identity, record keeping, recognition of
suspicious transactions, reporting of suspicious transactions
and staff education and training.

Liquidity risk management

The Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework to meet the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.
Specifically, in conducting the money lending business, our
management will monitor our Group’s cash inflow and outflow
on a weekly basis to ensure the accuracy of cash collection
and deployment and that there is no shortfall in cash which
may interrupt our Group’s business. The Group will maintain
sufficient cash buffer to meet the working capital requirement
and liquidity needs for our business operations in the coming
months. The Group’s major liquidity needs mainly include the
settlement of operating expenses such as food cost, premises
rental and employees’ remuneration. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group had not experienced any shortfall in
cash for meeting the above liquidity needs.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2022

&),

- RAVEE T EPEAR

g BAT A HLAER 20K > Rt
O BUR - 2y AR B R R
BERVHE A (WA RO RE 73T

DA ]I

- BRAEE L2 PR

EHEAREEFEE RS > I
A 3 TR R P R AR AT
(GE € 30 RPN ENSE FUES N
RS GUECS (B e

- ER SR - RUBRIRAT - Wk
AT BES 5y ~ Hort Al BE 5L 5 LA
Fofigé B2 Kl n o B 1 8

B -
e I 4P

% (9] 2 % 373 1 O B A L g A
FHAEZE » DAyw R AGE B - il
B A= B0 4 75 oK DA R U ) 1 4 R
ToR o AN HE B BUR B E B AR
BLRE R EIA B & & /oK > et
AR 7T B 4 ot 4 T A2 A A I
RRBEEFT K - B#EmME > &
B Je i A SE 05 IRF - A5 3L i g B
RAREEMPABESRA LKL > A3
Bl 4 WO B K i B R > RER IR
L BB A B G R R E &
Rk o ALEEAE AR NBL 2%
7 1A DAY 2 R A B A A4 [ 2E T
P ST R R E B &
Ko AEBMIERBHELSTRESE
ELFE &5 A BB 7 > 0B AR
WA B e KRB FHM - B2 —F
oY A=t —HIEE s &
A 191 517 48 3 B AT o] 35 < e T A v
L Eal Bl & K o



“@

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

We are required to maintain at all times the liquid capital which
is not less than the minimum requirement as set out under
the financial resources rules and financial return (“FRR”).
Our accounts department is responsible for the preparation of
the financial returns and the computation of liquid capital in
accordance with the requirements under the FRR. The monthly
financial returns are submitted to our responsible officers for
review and approval before submission to the Securities and
Future Commission (“SFC”) no later than three weeks after
each calendar month. Our accounts department also conducts
the liquid capital computation on a daily basis which is reviewed
by our responsible officers to ensure that we are able to comply
with the FRR requirement on an ongoing basis.

During 2022, our Group did not have any material
noncompliance with the minimum liquid capital requirement as
set out by the SFC.

Legal and regulatory risk management

The credit approval policy and process as described in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Money Lending Business — Internal Control and Loan Approval
Process” of the annual report has been designed to ensure that
the Group’s money lending business operates in accordance with
the Money Lenders Ordinance and applicable laws.

The Credit Committee has adopted suitable documentation and
procedures in the application and assessment process to calculate
the effective interest rate of all loan applications and ensure
that the procedures are in compliance with the Money Lenders
Ordinance. The Credit Committee and the Board will, from time
to time, review such documentation and procedures to ensure
the documentation and procedures to be in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations.
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Depending on the nature of food and beverage business of the
Group, the following are the principal types of licences that may
be required for the operation of our restaurants in Hong Kong:

(a) Food business licence, including restaurant licence for
restaurant operation, restricted food permits for sales of
live fish, shell fish, sashimi and oysters to be eaten in a
raw state, and food safety licence for food importation
and distribution which are required to be obtained before
commencement of the relevant food business operation;
and

(b) Liquor licence, which is to be obtained before
commencement of sale of liquor in the restaurant premises.

We are required to obtain certain licences in relation to our
restaurant operations in Hong Kong. We have obtained all
relevant licenses and permits that are material to our operation
in Hong Kong. Our consultant keeps track of the expiry dates of
relevant licences and timely applies for renewal. Our restaurants
will only commence operations after obtaining or renewing
the relevant licences and/or permits. During the year, we had
not been involved in any unsettled safety and licensing related
violations, the outcome of which we believed might materially
and adversely affect our business, operation and financial
position.

On the operational level, the Group has complied with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the guidelines recommended by the Office of
the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data when collecting
and processing data from students, customers and borrowers.
The Group has also paid attention to the Copyright Ordinance
(Chapter 528 of the Laws of Hong Kong) when preparing and
delivering teaching materials. Besides, the Group has complied
with the Education Ordinance (Chapter 279 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) in application of applicable certificates for running
school, the Child Care Services Ordinance (Chapter 243 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) in application certificate for running child
care centre and the Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362
of the Laws of Hong Kong) in preparation and publication of
advertisements. Further, the Group has paid attention to the
Prevention and Control of Disease Ordinance (Chapter 599
of the Laws of Hong Kong) in relation to the regulation of
requirements and directions for business and premises.
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On the human resources level, the Group has abided by the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), equal opportunity legislations
(including Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 487
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Family Status Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 527 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Race Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 602 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
to safeguard the health, safety, interests and benefits of the Group’s
employees.

Other details of the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations are set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” of the annual report.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy (“Whistleblowing
Policy”) on 11 April 2022 which is available on the website of the
Company. The purpose of the Whistleblowing Policy is to establish a
mechanism to enable staff and other members of the Group to voice
concerns in a responsible and effective manner so as to promote
the highest standards of openness, probity and accountability, and
encourage the reporting of misconduct, unlawful and unethical
behavior. The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annually by the
Board to ensure its implementation and effectiveness.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy (“Anti-
corruption Policy”) on 11 April 2022 which is available on the
website of the Company. The Anti-corruption Policy sets out the
specific behavioural guidelines that the Group’s personnel and
business partners must follow to combat corruption and demonstrates
the Group’s commitment to the practice of ethical business conduct
and the compliance of the anti-corruption laws and regulations that
apply to its operations. The Anti-corruption Policy is reviewed by
the Board and the management as and when appropriate to ensure its
continued effectiveness.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a policy on payment of dividend (“Dividend
Policy”) in compliance with the relevant code provision in the CG
Code, with effect from 1 January 2019. Declaration and payment of
dividends by the Company is subject to compliance with applicable
laws and regulations including the laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws
of the Company.

Dividends may be paid out by way of cash or by other means that
the Directors consider appropriate. Declaration and payment of any
dividends would require the recommendation of the Board and will
be at its discretion. In addition, any final dividends for a financial
year will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. A decision to
declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount and rates
of such dividends, will be subject to, among other things, the Group’s
results of operations, cash flow, financial conditions, operating and
capital requirements and other factors which the Directors consider
important.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has made
the amendments to its Bye-laws to be in line with the latest legal and
regulatory requirements, including the amendments made to Appendix
3 to the GEM Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2022 by
way of adoption of a new Bye-laws. The adoption of the new Bye-
laws were duly approved by the Shareholders by way of a special
resolution passed on 30 June 2022. The latest version of Memorandum
of Association, Memorandum of Continuance and the Bye-laws of the
Company is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company provides information in relation to the Group to the
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
including quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Such published documents together with the corporate
information of the Group are also available on the Company’s website
(www.chinademeter.com).

The shareholders” meeting provides a useful channel for shareholders
to communicate directly with the Board which the Directors are
available to answer questions related to the Company’s affairs.

The procedures to elect Directors were uploaded to the Company’s
website (www.chinademeter.com).

The Company will continue to improve the communication with
investors and to provide them more opportunities to understand the
business of the Company. On 11 April 2022, the Board resolved to
adopt a shareholders communication policy setting all the framework
in place to promote effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company. The Board considers that the shareholders’
communication policy has been effectively implemented during the
year.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount of fees in

respect of audit services and non-audit services paid/payable to Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited and its affiliate was set out below:

A B v <

BEZFZ "+ _-_H=+—HIF
BE o BASREAST R B A s o el S S
A BR A R Ko B O A R 2 A% ORI
R ERGE S EET W

Services rendered (RS
Audit services RS
Non-audit services IF A% BB
Total Gl

2022 2021
— g e i
HK$’000 HK$’000

W T T T

1,000 950

59 394

1,059 1,344

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Group and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Company Secretary complied with the
qualification and training requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company can convene a special general meeting by depositing a
requisition in writing to the Directors or the Company Secretary for
the purpose of requiring the convening of the special general meeting.
The written requisition shall be deposited to the Company’s office
at Office AO1, 35/F, United Centre, No. 95 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong.
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Procedures for shareholders to send enquiries to the Board

The Company is committed to regular and proactive communication
with its shareholders. It has adopted a policy of disclosing clear,
adequate and relevant information to Shareholders in a timely manner
through various channels. The Company has complied with the
GEM Listing Rules by posting announcements, notices, quarterly,
interim and annual reports as well as shareholders’ circulars on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
(www.chinademeter.com).

Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the Company for
any enquiries in relation to the Group, or for putting forward any
proposals at a shareholders” meeting:

Address: Office AO1, 35/F,

United Centre,

No. 95 Queensway, Admiralty
Hong Kong

Telephone no.: (852) 2116 1218

Fax no.: (852) 2151 1872
Attention: The Board of Directors/
The Company Secretary

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws and
applicable legislation and regulations.

If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s),
wishes to propose a person (other than the member himself/herself) for
election as a Director at that meeting, he/she/it can deposit a written
notice to the following address:

Head office and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong

Office AO1, 35/F, United Centre, No. 95 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong
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In order for the Company to inform all shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed for
election as a Director, his/her biographical details as required by Rule
17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, and be signed by the shareholder
concerned together with a written notice of the person proposed for
election as a Director indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

Save as the procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene
a general meeting as set out above, there are no other provisions
allowing shareholders of the Company to put forward proposals at
the general meeting under the Bye-laws of the Company or under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. Shareholders of the Company
may follow the procedures set out above to convene a special general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition. The
written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the shareholders
concerned. The written requisition shall be deposited at Office AOI,
35/F, United Centre, No. 95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong, the
head office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities in the preparation of
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and in presenting the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements, and announcements to shareholders, the Directors aim at
presenting a balanced, cleared and comprehensive assessment of the
Company’s performance, its current position and future prospects.
The respective responsibilities of the Directors and auditors of the
Company in respect of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out in the independent auditors’ report on pages 145
to 156 of the annual report.
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The directors (“Directors”) of the Company present their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as discussed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of the annual report, which forms part of this Directors’
report, there were no significant changes in the nature of the principal
activities of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by principal activities for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 and financial position of the Group as at the year end
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 157
to 161 of the annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$Nil).

Directors’ Report
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this Directors’ report as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business,
financial key performance indicators and performance and indication
of future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of the annual report. A
discussion of Group’s relationships with its key stakeholders, and
environmental policies and performance is contained in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the annual
report. These discussions form part of this Director’s report.

Key risks and its management

The Group is principally engaged in (i) food and beverage business;
(ii) money lending business; (iii) financial services business; (iv)
securities investment business; (v) alcoholic beverage distribution
and miscellaneous business; and (vi) provision of children education
services.

Key risks
(1) Reliance on key personnel

The effective operations and future success of the Group’s
business are depending, to a significant extent, on the capability,
experience and continued efforts of our key management
personnel. If the Group is unable to attract, retain and motivate
the necessary key management personnel, the business and
operation conditions of the Group may be disrupted and the
results and financial positions of the Group may be materially or
adversely affected.

(2) Reliance on close relationship with the Group’s customers

The success of the Group relies heavily on good relationship
with its customers. If the Group fails to maintain the current level
of business relationship with its customers and retain them in its
sales and distribution network, the sales, financial condition and
operating results of the Group may be adversely affected.
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(3) Risk relating to the food and beverage business

(a)

(b)

Uncertainties on obtaining or renewing the licences and
permits for the Group’s operations

The Group is required to obtain and maintain various
type of licences, including (i) general licences and (ii)
liquor licence and other approvals or permits, including
restricted food permits for its restaurants operation in Hong
Kong. Most of the requisite licences are usually valid
for one to two years and the licences are required to be
renewed before their expiry to comply with the relevant
requirements and ensure that business operation can be
continued without any disruption.

The Group may experience difficulties or failures in
obtaining or renewing the necessary approvals, licences
and permit for new restaurants in a timely manner or at all
for factors beyond its control.

Rely on individual to hold all the liquor licences of
restaurants

All of the liquor licences of the Group’s restaurants were
held by individuals.

Pursuant to Regulation 15 of the Dutiable Commodities
(Liquor) Regulations (Chapter 109B of the Laws of Hong
Kong), any transfer of a liquor licence must be conducted
in the prescribed form with the consent of the liquor licence
holder. In case of illness or temporary absence of the liquor
licence holder, the secretary of the Liquor Licensing Board
may in his/her discretion authorise any person to manage
the licenced premises under Regulation 24 of the Dutiable
Commodities (Liquor) Regulations, upon application by the
liquor licence holder. For any application for cancellation
of the liquor licence made by the holder of liquor licence,
one must make an application for new issue of a liquor
licence to the Liquor Licensing Board. In case of death or
insolvency of the liquor license holder, his/her executor
or administrator or trustee may carry on the business in
the licence premises until the expiration of the licence
under section 54 of the Dutiable Commodities Ordinance
(Chapter 109 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

3 (B)

(3)  F G i J Bk P 8 Y J Bt

(a)

(b)

13 B AL B E P s 1Y
IR T ] SR TEE T

A 4 [ i 7 46 R R JH I
N A A R IR > A4 G)
7 1 R (i) R R A v
o 7 Al AR (35 BRI & T
F) o KHB AT b KGR A Rk
B E B — WA > AEEA
TE JeE o A B A RS S R R DA
ST A R R AR R AR T
i 48 458 8 SE T R 2 AT A o
@ﬁo

74 T T R ek 2 ) 4 PR R
D) B A K Rl EL AR A i
R RS B E AR
HEAE ~ JRAR RGP AT RS o

TRTE AN 115 FE 2 ms ol
#

7S A B T A AT R e A1
A LFA -

R 45 7 W 15 1 55 109 B 7 R
B i G928 K609 58 1545 - TR RS
T S8 ZE A R R AN ]
T AT - ARE ELRL &
(T ) BRI 2 2446 > 419 i s
A NBIRSE RS > 1l
WA AAE L B AE » RINE RS
b 25 AT I I 4 M A ] N R
A R RRBE T o (i R A
P T R > ) R 2 )
JELJR) FR i B TR . o ARIR A
5 12 1910 26 109 75 JE B o5 16k 151
541 > I R EEA A A e
OMER - HUEEHAT A - B
X2 YN T PNCI X v
MR EE  HEMRA
A4 i T A Ak o

B 2 < i B A PR 24 )
CRURAEH

131



Directors’ Report (Continued)

= ()

A

)

132

If the relevant liquor licence holder in each of the Group’s
restaurants refuses to give consent to a transfer application
when a transfer is required, or fails to make an application
in respect of his/her illness or temporary absence or
makes a cancellation application without consent, or if an
application for new issue of a liquor licence is required
in case of death or insolvency of the relevant employee,
the relevant restaurant may have to cease it sale of liquor
for the time being, in which case may adversely affect its
business and profitability.

Risks relating to the money lending business

The money lending business of the Group is exposed to default
from the Group’s customers, which involves the risk of loss
due to the inability or unwillingness of customers to meet their
contractual obligations. If the customers of the money lending
business of the Group fail to meet their contractual obligations,
the Company may incur additional costs to collect the loan
principal and corresponding interests. To mitigate this risk, the
board of Directors (“Board”) has set up the Credit Committee
with relevant experience of this business segment and report
to the Board directly. The Credit Committee has full authority
to deal with all credit matters. The members of the Credit
Committee are appointed by the Board and the quorum of the
Credit Committee is at least two committee members. The credit
policy of the Group’s money lending business is subject to the
review and amendments by the Credit Committee and the Board
from time to time in line with changes in market environment.

Risk relating to the financial services business

The financial services business of the Group is subject to
the performance of the Hong Kong securities market and the
performances of the Group’s competitors which are beyond its
control and the Group cannot assure that our historical level
of income can be sustained. In addition, non-compliance with
extensive regulatory requirements could cause the Group to
incur fines, restriction on financial service activities or even
suspension or revocation of some or all of the licences for
carrying on the Group’s business activities.
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Also the Group’s brokerage services involved active interactions
between its staff and customers and therefore it is subject to
human errors, which the Group has to bear the losses resulting
therefrom. For placing and underwriting business, the Group
exposed to business risks in case the securities underwritten by
the Group are undersubscribed or the placing exercises are failed
to complete.

(6) Major financial risk exposed to the Group

The Group is exposed to financial risks, including credit, interest
rate, liquidity and other price risks. The Group actively and
regularly reviews these risks and will adopt measures, if needed,
to control and mitigate these risks.

(7) Difficulties in recruitment and retention of the Group’s
employees

The success of the Group depends in apart upon the Group’s
ability to attract, retain and motivate a sufficient number of
qualified employees, including responsible officer, teacher,
restaurant staff, chefs and kitchen staff. Highly service-oriented
and qualified individuals are in relatively short supply in Hong
Kong and competition for these employees is intense. Any
failure to employ and retain enough qualified employees could
delay planned new restaurant openings, cause untenable teacher-
to- pupil ratio to meet the statutory requirement or result in
higher employee turnover, either of which could have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s business and results of operations.
In addition, competition for qualified employees could also
require the Group to pay higher wages, which could result in
higher labour cost.

For a discussion of how the Group would tackle with the management
of the material risks, please refer to the paragraph headed “Internal
Control and Risk Management” in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of the annual report. Description of possible risks
and uncertainties on COVID-19 facing the Company is set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of the annual
report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT RULES AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with relevant
requirements could lead to adverse impact on business operation and
financial position of the Group. The Board as a whole is responsible to
ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company. During the course
of the business operations, the Group shall comply with different
laws and regulations, further details of which are discussed in the
sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of the annual report, the discussion of which forms part of this
Directors’ report. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
was in compliance with these said laws and regulations.

MAJOR PROJECTS AND EVENTS

Details regarding major projects undertaken by the Group and events
that have taken place during the year under review are incorporated
under the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of
the annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out in the section headed “Five-year Financial
Summary” of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

The number of share options available for grant under the existing
scheme mandate of the share option scheme of the Company as at
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 was 15,302,951 shares and
62,741,806 shares respectively.

The number of shares of the Company that may be issued in respect
of options and awards granted under all schemes of the Company (i.e.
the share option scheme) during the year ended 31 December 2022
was 15,300,000 shares, and divided by the weighted average number
of shares of 653,757,037 shares of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022, is 2.3%.

As at 24 March 2023, being the date of the annual report, the total
number of share options available for issue under the share option
scheme of the Company was 62,741,806 shares, representing
approximately 8.33% of the issued shares of the Company as at such
date.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the group entered into or existed
during the year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of movements during the year in the reserves and reserves
available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders of the Group
and the Company are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the annual report and in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, sales amount to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 3.9% of the total
sales amount of the Group, whilst the largest customer of the Group
accounted for approximately 0.9% of the total sales amount of the
Group. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 38.5% of the total purchases amount of the Group, whilst the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 14.9% of
the total purchases amount of the Group.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group.

OTHER BORROWING

Details of other borrowing of the Group are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
(redesignated from non-executive Director on 5 January 2023)

Mr. Chan Chi Fung
Mr. Ng Ting Ho

Non-executive Director

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
(redesignated to executive Director on 5 January 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Mr. Hung Kenneth

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul has been re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director of the Company and will remain as
the chairman of the Board on 5 January 2023. Mr. Ng has confirmed
that he is not aware of any matter relating to his redesignation
which needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company.
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Biographical information of Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management” of the annual report.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and compliance
with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Chan Hin Hang
and Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 5 January
2023. The appointment will be terminable by three month’s prior
written notice given by either side.

Mr. Ng Ting Ho has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 1 August
2022. The appointment will be terminable by three month’s prior
written notice given by either side.

Mr. Chan Chi Fung has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company as an executive Director for a continuous term commencing
from 1 September 2021. The appointment will be terminable by two
months’ prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 13
November 2022. The appointment will be terminable by one month’s
prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 13
November 2022. The appointment will be terminable by one month’s
prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Hung Kenneth has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 27 October
2022. The appointment will be terminable by one month’s prior
written notice given by either side.

None of the Directors has entered into any service agreement with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 to indemnify the
Directors and officers for their liabilities arising from their lawful
discharge of duties. The insurance coverage and premium is reviewed
on an annual basis.

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that the Directors for the time
being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and every
one of them shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices; provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of said persons.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 12A and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or a connected entity of a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors and the
chief executive and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

R ERTB BRI~ HIB B
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Long Positions WH
Shares of the Company V)
Approximate
Number of percentage
Name of Director Capacity shares held of interest
i Je B HE
HREH By P it B H FONER g
(Note)
(FH E)
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul Beneficial Owner 3,845,000 0.51%
SR e JEECE ZE DN
Mr. Ng Ting Ho Beneficial Owner 3,845,000 0.51%
RIETR L HamEa A
Mr. Chan Chi Fung Beneficial Owner 21,010,000 2.79%
PR A e o Ha A A
Note: B3

The percentage of interest in the Company is calculated by reference to the number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2022, that is 752,901,672.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executive
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2022 that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARE OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Schemes”
and “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enabled the Directors,
their respective spouse or minor children to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long Positions
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Approximate
Number of percentage
Name of Shareholder Capacity shares held of interest
Al Jse i Bk
LA =gl Pt ¥ B 4y O H FONER i e
(Note 1)
(B aED)
Mr. Ng Ting Kit (Note 2) Beneficial owner 103,700,000 13.77%
SIS A (M EE2) HaEa A
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 145,933,946 19.38%
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Notes:

1. The percentage of interest in the Company is calculated by reference to the
number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2022, that is
752,901,672.

2. Mr. Ng Ting Kit is (i) a cousin of Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul, the chairman of the
Board and an executive Director, and (ii) the brother of Mr. Ng Ting Ho, the
chief executive officer of the Company and an executive Director.

3. These interests are held by Trinity Worldwide Capital Holding Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Ng Ting Kit.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no person who had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2022.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, (a) a subsidiary of the Company, China Demeter
Securities Limited, received commission income and interest income
from Directors, a substantial shareholder, a director of a subsidiary,
associates of connected persons of the Company and companies which
directors of such companies are also a substantial shareholder of the
Company and a director of the subsidiary; and (b) the Group had
advanced a loan to Mr. Lam Chun Kei, an executive Director resigned
on 1 September 2021. Such related party transactions fall under the
definition of “connected transactions” pursuant to Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Particulars of such related party transactions are
disclosed in note 41(a) and note 41(b) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

During the year, the Group has the following transaction with a
connected person of the Company:

Amount

of margin

finance

facility

PR 4

HEREANLW SR BEEREES#
HK$°000

BT

Identity of Relevant

Connected Person

TEROR e
(Rt & 2~ Rl E =)

Mr. Yip Kai Pong

(director of a subsidiary) 1,251
The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
relevant disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors confirm that the transactions
have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of
business, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Ng Ting Ho, an executive Director, is a non-executive director of
Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8081) and Mr.
Hung Kenneth, an independent non-executive Director, is an executive
director of Smart City Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8268), each of which is a company listed on GEM whose principal
businesses include money lending business in Hong Kong, which may
compete with the Group’s money lending business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates had any business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted and committed to the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules and has prepared the corporate governance report,
which is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report™
of the annual report.

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Significant subsequent events are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$80,700.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint the auditor, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Man Chun Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA DEMETER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
157 to 329, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

¥ 37 B B s (4)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

I3RS 2 2% o IR

[5F 34 2 1% 2 IR

[ o 2 A% = T 0 AR R AT 0 B S ey
i Aoy P B B BB R R T A B
TR IH o BA TR A B
7 i L A5 R TH Kol TR S L > A
Al HIH PR E R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

F A 4 7 A o o i TR I S A A2 IR

Impairment of loans and interest receivables

HE W B sk B LB ik A

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note 4
and the disclosures of loans and interest receivables in
Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Z W55 PSR RE4 AT B R 2 FER
U5 K B 5526 JE B KRB iR -

At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of loans and
interest receivables is HK$14,192,000 (net of allowance
for credit losses of HK$2,314,000).
AR = B RERE R
F T 4 B 2 75 15 14,192,000 76 (F1BR #5 152,314,000 0
A5 B e R 13 46) -

The measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL”)
requires the application of significant judgement and
increased complexity which include the identification
of exposures with a significant deterioration in credit
quality, and assumptions used in the ECL models for
exposures assessed individually, such as the expected
future cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic
factors.

FEE S 4R (TS Bl 18 ) 19 w8 ORI T &
DR BRI S8 o ) R A > O A RO A R
AL YRR D bl B8 A e ) RO 45 R s 4R
RSN el ) AR R 497 2 A0 ) R AR B <6 O R D
W PR R 2 BLAE T R R

We focused on this area because the carrying amount
of loans and interest receivables is significant to the
consolidated financial statements, the identification
of whether exposures triggered deterioration in credit
quality and the estimation of the individual impairment
amount require the use of significant judgments and
estimates.

TR B TE R B HE R - 9 A R R R A R IR
{E 3 455 AP R il w5 B oK - R e 1 g | 8%
5 BE B AL B R < Al R A R
H B KA H

Our audit procedures included:

FAM i AL AL B

—  We understood, evaluated and validated the key
controls over impairment assessment of loans and
interest receivables, which relates to management’s
identification of events that triggered the provision
for impairment of loans and interest receivables
and estimation of the amount of provisions.

- TRAMEREE - AL K B R AR OB ORI R B

Al A 2 R R S > HLBRLAE B RE R 5 BUB I
K B ) S Tk (L 98 A4 110 S L Al 9 A A
Bl o

—  We inspected the loans and pledged agreements

entered into between the Group and the borrowers,
and other relevant information relating to the
borrowers as assessed by the Group.

- BRAMEE R P A B O BT S Y B R R A

bl A B 55 4 BT A 2 A Bl i O\ 2 HoAt A
B BB ©
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) PR ekt o A% 5 0H ()

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

oA 4 7 % T OH FAY 1% 2 A T ] i T ) i A% 5 0

Impairment of loans and interest receivables
(Continued)
T W Bk R P B it e (4F)

—  We circulated auditor’s confirmations to test the
existence of the loans and interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period. We also checked
the accuracy of the aging of loans and interest
receivables as at the end of the reporting period by
tracing to loan agreements.

= FRAMEE AL TR T R > LA R R A R A A
SRR AR AFTERE DL o FAM IR 5 16 A 8
X e A R A K R IR A R ) R B
f HERREE o

—  We assessed the reasonableness of the Group’s

ECL model by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and the
criteria for assessing if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a lifetime
ECL basis. We also assessed recoverability of the
loans and interest receivables with reference to
borrowers’ interest repayment records and principal
repayment subsequent to the year end date and up
to the date of this report, and traced the repayments
to the bank statements.
FoA™ 25 it Ao £ A L RE AT 1 AT R B BT ) 2 DR
(B0 45 Bt 8 1 4 40 BB i ME R R ~ PGB TE
e 18 3 1 R R A AS IR B0 S il RS 1R R
PR - AEAG AR S B R
(1 Bk KA A5 B TR B R 7 B 0 2 A
e TR > B A B A A I T R
Mt o AN 2B RS H AR R E
AR H W R SR A BRI
R R SR B ) JE ) T o ] R S R 22 R
HRATHH
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

¥ 37 B B s (4)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

o 4 7 % T OH

ToR 3 2 4% = IR (77

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FAY 1% 2 A T ] i T ) i A% S 0

Impairment assessment of goodwill

P 2% Dok 11 7 A

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note
4 and the disclosures of goodwill in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

S 4R A RS IR R M aE4 Mh A E RN HR 2 B ER
T K it EE 18 p A 5 o

At 31 December 2022, the Group carried out an
impairment assessment to the goodwill attributable
to the financial services business, alcoholic beverage
distribution business and children education business
and impairment loss of goodwill of approximately
HK$5,168,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2022.
WEFZTAETZA=1T—H . BEEH SRR
WS ~ RS BROBH I 5 SE 85 S L B E SE T A
BUEFTWE A, - WRBE R+ =T
— HILEE 4R LOHAD ATk s R P #ERR
Pﬁ%a&{ﬁﬁﬂa%’%ﬁ%‘s,ms,ooofu °

For the purpose of assessing impairment, goodwill was
allocated to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) of the
respective business, and the recoverable amount of the
CGU was determined by management based on value-
in-use calculation using cash flow projection. In carrying
out the impairment assessment, significant management
judgement was used to determine the key assumptions,
including operating margins, terminal growth rate and
discount rates, underlying the value-in-use calculation.

Fh e AG R - PR TG 2 R B SE 5 Y B < A
A7 (B g de A BEAE 1) - T B0 46 /2 A B Y W] Ll&(lilﬁ
H %I@E*Eﬁ%}%ﬁﬂfﬁéiﬁiﬁiﬁﬂ (4 1 B (BT SRk
fiEE o TEMEAT W EFEAL IRE - R T 32 B4 2 ) B
AR 2 2 BB - G4 B B (E w030 i A o ) &€
B -~ KA RSB

Our audit procedures included:

FeAM 1 F AL AL

— evaluating the independence, competence,
capability and objectivity of the external valuation
expert engaged by management;

= APAhE B R A AL (A R KA S - T
HE ~ BE BB

—  evaluating the valuation methodologies and
assumptions including comparing source and
market data used in the underlying assumptions
for the valuation of financial service business,
alcoholic beverage distribution business and
children education business with reference to
comparable companies;

= RPARAR(E T BB o AR EAE S W] R
4% B < R RS SE 5 o TR B 0 B SRS B
HL LR ST HEA TN (B0 AR B MR BT FH 1 R 2R
U b T 35 BB AT LS
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) PR ekt o A% 5 JH ()

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

o 4 7 % TR F A 4 7 A o o )i B I O A 2 o IR

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

Py 5 0t 6L A% ()

- assessing the appropriateness of the key
assumptions, including operating margins, pre-
tax discount rate and terminal growth rate used for
calculating the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit as adopted by management for the
goodwill impairment assessment;

= AR B R AT 7R (R R BT BR A I
A O B 4 A A B A AT A T < R Y I AR
(BLA5 KE8 AT ~ BRI B3R KO AR 50 1Y
B

- assessing the actual performance in the year
against the prior year budgets to evaluate historical
forecasting accuracy;

- B EFEEATRENNEEERE - UG
il 08 7 TE I REE

—  evaluating the appropriateness of the relevant
disclosures in respect of the impairment assessment
of goodwill in the consolidated financial
statements; and

= ERAh AR B R P A B (R R Al AR B
PWEEREEN - &

- assessing the management’s sensitivity analysis
on the key assumptions, to ascertain the extent to
which adverse changes, would result in the assets
being impaired.

- PR B B SR R R A - DU E
AR e 2 P A M) 538 B8 5t P SO DRl
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

¥ 37 B B s (4)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

ToR 3 2 4% = IR (77

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

[o9 32 2 2% o I

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets)

Y% ~ b7 B i fi (€3 95 6 B 5 ) ik L

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note
4 and the disclosures of property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2B A5 A PSSR M R4 Al ST AN Bl (R 3R 2 2
TR ST 16% 26 ~ WS B se i (BLAE (1 HE ) %
o=

B% ©

Management performed impairment assessments on the
Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets by comparing the carrying values with their value-
in-use to determine the amount of impairment loss that
should be recognised for the year.

BTRLRE O BRI Y ~ RRBE B Al DA R T
AT RE AL > 7 ¥ TR 25 R 1% R T L B
(AR LA 188 5 4 PR IR e 0 ) 3 (B 4R 2

We identified impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as a key
audit matter because of the significant judgement and
estimation required to be exercised particularly in respect
of estimating terminal growth rates, future revenue,
future cost of sales and other operating expenses, the
discount rates applied and also because of the selection
of these assumptions could be subject to management
bias.

FA A2 ~ TR B LA K A T 1) el (L
il | 27y — A Bl S e A% S I > ) R R ZEAE R A
B KAl T > RHE A B K AR R - RRIEA -
R B A e HL At 8 B S LA % i A B R 1) £
Ao IR R % A RT3 T RE A B flw SR
2L o

FRAY V1% 2 A T v o T ) i A% 5 O

Our audit procedures included:

FAM 1) A AL AL PP B4

— evaluating the independence, competence,
capability and objectivity of the external valuation
expert engaged by management.

- RPN B T SN AL (R S~ By
LR ~ B & B -

- assessing value-in-use calculation methodology
adopted by management;

- APAEEERE BRI 0 (R

- assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including operating margins, terminal growth rates
and discount rates) based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

- ARIRIRA B ZEHS K AT M TR A T AR
(BEREERER - KA RE R Z) &
P
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) PR ekt o A% 5 JH ()

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

I 4 7 2 T IR FA 4 7 A% a0 i PR I S A 2 o IR

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) (Continued)

Yy ~ WP B it (€2 15 6 B 5 ) 0t e (77

— evaluating the reasonableness of the cash
flow forecast by comparing against historical
performance and discussing with the management
on revenue growth strategies and cost initiatives in
respect of the cash generating units;

- A 48 B FE AT IO S Bl R E A
HE o Sl B R ) A R B < A A B B
N3GRS e A I

—  checking the mathematical accuracy of the value-
in-use calculation in the management’s impairment
assessment;

— AR B TE AL RN BT AT T B (R
T BB MR

—  performing sensitivity analysis in respect of the key
assumptions to assess the extent of import on the
calculation of the value-in-use; and

- RS EREOET BUREII T o LR R
EHAEMEERE ; &

—  evaluating the appropriateness of the relevant
disclosures in respect of the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

¥ 37 B B s (4)
OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

—  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also: (Continued)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, action taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

¥ 37 B B s (4)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023

Tong Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number P06231
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

3 1R A S Bt 4 v R A R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

2022 2021
—ZE2- TR T AR
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T
(Restated)
(K&HE5)
Continuing operations PR B
Revenue LN 5
Alcoholic beverage distribution and B fICRH 3§ S Ak TH 2E 5
miscellaneous business 1,596 1,264
Food and beverage business B SRR SE B 117,564 144,067
Dividend income from listed equity i s TH 2 B EIA
instruments 316 202
Loan interest income BHFLE WA 2,713 2,006
Provision of children education PR 5 B H IR
services 4,500 4,448
Provision of financial services PRI 4 Rl AR S 15,214 12,777
Total revenue Al A 141,903 164,764
Cost of sales and services S KRS A (46,100) (54,770)
Gross profit EAH 95,803 109,994
Other income, other gains and losses AU A . HAth it Kl 18 7 11,365 2,440
General and administrative expenses ~ — & S AT IECBH 2 (121,686) (124,991)
Fair value gain on financial assets FPABGE 2 SRUEE 2
through profit or loss A B I A 3,341 8,567
Impairment loss of goodwill (R SCRIEN Fi5! 18 (5,168) (9,999)
Share of loss of a joint venture WAL — [ &8 R 2 1R 21 - -
Finance costs S A 8 (3,681) (3,918)
Loss before tax BRB Al s 1B (20,026) (17,907)
Income tax expense I 15850 B 52 9 (69) (485)
Loss for the year from continuing ARG AR A R RS
operations 18 (20,095) (18,392)
Discontinued operation CARILREEE
Profit/(loss) for the year from ASAE A O IR RS SE R
discontinued operation 2 U A (5 1R) 10 1,128 (2,601)
Loss for the year ENCE Y i 11 (18,967) (20,993)
B < B A PR W]

TR R
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

B 18 g S H At 4 v W 4 5% (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

2022 2021
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
it BT BT T
(Restated)
(K&E= 1)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Al 22 v (BA S2), W £8
income
Items that may be reclassified K& 1% i GE T 4 B E 1 77 Z
subsequently to profit or loss: HH :
Exchange differences on translating R S 7 A 2 ME B,
foreign operations FEH 375) 31)
Reclassified to profit or loss on BRI EBEEN R
disposal of foreign operations B 184 -
Change in fair value of debt 25 B T A HoA 22 T
instruments at fair value through i Z fEH TR 2\ B (E
other comprehensive income, net S > N BB 5 B
movement in fair value reserve T - 609
Other comprehensive (expense)/ A4 B A A T (B S2)
income for the year, net of tax W as o BifRIFAE (191) 578
Total comprehensive expense for AR A B 2 i B X AR
the year (19,158) (20,415)
(Loss)/profit for the year AL vl B N AL A AR B
attributable to owners of the (E8) A
Company:
— from continuing operations — 2K A R A (19,972) (17,957)
— from discontinued operation -k BB &S ETS 1,128 (2,601)
(18,844) (20,558)
Loss for the year attributable to JE ¥ I3 BE o B A A A B s
non-controlling interests: i :
— from continuing operations — R B R A RS (123) (435)
— from discontinued operation - R A LRSS = -
(123) (435)
(18,967) (20,993)

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

fo 7 1R A B L Ath 2 i W i3 5 (4

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

2022 2021
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 BT BT T
(Restated)
(K&HE5)
Total comprehensive expense for PAR N L BB Al A 4 B 4 i
the year attributable to: PH 2 4
— Owners of the Company VNI ZE DN (19,035) (19,980)
— Non-controlling interests — JEFER R A 123) (435)
(19,158) (20,415)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ ANV BER N\ REAG AS 48
income for the year attributable 20 (B 32) W o KRR
to owners of the Company:
— from continuing operations — 38 B RRAE A8 26 (19,972) (17,348)
— from discontinued operation -7k B E &S 937 (2,632)
(19,035) (19,980)
HK cents HK cents
Al Al
(Restated)
(K& 51)
Loss per share 5 I s 18 15
— from continuing and discontinued ~ — 2K [ FRAE AL S K
operation O 4 1E 488 2675
Basic FAR (2.88) (5.09)
Diluted e (2.88) (5.09)
— from continuing operations — & H R R TS
Basic B ¥ (3.05) (4.45)
Diluted 30 (3.05) (4.45)

B ol B AT LA 7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a5 W B IR Dl R

At 31 December 2022 & —E — 4|~ H=1—H

2022 2021
—2 S
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
it EH T BT
Non-current assets FE U B A
Property, plant and equipment ERN & ] 16 33,346 23,454
Goodwill kS 18 2,066 7,234
Intangible asset IV & 19 500 500
Investment in a joint venture R—HEBEAEZRE 21 - -
Financial assets at fair value through — $& /3 SR A8 (E FH A HoAh 4 18
other comprehensive income W i 2 4 Pl 22A 73 20
Other assets HoAth & 23 574 230
Deposits and other receivables Y12 4 Je HoAb RE WS 3R T 27 3,694 2,964
40,253 34,402
Current assets WEE E
Inventories e 24 1,533 1,470
Trade receivables JE WA B 3K 25 80,097 93,487
Loans and interest receivables JRE A B 3k K A B 26 14,192 15,663
Deposits, prepayments and other Yt x> PR KAt
receivables WK IE 27 13,363 13,354
Tax recoverable CIELQEE TR 90 534
Financial assets at fair value through %A R fEEFIABZ 2 &
profit or loss Rl 22B 21,860 24,562
Trust bank accounts fERLERITIRF 28 34,668 32,498
Cash and cash equivalents 4 K45 8Y) 28 42,325 40,577
208,128 222,145
Current Liabilities B A
Trade and other payables A B R B At IR A K T 29 67,309 63,471
Other borrowing HAth A8 & 30 20,054 20,061
Current tax liabilities R 8 1H A 1 117 168
Lease liabilities HEARE 32 17,841 25,500
105,821 109,200
Net current assets I B A A 102,307 112,945
Total assets less current liabilities 48 % /& I ifi B & % 142,560 147,347
Non-current liabilities FE U B £ 0
Lease liabilities HEAE 32 13,189 13,452
Net assets & ETE 129,371 133,895

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

f o B 5 IR Dl 3 (%)

At 31 December 2022 J# & 4 H=+—H

Capital and reserves AR ik
Share capital JeA
Reserves Tt

Equity attributable to owners of A A N AL RE 4
the Company

Non-controlling interests I Rt 2

Total equity HE £ H8

2022 2021

- S —E A

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 53 T T
33 7,529 6,121
34 121,017 126,826
128,546 132,947

825 948

129,371 133,895

The consolidated financial statements on pages 157 to 329 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director
#HF
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
R

N ISTHEIHZ 4B M BEHED
MoECSESH T HKERE
HE R RET)EE > o il oI H AR
Z

Director
#HF
Mr. Ng Ting Ho
R EE e A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

Attributable to ownes of the Company

AW NER
Fair value
Foreign  through other Attributable
Share currency  comprehensive fonon-
Share Share Confributed ~ Cpifl ~ opfions  franslation ~ income Accumiulated controlling
copifal ~ premium  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve losses ~ Subfofal  inerests
)
RIEHA
bz ik
il SARE il RS kRl HteR Nt ERER A
HES'00  HES'000 s HES'000 (S HES 00 §! HES'000  HES'000  HES000
LSV | SV RV LRV L SO L BOTI | RO/ | AV
Balnce at | January 201 i il
Z’[u 1530160109 1531 61,345 §u 468 (309 (26623) 108766 13 104
Loss forthe year FERER - - - - - - - sy s G
Other comprehensive (expense)/ REEEMAT(RY/
income or the year ik - - - - - (l) 9 - ] - i
Total comprehensive (expense)/ REEREMA)/
income or the year et - - - - - (1) 09 058 (1990) #B3)  (20413)
Toue o rights hares (Noke 33) BT IRl I3 ) 9043 - - - - - S -
Trnsctoncostehed oisoeof TR RAARILH
rghts shares (Note 33) Ak (HEG) - (1) - - - - - RN RN
Lapse of share options (Note 3) LR - - - - (824) - - 81 - - -
Balnceat 3 December M and~~ HZFZF
| Tanary 1002 i Evadil
“RIZER-N 6120 1961 1951 61,545 - i (240)  (283%6) 132047 g 1338%
Los for the yar KEEER - - - - - - - (1884 (1884 oy %)
Ottercompebensiveexpense o~ AEFEMAHRL
the year - - - - - (19 - - (19 - (199)
Tota comprehensive expense for RERRARAE
the year - - - - - (199 - (8% (190) 174 VAR
Recogiton ofequty st BlRAL SRR
share-based payments - - - - 550 - - - 50 - 50
Tssue ofshares upon exercse of flRRERRRG
share options (Note 33 (B 15 230 - - (550) = = = 1913 = 1913
I o pacng shares (Note 36i0)— ERERBIENGH 18 104 - - - - - - D - W
Transationcost atrbuabl o R ERREREL
isueofplacing shares (Note 33i) U (H3E3 i) - (378) - - - - - - (378) - (378)
Balanceat 31 December 2022 RoZoCE
TZA=1-H
Lt (£ 2 VA R 61,45 - U6 (40 (3m810) 128346 85 m
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

o Bl B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥
2022 2021
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
g BT BT T
(Restated)
(K&HE5)
Cash flows from operating activities K& EHEZHERM ﬁ
(Loss)/profit before tax: BBl HT (E518) T Al
— From continuing operations S SRR E T %4%‘ (20,026) (17,907)
— From discontinuing operation - 7R HE &SR 1,128 (2,601)
Adjustments for: REDLN & TH R %
Finance costs PAHS AR 8 3,681 4,050
Interest income FE A 7 (44) (952)
Depreciation of property, plant and W, BB Btz s
equipment 16 18,123 22,994
Dividend income from fund KEESREZ B EIA
investments 7 - (38)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, W, W Mz
plant and equipment (Wezs) /K18 7 (50) 1111
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary Hh B — [ i)
group NEIE N Pl & 10 (1,306) -
Impairment loss of property, plant W, W I s E
and equipment 18 = 7,171
Impairment loss of loans and JRE ST B B AR 2 s
interest receivables i} 7 1,957 357
Impairment loss of goodwill [k AT AN 7F =] 18 5,168 9,999
Reversal of impairment loss of trade & ISt lR 2K 2 8 (L s 8 435 ]
receivables 7 = (346)
Over-provision for re-instatement IR A Z B R
cost 7 - (700)
Gain on early termination of leases RG22 I 7 (3,496) (232)
Equity-settled share option expense LA HE &5 B4 i RO HE ) <2 35 550 -
COVID-19-related rent concessions % USUHT  7t j1A v 75 AH B AH
received W R 11 (1,904) (910)
Loss on disposal of financial & A A E AT AD
assets at fair value through other Mt 2 S REE 2
comprehensive income i} 7 - 763
3,781 22,759
B 2 < Tl 4 A PR T

S AR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

i B4 TR R (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £

Fo D H=A—HIEEE

Notes

Bt &

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables

(Increase)/decrease in deposits,
prepayments and other
receivables

Decrease/(increase) in financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss

(Increase)/decrease in loans and
interest receivables

Increase in trust bank accounts

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Income taxes refunded/(paid)

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends received from fund
investments

Payments for property, plant and
equipment

Purchase of financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash outflow on disposal of a
subsidiary group

Net cash used in investing activities

“M%

=
=

I
e
LIﬁ(ﬂFz%MM‘/(iJJH)

i<y
=
LAth
lelb

cﬁ*f\bﬂi

- ?EHUAIE&/HJ{M%

ORI (35 )

o R EF ARG 2 &

Al A Y, ()

JRE S B R (B )
ﬁ/]\
5 REERATHR P HE M

WEHHE o L L At A< 75

Ham
BENR (R Z2HHE

E A B
CATALE
B (EA) BB

BEEHENS, (iR Z
H&e&EE

?Qﬁiﬁ?]]ﬁﬁ%rziﬁéziﬁﬁ
HEREHGZBE

WIS ~ T st

W R N B EFA A
EXIIErPaA <)
HIH

B A B E R A AR
B THI A i 4B L
JIr 453 3KIH

HEWSE -~ WS Kk g

HIH
H B {1 B 2 FI AL 2
B4 U H
REEHH I 2B &HH

B ACE &
‘5:

22A

10

2022 2021

- S TR T AR

HK$°000 HK$’000

T s e BT

(Restated)

2«4 E @J

(344) 25

(63) 40
13,380 (37,198)

(1,082) 3,349
2,702 (6,437)

(486) 10,000
(2,170) (9,152)

5,784 4,623
21,502 (11,991)

44 1,052
(3,688) (4,005)
324 (1,097)
18,182 (16,041)

- 38
(4,804) (8,335)

(83) -

- 5,939

50 -

(343) -
(5,150) (2,358)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

s Bl R (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥

2022 2021
e —E— i
Notes HK$°000 HKS$’000
g ¥ T BT T
(Restated)
(K& H51))
Cash flows from financing activities ﬁ!ﬁ ﬁ‘?ﬁ MR zHaens
Proceeds from issue of rights shares A7 1t P 5 A9y i 75 5K IH - 45,909
Proceeds from exercise of share ﬁﬁ I PR HRE JUT A5 3K I
options 1,913 -
Proceeds from issue of placing shares #§17 ﬁﬂ/ﬁﬂxf K E L 12,549 -
Payment for transaction cost SCAHEEAT B 5 0 E AL 22 5
attributable to issue of placing A
shares 378) -
Payment for transaction cost SCAHERAT B B 07 E A 22 5
attributable to issue of rights shares A = (1,748)
Repayment of other borrowing TR A & 40 - (10,000)
Proceeds from other borrowing HoAth A8 & P A5 2K I8 40 - 20,000
Repayment of lease liabilities R AR 40 (25,369) (30,729)
Net cash (used in)/generated from k% % B (FF ), B 1%
financing activities ZHE&FH (11,285) 23,432
Net increase in cash and cash Bl 4 BB & 55 Y B i
equivalents 1,747 5,033
Cash and cash equivalents at R—H—HZB&RK
1 January HEEHEY 40,577 35,597
Effect of foreign exchange rate A e S S8 ) 2 R B VR R
changes, net 1 (53)
Cash and cash equivalents at RT_H=1+—HZB&R
31 December WEEEY 42,325 40,577
B 2 4 il 4% A FR 23 W]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

% 5 W s e o Tk

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 22 September 2000 under the
Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

In 2014, the Company has been deregistered in the Cayman
Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda and the change of domicile became
effective on 8 May 2014 (Bermuda time).

The shares of the Company are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at
Office A0O1, 35/F., United Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively

the “Group”) was involved in the following principal activities:

—  provision of loan financing in Hong Kong;

—  provision of financial services (including advising and
dealing in securities and asset management);

= investment in listed and unlisted securities;

—  provision of food and beverage services;

—  alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous business;
and

—  provision of children education services.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong

Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

1 6 6 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the amendments

to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are

mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after

1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

Property, plant and equipment —

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

2.

B 9T BT B A% 15 BT A o B 5 o v
S) (7 v S 2 i o8 1 0 )

TP A 4 5 5 ) A 28 2 A i B S o
W QB RT A

TRAAEE > A B2 ) gt A S A T
BHRERERENTFEETMAE

(17 ¥ & wH B 2 & 1) A A 04 7 o B
B R ERTA > A BRERTR
SR A A2 E B R

A B2 309 D o o A2k
FEMHRGTREA 5 HBEEHER
FIRBFTA)
FEMEREEN  —F - ERA=TA
FIORETA)  RZHEER
A B A R
FEGHENS1 Yk RS Rt -
B BTTA) BEE Mg s
A
BRGAHENEY  BRAA-BETEH
Al HIES LA
FEMHREE —F - FEDED
(BaT4) T FRIH
ok e A B

BT SCBrsiE SN > AR R
i B 5 i Y L) A9 I T AS A AR
A5 B A AR 4 JBE BB 1 4R B2 2 B 5 IR
DR KRB Sa% 5 5 A B R
JIv AR e 2 T K R 2

B 2 < i B A R 24 )
TR R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendments to HKFRS 16
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2022

The Group has early applied the amendment in the current
year. The amendment extends the availability of the practical
expedient in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS
16”) by one year so that the practical expedient applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
provided the other conditions for applying the practical expedient
are met.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the
opening accumulated losses at 1 January 2022. The Group has
derecognised the part of lease liability that has been extinguished
by the forgiveness of lease payments using the discount rates
originally applied to these leases respectively, resulting in a
decrease in the lease liabilities of approximately HK$1,904,000,
which has been recognised as variable lease payments in profit
or loss for the current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. JERBRT K BAEET s BB W
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BHI(THBMBEREERN]) (F)
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet % A0 £ 1EL 1 AR AR 3 =2 B T B R B 5T
effective Vs T s e Y
The Group has not early applied the following new and 2 58 [ i AR L RE A T 4 2 AR AR E
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet W R A2 2 B T S KA R T A s S
effective: ek MR
HKFRS 17 (including the  Insurance Contracts' FBMBEREERT RRGH
October 2020 and REF-F_FFE+
February 2022 ARZF__H_H
Amendments to HKFRS F 78 A B 5 i 2 e A
17) FE179E (BT &)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets Fl MRS ERE REH R
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its RREEGFEAE  ARRAEAE
Associate or Joint Venture? 2855 (57T &) Z [ E R i
kB
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and HSME RS ENS 16 ERER M
Leaseback? UALTIES] HEARE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Fil g e 1% BRAERRS
Current or Non-current and (BFTA) o FF L S i
related amendments to Hong A R SRR
Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)? HEET
(&% ﬂk*]‘
Amendments to HKAS 1~ Non-current Liabilities HEgaHERE 1 iR
with covenants (BFTA) JE i £ 15
(the “2022 Amendments”)? ([ZE-_F
CHIE
Amendments to HKAS Disclosure of Accounting Policies' FGTHERE IR BRI
1 and HKFRS Practice B AR AR
Statement 2 B S0k (BT &)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Fis g aHER 8 R E R
Estimates' (CHES]
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and FhEgsHEAERE  RE-ZHEE
Liabilities arising from a Single (BT A) EE R A EA
Transaction' BRI RLIE!
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

] Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Bl

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating
to material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

HKFRS 2 Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality
process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to the Practice
Statement.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” (Continued)

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of Accounting
Estimates™

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in
financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may
require such items to be measured at monetary amounts that
cannot be observed directly and must instead be estimated. In
such a case, an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve
the objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing
accounting estimates involves the use of judgements or
assumptions based on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of
the valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

U Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

U Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

U Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

J has power over the investee;

U is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

U has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

U the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

U any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”), or when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs”) (or groups
of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, or any of the
CGU within the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a CGU within a group of
CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on
the basis of the relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)
retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of a
joint venture is described below.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case
it is or the portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. Any retained portion of an investment in a joint
venture that has not been classified as held for sale continues
to be accounted for using the equity method. The financial
statements of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the joint venture. Changes in net assets of the joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

3k

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant joint
venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

3k

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when services
are rendered.

Commissions from securities dealing are recognised on the
transaction date when the relevant contracts are executed.

Placing and underwriting commissions are recognised in
accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements or deal
mandates when the relevant significant acts have been completed
(i.e. when shares are allotted).

Clearing and handling fee income are recognised when the
services have been rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights
to receive payments have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income from provision of children education services is
recognised when the educational services are rendered.

3.

7 S5 A A R Y % R
B (#)

TR G EHBOR (4)

FF AWt (47)

HHFFIERB WA ¢ Gt 8 50 2 2 ki
A E AL I

Ty i1 1%

5 RS LA B 0 B T3 o
AR BB RIS E
ST R 2 5 SRS 16 (A
BHTE TR AR Z 05 6 8 SR
B () WERR LA > UK 07 9 B R
WA S 1 A 4 SR £ )
Z BRI -

A7 I8 7 S T g it b SO T 8 B
REE— R T

B 14t e 5 1) i i 7R e 14k e B ey e

Ao o

e o 38 o A < R AT A B A AR 52
S H RS o

i B e S ] < AR A B T e 5
VELI® Pa <8 ) BRI
GRS (BB 14 246 T 5% BF) FE T =

B B F R AR B2 3L IR S fy e

o

y

0

[ HF

T
(=21

P& I 15 1B S A TR IR 3R 4 HE
A ST IRF 3. o

FLBCA TS 2 B R A A 4 e 7 T
FRRA R > iy R E RG> A
2T ¥ < il TH AT AR o A AG
A AR BT Wi R B 4 R B %
TEE TR 90 21 Tl e e 2 e T (L

4 50 5 B0 B B AR S
B IRGREERR. o

B 2 < i B A R 24 )
TR R

183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

3k

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Excludes non-lease components

Non-lease components are separated from lease components and
are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight- line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3k

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

J the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

U any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

J any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

U an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from COVID-19 related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

7 S5 A A R Y % R
B (#)

FREGHBOR (A7)

5 (47
EEFIE L RN (4H)
S

o AR S Y RLAS LA

- HEAENVEFIEER

. T BA bR B 1 s 2 mTE B AT A
FHEATEK > AT B YSof & 8
o

o AR E A AT W) 4h B R
/NI 3

o REERIRER PR E M B &
FE ~ AR ISR B T A 355 i 5
18 AR B 2 2 A B A sk &
oA BT R AR YL T 2 2 )
AAiwt o

Bk S A £ 4L
SRR 4 L 5 B T
S BEATIRE S - R R H R
ACBRAE T 2 P8 BB R
F ik - AL 54 040 £ 4 T
SHRLAEH R -

LA AR B 7 AEL SV 65 TR R 5 L A
IO R REL O P R ) o PRI
EME - AEREAEEEAMAA
LEPGE R e U e Gl G
oo EHANE DT > G R E 1%
LR R LAl {4 ) S AR A
(AR 3 /5 HE) Rt S 9 g

B ol B AT LA 7
—z——pgg 185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

3k

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are presented within the line item of property,
plant and equipment

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3k

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

U fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

U the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

U payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental
rates are initially measured using the market rental rates as at
the commencement date. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the

the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review/expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

Except for COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a
lease modification as a separate lease if:

J the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3k

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

COVID-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the change
is a lease modification if all of the following conditions are met:

. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

U any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

U there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s joint venture.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents
a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Discontinued operations (Continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented on the face of the statement of profit or loss, which
comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets
or disposal group constituting the discontinued operation.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Government grants
relating to compensation of expenses are deducted from the
related expenses, other government grants are presented under
“other income, other gains and losses”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Obligations for contributions to retirement plans, including
contributions payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRSs
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees after
deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others

providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based payment (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair values at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whether there is an indication that they may
be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
The recoverable amount is determined for the CGU or group of
CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant CGU or group of
CGUs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3k

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

2 0 2 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2022

B 3 SO 5 A A R Y ) R
B (#)

ERGEHBOR ()

Y ~ Wb Rt i ~ 161 BB i R
JETE B (P 58 B AP) i fe (7)

AT U (e 4 A A o PO (L Bl e AR
S B 2 B & o 7 RPAl 5 ]
BB - fili 5 oRAH & U 2 H 66 H
R0 i S B AR B 2 LB > T
I B 23 /5 B e i T 85 36 4 B R
[ (B 2 il S R 2 B 4 O 2 Al w3l
e ) R ) (BB B AR R 2
FEIR B

fini 5 — T A (BB & A A B 2
T ] g R A FHE R R T (E - 3%
VER A (BB 4 A B 2 MR T (E
5 IR 22 HL AT S ] < R o R T
{E i 18 Ry > 80 (E s 18 & So ki 4)
BE > 380 AT ArT 7 (078 ) 0 AR T
SR o RAR L D i B BB
o A AL AL TR H At A% E AR
R o B IREE AR 2
TR H 2 SR (E B A AR P
15 B (AN BE R 8 BCH. o 08 e (4
REEE) RE=F2RAEE - HE
0 TE 2 5% T 2 WA 18 B R A
EEA7 20 i 22 52 B A67 79 114 A 7
i A AL AL o I (E s 4R IV

JA 18 i AR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on first-in, first-out for
food and beverage segment. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3k

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, at
banks and securities brokers, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their original
condition, as required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would be required
to restore the assets, Estimates are regularly reviewed and
adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3k

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial assets or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

U the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCTI”):

J the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

U it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

U on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified

financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that is required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

210

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will
continue to be held in the FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in revenue when they
are derived from the Group’s ordinary course of business
or in the “other income, other gains and losses” line item in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(iii)) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
“other income, other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, loans and interest receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trust bank accounts and cash and cash equivalents)
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings should tailor to reporting
entity’s specific facts and circumstances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. OB EREREE R EEGG
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BOR (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEGEBOR(E)
Financial instruments (Continued) 2 TR ()
Financial assets (Continued) &l EEE ()
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) S VB T (AE)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk G) 15 B R K R 2 m
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased TE Rl B 120 WER8 LAARAE B R
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares B 75 A R B I RE > AL
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as ﬂ%ﬁé\ Hd H W TR
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on A R B B W) A0 fERR H 4
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. il B A A 4 JRUBGEAH ELEL
In making this assessment, the Group considers both TEAE R e P Al IRF > AL 2%
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable A3 e m] SE ) B B E
and supportable, including historical experience and b o FLHE I 1 AR B K R AT
forward-looking information that is available without AN AL A BB g B AT U Y
undue cost or effort. BT R
In particular, the following information is taken into JHRE > Sl BB AR
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased R 38 IRy & 5 B N SR
significantly:
e an actual or expected significant deterioration in o AT HEANE(nA) s8N
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or BAE B R AR B B S Ek T
internal credit rating; W EEEE
+  significant deterioration in external market indicators o 5B B A F T 5 4
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit T Y B = s
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor; BEEXKIEM - E5%

NEE BEA IE
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

®

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i)
it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

3.

7 S5 A A R Y % R
B (#)

FREGHBOR (A7)

el LR (7)

& il B (#)

<& O (EL ()

() R E B KR I ()

At - MEE LRAEE
A EE H RIYLEE A 15 R
AR > AR E R LR
A5 AR B ViR R R A &
BEERN - TR T SRR
BB T E A A R R 5
K = RS T H A% 4 R
& 5 Gi)EB AR TR BT
HAERH & RERERE
B85 M (i) A AN ZEES R WL
AFIEE AL AT REFER A > (HII
IR I PRARMERS NJBATH
ARIBEEREREWRES - &
A ) — TEAE S T 2L A9 (5 F L
Bt 2 A > R H BBk
SR EE AR 2 B R ERER AT E
&R -

A 1 7 0 B A A £
JRRL 2 5 A W 8 T ) R ) A
R SR HAEAT BT
DA RE R 5% 7 18 BB 00 A5 R T 30
Tl 1 5 5 JRL e ) B 1

B 2 < i B A R 24 )

Sxo—pgn 215



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

3k

216

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

@iv)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

218

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or the
Group has the sole discretion to defer payment of distribution
and redemption of principal amount indefinitely are classified as
equity instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in

a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for
trading or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

U it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

U on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making; or

o it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading (or contingent consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination) may be designated as
at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

U such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

J the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

U it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For financial liabilities that
contain embedded derivatives, the changes in fair value of the
embedded derivatives are excluded in determining the amount
to be presented in other comprehensive income. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to
accumulated losses upon derecognition of the financial liability.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, other

borrowing and lease liabilities) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person, or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

(i)  has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

226

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Recognition of deferred taxation

No deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of the
estimated unused tax losses of approximately HK$111,064,000
(2021: HK$81,821,000) available for offset against future
profits that may be carried forward indefinitely due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. In additions, the
Group has deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$16,525,000 (2021: approximately HK$28,315,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. The realisability of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less than or
more than expected, a material reversal or recognition of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss
for the period in which such a reversal or recognition takes place.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

As at 31 December 2022, impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$5,168,000 (2021: HK$9,999,000) had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income during the year. Details of the
impairment of goodwill is disclosed in Note 18.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and loans and interest
receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on internal credit
ratings/past due analysis as groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportably
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.

Impairment loss on loans and interest receivables represent
management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the loan
portfolio at the reporting date under ECL models. Management
assesses whether the credit risk of loan receivables have
increased significantly since their initial recognition and apply a
three-stage impairment model to calculate their ECL. The Group
is required to exercise judgement in making assumptions and
estimates when calculating loan impairment loss, including any
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from loans portfolio and
historical loss experience on the basis of the relevant observable
data that reflects current economic conditions.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
and loans and interest receivables, are disclosed in Notes 38.2.2.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining whether
an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and
make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an appropriate discount
rate. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) is approximately
HK$33,346,000 (2021:HK$23,454,000), after taking into
account of the impairment losses of approximately HK$Nil
(2021: HK$7,171,000) was recognised during the year. Details
of the impairment of property, plant and equipment, is disclosed
in Note 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The Directors determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
observable market data are not available, the Group engages
independent qualified professional valuers to perform the
valuation and works closely with the independent qualified
professional valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value
of certain types of financial instruments. The use of valuation
models and assumptions in valuing these financial instruments is
subjective and requires varying degrees of judgement. Note 38.3
provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of various assets and liabilities.
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5. REVENUE 5. WA

232

Revenue represents income received and receivable during the

year and is summarised as follows:

oA B8 45 7 R MR A, B
AT

2022 2021
RO B
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
(Restated)
(KEE )
Continuing operations FEREEH
Revenue from contracts with AR E T v A e
customers within the scope of 1S R E RN mE R
HKFRS 15 HHEBA
Alcoholic beverage distribution and TR EORL 3 81 N A T SE 55
miscellaneous business 1,596 1,264
Food and beverage business B MOk ZES 117,564 144,067
Provision of children education services /& it 58 % 2 F IR %S 4,500 4,448
Provision of financial services P A 4 Rl AR S
— Commission from securities dealing — R G 5,527 4,515
— Placing and underwriting — P RS M
commission 202 25
— Bonds commission — &5 M4 — 30
— Clearing and handling fee income L VER (N 513 275
— Asset management commission —EEEHEME 15 292
129,917 154,916
Revenue from other sources Al A P U A
Dividend income from listed equity T AR e B A
investments 316 202
Loan interest income A B A 2,713 2,006
Provision of financial services P2 AL 45 Al R 55
— Interest income from securities - B SE P AL
clients e A 8,957 7,640
11,986 9,848
141,903 164,764
Timing of revenue recognition WO T i Y B ]
A point in time — {18 1R[] 134,763 158,466
Over time P iy [H] 7,140 6,298
141,903 164,764

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from

contracts with customers in existence at the reporting date.
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REVENUE (Continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121
of HKFRS 15 to its revenue contracts for not disclosing the
remaining performance obligations under the Group’s existing
contracts as these contracts had an original expected duration of
one year or less.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

—  Money lending segment comprises provision of loan
financing in Hong Kong;

—  Financial services segment comprises advising and dealing
in securities and asset management;

—  Securities investment segment comprises investment in
listed securities;

—  Food and beverage segment in Hong Kong;

—  Alcoholic beverage distribution and miscellaneous business
comprises sales of premium wine and whisky and trading
of miscellaneous goods in Hong Kong; and

—  Kindergarten or pre-school education business.

An operating segment relating food and beverage segment in
Singapore was discontinued in the current year. The segment
information reported below does not include any amounts for
this discontinued operation, which is described in more detail in
Note 10. Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with current year’s presentation.

5.

WA (#)

AR [ of A ol S S T YE RIS 15
P21 B P AT AT REE T ik
JA A & o Slf 28 4 5 A 4 B
A EHETT B R BRI A R - R
Py 55 6 R EOR T T 2 — A S LA
s o

Zg i

o] A% W) g (R 32 S PR
FOEEEBURERE ) REUMEE
U3 BL B at il o R B ik 2 R
BETR BT 22 A s 4R 2 & SR 5
FHAIERE

BB S > MR E s B
HIZE8SE » AL [H 2 w] Hi i 40 F
T

- ES BN ES RS
Ril&

- RIS B TS LR S R
HAKEEXLGUREES
3

- EHEHRESFAOER ETWEE
PHRE ;

- REBER R RECR

- RS EORL I 8 B METE 26 R4
TP 7 i 4 R A I st
B MMEHE Y K

- RS RTBT R -

T RT3 5 5 B A T o S O Y
REDBORAFRELIL - TR
SRS FERA ST A LR
EH WM SR - SRR ERS
(938 Z FE R BT RE 104t « 25 T [
WY R BT i AR
2S5 -

B 2 < i B A R 24 )
TR R

233



inued)

1 Statements (Cont

inancia

Notes to the Consolidated F

i o A 5 R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %

(#)

:“. »
pt

T—HIEFE

= S

o 2 F YRS ) HE O Sk
) B Y sk T L B G [l sk

o%mmmN%@N%%ﬁﬁwmﬂﬁ
AU LM LM o [ IR M A (B
S ) I~ oy %%%%ﬁﬁﬁ,a%
ZHRI SO —5FW A Y BhE W
SN YIS ZBHEFUTI Y
B I L 2 R SR YR Y

"SQOTATAS JR[IUUIS
10J senJed [eUI9IXd JOYI0 0} S[qR[IBAL 9SOY) 0} SWLIA) JB[IWIS U0 paseq sI Surord juswgas-1ajuy

“JUQUISSISSE douRWLIOIAd pue uonedo[e
901n0sa1 Jo sosodind oy 10J INQOD Y3 03 periodar anseaw ay) SI SIY, *SIS00 UOHBISIUIpPE
[eIJUSD PUB SISOD QOURUIY ‘QIMuoA Julof B JO S)[NSaI JO AIBYS ‘SASSO] Uk Sures Y0 ‘Quodur
JOUJO Ul POpN[OUl SB QWOOUI AIPUNS UIeIdD PUB SSO] AZUBYIX USIAIO) JoU ‘SJUSUWIISIAUL puny
PISI[UN WOIJ JWOIUI PUIPIAIP ‘QUIOIUT JSAIAIUI JUBQ JO UOHEBIO[[B INOYIIM JUdWSIS yoea Aq

m@@w_m TR L L HE %@ \ E L) gm/@ (1] Hy 26 ¥ poures jijoxd/(woiy ssof) Yy syuasardar Jijord/(ssop) JuawSeg ‘¢ JON UI paso[dsIp se sardrjod
188 [ 3N 7 SRR T e 2 1 7l B Sununoooe s, dnoin oy) se dwes Ay Are sjusw3es Junerado oyl Jo sarorjod Fununoode A,
I
ety ') WYY ¥ 210j3 5507
(FOr'+1) VUL e §1500 UOIRISIUILIPE (21U
(189'¢) ‘_&i x §1500 00UEUL]
) - BE7ETELM. g aimuas Juof e Jo sjjnsal Jo areyg
606 €687 HEY TR VNI $3SS0] PUE SUIPS JAJ0 ‘AU0IUT JAY)(0)
(+s8'1) (pLL?) (0s0) (89p) (0r'e) (190°s) 98 (htd] 961'L 180 e 911 () (s8r'p) W/ oudj(sso) uausag
PL9E SO6TH Y% anuana dnoy
(e) (L) 3 voneut|g
OLLTI! 08641 8y 008 A 099 19071 POSLIT we 91¢ 03LT 817's1 900 £ILT YWy anana awag
4l LL - = - £L - = - - 4l b - - Yl MWD JUaS-1ayu]
P91 £06°TFT izad 005 Wl 968 1901 PSLIT w0 91g LULT PITST 90T €ILT 2 S H Y SIUIOJSNY [EUIAINA WO} ANUAATY
8679 0t w0y iy - = - = - = - = 9007 €ILT I 434 auy JoAQ
99¥8¢1 £9LHET 91 €L il 968 L90¥71 P9Il we 91¢ LLLTI PITS] - - e o uiod y
AR Sy s vopnudooa anuasda jo Supuy £q pajesaisiesiq
Uphs EEE L4 BRI 1Ly EEE aﬁ% OO 1L RETEO 0 RERTE UG SR
000.8¥H 000$YH  JUULRSSI (I116: 1 QR 000.S3H 000SYH  JUUURSuS (TRY: O 000 SYH 000$YH  UOOAS 000SYH  JUULRSS 000.$YH
A $—5T el i [l - e ael i e i ERRa G ET
120¢ 120¢ ({4 120¢ e 120¢ i 120¢ 120¢ e 120¢ i HEEHEY suogesado unuyuo)
LY HUSREY B E AR 2 R R RS o
[e10], SIIALAS UONRINPA UIIP[IT]) STOUL[[ISIUI pue 3381949 pue poog JUDUISIAU SILINIAG SAOIALAS [RIURUL Supuay SHuopy

uonqLISIp 3§e1943 AOYOA[Y

AL C A
ﬁ%k@ﬂ%%%j

BNV Tl &
() By 9

L LG [

:Juowi3as 9[qeyrodar pue
Sunerodo £q suonerado wWoI} SINSAI puB dNUAARI S, dnoI) Y} JO SISA[eur Ue ST SUIMO[[0F AU L,

S)[NSII PUB INUIAJI JUIWITIS

(ponunuo)d) NOLLVINMOANI INHINDIS

imited

China Demeter Financial Investments L

Annual Report 2022

234



inued)
af (78)
—H A

1 Statements (Cont

6 W 85 e % B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %

inancia

Notes to the Consolidated F

CET TS A=

o MY

YEHETHWIUHT Y B 1Y é,me Il
%%F,«nﬁ,@ 033k & 5 ;m_m%& .

%

COEHTMUBE R AW

WU EHTWUHERRT
NGHBML N[0y - HIB WL T
BEMHEYERBYH  BRIFIE
QEW% HEMARSH T IE XY -

b B I TR 0 [ 2 B S T O T o B A T

"SANI[IqeI] pajedo[eun pue 9jerodios ‘uonerado
PONUIIUOISIP WOIJ SANI[IQRI] UBY) IOYJ0 sjuawi3as Sunerado 0} pejedof[e 218 SanI[Iqer| [[e .

pue ‘sjuowFos Funerado 0 pajedo[[e ATk Josse J[qISULIUL pUB [[IMPOOS .
‘s19sse pajedo[[eun pue 9)e1odiod ‘Quroour sAIsuayaIduwod
I9U)O Y3NOoIy} an[eA IIeJ J8 S}OSSe [BIOUBUIJ ‘QINJUAA Jurof e ur juaunseAur ‘uonerado

PoONUNIUOOSIP WOIJ SJ9sSe uey) Ioylo sjuawdas Sunerodo 0} pajedo[[e oIe S1asse [[e .

:sjuowI3as
U99M)2q S2IN0SAI SUNeOO[[B put douewIoIad Juowsas Surrojruow Jo sosodind oy 10,4

99 010611

410 SO paEpIosto)

ﬂ a I | pejedo][eun pue BEQQEU
61 - atodedurg ur ssaursng aelanaq
pUe pooj panurjuodsIp 0y MEEE SaNIIqer]
6911 197911 600° 6017 1 071 15719 WIS - - 9107¢ S10'8¢ Iy S60'ET Y sanjiqe] jusuidag
I
15595 186847 Bl $135SE pajepI[OsL0))
£99°7 S01'6 HEWLY Y §Jasse pajeaojjeun pue ajeiodio))
0 €L HYRT 70N WO AISUARIW0)
HERH Y LTHY T 10110 4noxy) an[eA Jief 12 SJaSSE [RIOURUL]
616 - HY Wy arodedurg ur ssauisng
W TS50 25eiaNaq pue pooj panunuoasip o) Sunelal sjassy
SPE6TT 807667 oI's 9 0299 989’ 0ELTE phy'9p 9L9 09817 990°¢1 gl 10072 L1781 HHEY RERAIEIEEN
(I6E3) (6%
(pawsay) (pawsay)
Uiy ST 1L ST TN GG EESTE 1LY RSSE LLAR |ESEEN 014G REEEE 1)
000.83H 000.8YH 000.$3H 000.$3H 000.5YH 000.$YH 000.53H 000$3H 000.$3H 000.$YH 000.$YH 000.53H 0008H
EA AR T AR L Ry BRSO i d T TET Rl b [l T [
120t e 120t e 120t e 120t e e 120t e 120 e
27 HEREY e A L Wy i BT L
1101, SIIAAS UOIJRINPI UAIP[IY) SNOJUE[[ISIUI pue a3e1a8a pue poog JUDUIJSIAUT SALINGIG SIOIAIAS [RIOURUL Supuay fduopy
TONNQLISIP 5LIIAIG OOV
Rl | JuUAWIAS
HEBEE Y TS E T mw [ 72 b7 ur ,3 Sunerado pue oiqeirodar Aq seni[iger] pue s)asse s .dnoio) ayy Jo SIsA[eue ue sI SUIMO[[O] Y],
HYyEHuy SANI[IGRI] PUB SJISSE JUIUIZIS

() By 9

(ponunuo)) NOLLVINIOANI INANDHS

TR 235

B 24 R 24 7



inued)

1 Statements (Cont

inancia

Notes to the Consolidated F

i o A 5 R

(#)

:“. »
pt

T—HIEFE

= S

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %

- TY

%O B i i ﬂ%ﬂ@w\mwéw@ : ﬂ&ﬂ H

*dnoin) oY) Jo onuoAAI (8101 Ay}

— — T % 09 I9A0 PAINQINUOD SIAWOISNO Ou ue JoquIQ09 Qpua SIBAK ) JuLIn,
A= g=L — —T Y 30 %01 peingt 10T pue ¢Z0¢ 1oq! d ¢ P°P 3 surm
HBZAdEmTMY SI2W0)snd Jolew Jnoge uoneuLIojuy
o M UTH HUEMBE LY DT E -a10de3UIg UT ssouIsSng 93eI9A9q pue pooj 0) Sure[aI AIRIpISqns
Fi G L3 ek Y 37 8 3 e ) 2 I M S TS S TR N A ® Jo [esodsip jo uonordwos oy uodn AJuo Fuoy SuoH ur pajedo] are suonerado s dnoin ayf,
L i uoneuriojul fedrgdeados
o 2, S i L Jut [eory D
o HHGHE B G333 ‘uonerado
PP B W« EM T E Y E W # : FE panunuodsIp ay) 0) Sune[ar asoy) apnoxe pue yuawdimba pue juerd ‘Ayrodord opnour $39SSE JUALINI-UON :9ION
I
11900 66097
56 - (F4)

(EH[FUAFTSE  (0) S1aSSe JUaLInd-uot o) SUOIpPE Pajeaoffeuy)
0L9°L1 060'8T 887 - - - B ST - - il L 88 00€° @mn@fm (210N 12858 JuaLma-UoU 0} SONIppY
(01¢) o - o (0¢) o - o - = - = - o § Sa[qeAIR3a1 apey) Jo $s0] juautredut jo [psiaAdy
11 - - - - - LI - - - - - - - 5

H 7y 4 sy wowdmba pue jueld ‘Auadoxd jo ssof auutedu]
16¢ L6 - - - - - - - - - - Jiss LS6'T HHAHDE 7 SOCERg  SolqeAladanIsalajut pue SuRo] Jo $so] Juounreduy
666 891's - - 6666 991's - - - - - - - - HHAE 7 5 144003 o 550] Jeuuediny

(0s) - - - - - - - - - - - (08) Al uaudinba

T LW ERS T pue jueyd ‘fadoxd jo fesodsip uo uren)
I
95517 £ar'sr
19 118 FUNY
$6500 Tl ST 8807 - - $89°¢1 T95'ET 6 6 1 It WLT LLST e g1 uogesIowe pue uopeisaidaq

WEZHRRY §J5Se Juau3as 10 580 10 J1j0d JudwGds

WO J0 2INSLAUI 3} Ul PApR[IUI SUNOUY

(14 (14
(poreisay) (poreisay)
ULhH SRR iy REETEI 0010 REETTE L7 RERE ULAT |ESEEN 00147 EEEEGE 0L
000.83H 000.8YH 000.$3H 000.$YH 000.$3H 000.$YH 000.53H 000.$YH 000$3H 000.8¥H 000.$YH 000.53H 000$3H
T3 Emeeanll b T Elmeeanl - [Emetaa -G [Ejme Emee 2l 3 el - [
120 e 120t e 120t e 1200 e e 120 e 120 (/4 HEETE suoryesado Sumuyuo))

2 ey HHO R S Wy A e Ll

[e10, SIOTAIAS HONRINPA UIIP[IY) SNOJUL[[ISIUI PuUB 3381943 pue pooyg JUIAUJSIAUT SLINIIG [ENREN UL Supuay Sduopy

UONNQLISIP 35LIIAIG OOV
BRI UON)RULIOJUI JUIUWIZAS J3YI()

() By 9

(ponunuo)d) NOLLVINMOANI INHINDIS

‘9

imited

China Demeter Financial Investments L

Annual Report 2022

236



7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. AW ~ HoAth i g5 R E
2022 2021
i [ i
HK$°000 HKS$’000
BT T
(Restated)
(R EZ)
Continuing operations FEREEH
Bank interest income RATFLE A 44 22
Dividend income from fund investments & &% & 2 BLE A - 38
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE - RE K
and equipment A 2 W A 50 -
Impairment loss of loans and interest JRE B SR R B 2
receivables T AE G 15 (1,957) (357)
Bonds interest income BEHFEUA = 264
Interest income from other receivables — HA FE WG FIE A = 666
Impairment loss of property, plant and W - W7 Rt 2
equipment T AE G 15 - (7,171)
Over-provision for re-instatement cost 18 JFU A 2 8 % 135 - 700
Reversal of impairment loss of trade JARE AT R R 2 Dk {48 43 T
receivables - 346
Government grant (Note) BT A4 Bl (B &) 6,598 2,879
Gain on early termination of leases RE& A2
I i 3,496 121
Management fee income =R 1PN — 2,362
Loss on disposals of financial assets at A REEEA
fair value through other comprehensive — HoAth 2 i Y 25 -~ 4 fil
income e 2 iR - (763)
Sundry income METE A 1,181 936
Consultancy and referral fee income A ) B A A 1,930 2,150
Net foreign exchange gain BEE 52, Ui 4 T+ %E 23 247
11,365 2,440

Note:

Among the government subsidies, approximately HK$3,699,000 (2021: HK$Nil)
are government grants obtained from the Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”)
under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees.
Under the ESS, the Group had to commit to spend these grants on payroll
expenses, and not to reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a
specified period of time. The Group has complied with the requirements set out

in the ESS for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The remaining balances included other COVID-19 relief subsidies received. As
at the end of the reporting period, there were no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to the subsidies and government grants that had been

recognised by the Group.

B A B S 4 7 953,699,000 8 (2 ——
AE YRR IT) B T v R I AT OB B 1
P8 I A TEUR (R A0 2w T 3 (T OR  3Eat 3 ) 16
ASEE S AHE BB &R o MBIk 2ER!
B o A A [ B R 0 5% 5 il B VR B 7 4 B
2o i AE PR AE R R A9 AR B A ek > &
HEKTLAT o REFRREE T 4F 1
ZHZ—HILFEER BTA Bt
ZHUE °

BT 55 B A A ) A 7 2 e R At
O o R IR o AR SR I R Y
i Sl B U A B o S A B A S8Rt B0
PERIELT »

B 2 < i B A R 24 )
TR R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBMA
2022 2021
- Y 2 . St
HK$°000 HKS$’000
#WT T T T
(Restated)
(R E51)
Continuing operations FEREEH
Interest on lease liabilities FHE & &M B 2,013 3,115
Interest on other borrowing oA 1 B2 S 1,665 798
Finance charge o5 % H 3 5
3,681 3,918
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FfEBiHX
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$°000
T W T T
Continuing operations FHEREEH
Current tax: RUABLIA
Hong Kong Profits Tax RERIEE] 125 197
(Over)/under-provision in prior years: AR (AR ),
AL
Hong Kong Profits Tax T s MG (56) 288
Total income tax expense recognised in 5 £ ffERE 2 FIr 5B
profit or loss B S AR 69 485

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 3 8 Annual Report 2022

ANE—NEZA—+—H > Fib
SEIR SRR R — LAEBLE (1BFT)
(BET790) Rl S (B ER]) - H
51 AT S5 R ATl S 1 BE o A fpi] R
BN F— ) E=H -+ NHESE
BRI R 2 H TS E R - R
T 5% i R A5 Bl B > B B AR AR
I 1% 7 9 852,000,000 7€ T A
15:8.25% [ Bl R BBL - T 8 48 s U
2,000,000 7C 1 ¥4 Al 4 4% 16.5 % 19 Bl
REBL o RFFA AR RSB0 E A
) A B BT B 2 s i 4 A 1 16.5%
2 B — B R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. PR BR X (4D
Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying PRt - & A% 4R BB B S s RIS B
group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of Tk W ¥52,000,0000C 2 A 51 RERR
the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated Bt vas F 4% i 2K 8.25% wt F - olfi kM
assessable profits above HK$2 million. i 95 152,000,000 70 2 Al 51 HE B s
FFZFEF16.5% 7155
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates A ] 2 4 [ A AR 2 B TE T 4 AH B
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. j Rl AT RLR G
Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations, the Group is not R 45 B 45 R I e fie o] > A4 i
subject to income tax in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). o JoB R L T e (TR B 0 & I )
TR BN BT AR o
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss AR 2 B AR BH S BL AR G 1H £ X
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and HCAth 4 TH i 4 3R 2 BR BRI e 4R 2
other comprehensive income as follows: HRUF -
2022 2021
R TR T A
HK$’000 HK$’000
#W T W T T
(Restated)
(K 51)
Loss before tax from continuing A H A RS 2
operations RGN <Fi= (20,026) (17,907)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of A WA BIR A
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) 16 S%air%’,cwﬁ
TET 0 16.5%) (3,304) (2,954)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A T?D ol 2 32 2 BB 52 28
tax purpose 2,899 3,074
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax  #:ZHFBL 2 WL A 2 B 5 2
purpose (1,977) (1,096)
Utilisation of deductible temporary By ) JE Al AR A RE 2 nT 0l
differences previously not recognised T IR 25 50 (2,194) (744)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KT HERR 2 B s 1E
BB 4,825 2,112
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior #4F:4F B (F 4R ),/
years BN 2 (56) 288
Income tax of concessionary rate BEERR TSR 124) (193)
Income tax expense for the year (from A A B B 5
continuing operations) (2K B R RS T 69 485
B 2 S A PR A T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

% 5 W 55 i 3 B

(#)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

10.

240

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Food and beverage business in Singapore

On 14 January 2022, City Ally Holdings Limited (“City Ally”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
sale and purchase agreement with an individual (‘“Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to purchase, and City
Ally agreed to sell, (i) the Sale Share, representing the entire
issued share capital of Amber Glory International Limited
(“Amber Glory”), a company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands with limited liability: and (ii) the Sale Loan, representing
all the shareholder’s
aggregate consideration of S$5,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$29,000). The Purchaser is a director of a subsidiary of
Amber Glory and a director of a subsidiary of a joint venture of

loan owing by the Amber Glory, at an

the Group.

The completion of the disposal took place on 14 January 2022,
and the Group has ceased to hold any equity interest in Amber
Glory and its subsidiary (“Amber Glory Group”) and each
member of the Amber Glory Group has ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company.

The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income have been restated
to re-present the results of the food and beverage business in
Singapore as discontinued operation.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2022

10.

DA IR R
B3 Z £ i B OB

REFZF—HTMH > RAH
2 B A D W I A A R S D
([BEm )l — 2 N (THFDFT L E
B ek > R0 B 7[R A K
W R B GOFEE R > S
BEARAE (TR > — ik )E
B BEE MR 2 HRA R 2
e BITRA ; Ra)FERK -
ﬁ}E%Ax‘HAZﬁﬁﬂXﬁﬁTJ\ ’ nw)’fﬁ
B 45,0008 135 T CHH 785 iR 4 4
29,0007C) ° B 5 /A H1RE — R B
Al —ZERLKAREEH —-HEER
¥ZMBARZ —2EF -

HEFHEHR -F - —4F—H+HH
ST AKLEC AT A HNEX
LR > w1 (30 8 4 11 ) 22 AT Al
fE > MFARELE H & B A Rl E A
RALNF Z W& AT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — 3~ 4= H =+—HIFF ¥

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 10. ERILBBERK )

B Z £ b B OBLE 85 (4)

Food and beverage business in Singapore (Continued)

A H o RTINI  B SR
BB 2 EE - AR RRERMT ¢

The assets, liabilities and gain on disposal of food and beverage
business in Singapore as at the date of disposal are as follows:

HK$’000

BT
The net liabilities disposed of are as follows: CEAEEEE T
Property, plant and equipment E BN Y& ] 82
Trade receivables JREMSCHR 5K 10
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Fie g~ FAAT RO B Ath B s R TH 344
Cash and cash equivalents B4 T B4 S5 B 372
Shareholder’s loan Ji% R A K (7,124)
Trade and other payables and accruals A TR R B At R AN SR T B

A (1,451)

Lease liabilities HEAR (450)
Net liabilities disposed of O & A REHE (8,217)
Gain on disposal: s
Consideration RAH 29
Shareholder’s loan disposed of o B R AR (7,124)
Net liabilities disposed of o E AT 8,217
Release of foreign currency translation reserve 135 o] S W SR A AR 184
Gain on disposal HAE I A 1,306
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: R AR B UL AR
Cash consideration Bl E 29
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W B2 Ble MBS EY (372)
Net cash outflow B4 3 i3 AR (343)

B 2 < i B A R 24 ) 241
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

10.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 10. BRILBEEE )
Food and beverage business in Singapore (Continued) B3 Z £ b S BB SE B (4E)
The profit for the year from the discontinued food and beverage A A IR RT3k 2 B i B ok
business in Singapore is set out below. The comparative SEBS YA i A SN T - FRAHE
figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and gt I LA A THT AL 5 3R R ) LR
other comprehensive income have been restated to re-present SE » U 2 & il okt
the results of the food and beverage business in Singapore as EFNEBERERSHOLLRE
discontinued operation. T o
Period from
1 January to
14 January
2022 2021
—H—H=ZE
—H+MH
191 1) —E 4
HK$°000 HK$’000
BTt T T
Revenue WA - 12,721
Cost of sales S AR - (5,593)
Other income, other gain and losses HAbsg A ~ HAblk £ K18 = 546
General and administrative expenses — M R AT B S (178) (10,143)
Finance cost W55 AR - (132)
(178) (2,601)
Gain on disposal B U A 1,306 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from B S8 2B RS 2 AR N
discontinued operation it A, (E518) 1,128 (2,601)
Profit/(loss) for the year from IR EERZ
discontinued operation includes the WA O E) 55
following: THI&HE :
Depreciation reg - 1,438
Salaries and other benefit e M H A AR A 171 4,631
Contribution to retirement benefit EY AN R
schemes - 696
Gain on early termination of leases B E 2 s = (111)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYIZE - WU K 2
equipment 518 = 1,111
Interest on lease liabilities & A & FLE - 132
Cash flows from discontinued CARIEREEF SRR
operation
Net cash inflow from operating R B B AT
activities 323 1,271
Net cash outflow from financing Pl 1 ) B 4 U o R AR
activities - (1,597)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BABWA () 54 323 (326)

242
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Continuing operations

11.

A4 i 8

T B A8 2

2022 2021
TR U —E
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T WHT T
(Restated)
(K E )
Loss for the year from continuing FRBURCE S Z PN
operations has been arrived at after IR T S EiiNy
charging/(crediting): T4 -
Employee benefits expense (excluding SRR AP NORRE: -
directors’ emoluments) P 4)
— Salaries and other benefits - e M HAbAE R 58,378 62,656
— Contributions to retirement benefits — R ARAE R F# HE
schemes 2,349 2,548
— Equity-settled share-based payments — DUBRA &S S B AR 327 -
Directors’ emoluments N 4 5,176 4,011
Total staff costs i B A #8 66,230 69,215
Cost of inventories recognised as an TEwR 5y B L 2 AE B LA
expense (included in cost of sales and (FEA 818 SR LA
services) 46,100 54,770
Auditors’ remuneration % B S T 1,072 1,086
Depreciation of property, plant and W ~ W7 B s i g5
equipment 18,123 21,556
Net foreign exchange gain 471 BEE e 50, 3¢ 0 2 (23) (247)
COVID-19-related rent concessions 1 28 e R 7 A R R <6 ek (1,904) 910)
R ) 4 43 A PR 2 )

TR R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fa 0 WW B5 Hie  B (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

12A. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE EMOLUMENTS 12A. EF R EEITHABEME

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to each of the EL A sk A AR A B 45 3 T e AT
directors of the Company and the chief executive are as follows: BB Z MR HRsIanT

Salaries, Contributions
allowance to retirement Equity-settled
and benefits benefits  share option Discretionary
in kind schemes expense bonuses Total

Bao WM BIEM DUREEASH
e REWHEN BB WERERX  BERA at
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
whTr  #WTx  #WTx  #WTx  #%Txn #%Tx

2022 I S
Executive directors AES
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Chief REWEE

Executive Officer) (frEA%) - 3,305 29 - 123 3457
Mr. Chan Chi Fung BRAESEE = 742 18 23 14 1,107
Non-executive director FfTES
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul BB AE

(Chairman) (Note (iv)) (1) (kv 240 - 12 - - 252

Independent non-executive ~ Bor kBT E S

directors
Mr. Chan Hin Hang BT e 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien ~ {E52 & 56 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Hung Kenneth wEREA 120 = = = = 120
600 4,047 59 223 247 5,176

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 4 4 Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — 3~ 4= H =+—HIFF ¥

RA.EHFREEITHRNEBEMNE (F

12A. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to each of the
directors of the Company and the chief executive are as follows:

EAT SR AR R A HE R ER T
BN B 2 e wt e s T - (4)

(Continued)
Salaries,  Contributions
allowance toretirement  Equity-settled
and benefits benefits  share option  Discretionary
Fees in kind schemes expense bonuses Total
e RKEN URESR
e REWREA Gt BRERX MR &t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
whTr WMt EWTr  BWTx BNt % T
2021 I e
Executive directors AEs
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Chief RIEW Fetk
Executive Officer) (T8 ) - 1,636 n - 130 1,788
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul SRS (1)
(Chairman) (Note (i)) (HEEG) - 1,09 17 - - 1,107
Mr. Lam Chun Kei (Note (i)~ #RE 584 (ki) - 400 12 - - 412
Mr. Chan Chi Fung (Note (iii) ~ FRE#55E4
(& i) - 247 6 - 31 284
Non-executive director FoTES
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul SR A (F )
(Chairman) (Note (i)) (HEEG)) 60 - - - - 60
Independent non-executive BukafEs
directors
Mr. Chan Hin Hang BRATT oA 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien ~ {E52 & /24 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Hung Kenneth MR R 120 - - - - 120
420 3373 57 - 161 4,011
Notes: BT
@) Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul was re-designated from an executive director to i) HoZ - —F+HANHE > X’k
a non-executive director and remained as the chairman with effect from 4 AERBMATEREFMEAFERITES > M
October 2021. BT -
(i)  Mr. Lam Chun Kei resigned as an executive director with effect from 1 (i1) HoZ 4L —H# > MRk
September 2021. AERHEATES -
(iii)  Mr. Chan Chi Fung was appointed as an executive director with effect (i) HAZFZ—FIH—H® gk
from 1 September 2021. HERAT BT E DS o
(iv) Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul has been re-designated from a non-executive ivv B-FE=F—HAHH& > LXKk

director to an executive director and will remain as the chairman with
effective from 5 January 2023.

A AT G S BT S
AL -

B ol B AT LA 7
—z——ggy 245



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

12A. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE EMOLUMENTS RA.EFREEITBENBME (&)

(Continued)

The emoluments shown above for executive directors were
mainly for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The fees for the non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. No inducement
payments to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office were paid or payable to any director or the chief
executive officer for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, one (2021: None)
director was granted share options, in respect of their services
to the Group under the share option scheme of the Company.
Details of the share option scheme are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

12B. LOANS, QUASI-LOANS AND OTHER DEALINGS IN  12B. & A% AN EZ - BERK

FAVOUR OF DIRECTORS HAtl 22 5
Amount due from a director JEWL — 44 % HAkIH
Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year ended
BEUT HBIEAEER
STV RIE |
Asat Asat As at
1 January RIS LSa 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2021 2022 2022 2021
TR SR Y “ECCE TR
—A—H TZA=1T—H peiEe i VIS el I~/ — —H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT BT
Mr. Lam Chun Kei* NS 1,028 808 - 820 1,061

These amounts are non-trade related, unsecured, carried interest RS KA L B B M SRR
rate of 9% per annum and repayable on 10 April 2022. Yo% F Rt B RHAR T

A+ HEE -

* Mr. Lam Chun Kei resigned as executive director with effect from 1 & MERIEEC R - F - —F LA —H
September 2021. BEAT AT 2 SIS o

B o il 27 26 7
-y 247



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13. Tofa v i g H
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year AR > A B T4 Bom B E B
included, two directors (2021: two directors) of the Company, Ho WA (CEZ—F ML) A
details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 12 above. ISFEIES > WE 2 E R EOR
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three SCHEREL2 o RAFEEHR T =24 (2
(2021: three) highest paid employees who are neither a director T ZR)WHRALNAEE
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: REBITHANEBZ R HiE B 2 M
EWr
2022 2021
TR U —E T —F
HK$°000 HKS$’000
#W T T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #74x - HHGE S E W) 48 A 3,964 5,221
Discretionary bonuses MG fE AL 570 1,103
Contributions to retirement benefits AR ORAR A 5 3K
schemes 54 54
4,588 6,378
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the Pl <5 A0 ~F- LA T 6 & iz IF A |
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the HZmBiEBZBEWT

following bands is as follows:

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000
i3 BT T
Emolument bands P <55 A
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000  #%1,000,001 JC % # #1,500,0007C 2 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000  #5%1,500,001 Jt £ #5 ¥:2,000,0007C - -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000  #%2,000,001 JC £ # #2,500,0007C 1 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000  #:%2,500,001 7t % i# 3,000,000 7C - 1
3 3
During the prior year, certain non-director and non-chief NEFEEN - HTHRFEEN RS
executive highest paid employees were granted share options, TN B W B g B AR A A
in respect of their services to the Group under the share option A B R ST > SRS ) A R [E] 4R
scheme of the Company. Details of the share option scheme are b 0 AR T A B I o B AR T
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. HTE 1 R R B R N 535 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

14. DIVIDEND

15.

14. BE

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders

of the Company during the year, nor has any dividend been

proposed since the end of the reporting period (2021: HK$Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

15.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable

to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

7% B 307 48 ) AR 2 ) 3 4 BB R IR
T EBEIRA IS, - B R IR LA
IR EBEIRAEAT B (% — — 4

BB 1R
oA AR e DA R AR SR B

AR TR N AL B FBC TR AR I
Je R I ARAE DA B R 5

Loss I 18
2022 2021
S~ Y E A
HK$°000 HK$’000
#W T W T T
Loss for the year attributable to owners 715 % I 3 A K 48 s 18
of the Company for the purpose of AN FHEA N
basic and diluted loss per share JREAG 4 T 5 4R (18,844) (20,558)
Number of shares MR8 H
2021
—E T
’000
T
Issued ordinary shares at beginning of 44 2 85173 48 i
the year 612,118 153,029
Effect of rights issue on 29 July 2021 AN S S ) & ity n N E|
(Note 33(i)) A 1) R 28 (W 51 331) - 250,871
Issue of shares upon exercise of share A fe s PR REAR B2 AT I Ay
options (Note 33(ii)) (B 5 33(i)) 8,635 -
Issue of placing shares (Note 33(iii)) BEAT IO A (B 33 (i) 33,004 -
Weighted average number of ordinary 288 BI04 B
shares 653,757 403,900
5 = INF]
e een 249



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

Loss figures are calculated as follows:

15.

BB 1R (A7)

PAZERS Pt 377

ENSEEFEAE - P N/NTE Z DN
B A e P A 5 9 s 48 T AR LA
T EEERE

R B R

2022 2021
G- SN TR T A
HK$000 HK$°000
T T T
(Restated)
(K 51)
Loss for the year attributable to owners A2 Al #EA A MELS
of the Company N R (18,844) (20,558)
Less: (Profit)/loss for the year attributable i : 2K [ O £% 1 £8%5 2675
to owners of the Company from P N/NEIE 2SN
discontinued operation HEAL 4E 1A (%5 F)) s 18 (1,128) 2,601
Loss for the year attributable to owners #1528 [ F748 #8265
of the Company for the purpose of 2R A S i e 1R
basic and diluted loss per share from AN AN
continuing operations JEEAG AT T4 5 4R (19,972) (17,957)

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

From discontinued operation

R TA IR S

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

BB 1R (A7)

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Earnings/(loss) per share FRAEF () -
— Basic (HK cents) — BRI 0.17 (0.64)
- Diluted (HK cents) — T G A0) 0.17 (0.64)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T
Profit/(loss): Al (k548)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to I 455 £ 4% 11 58485 3675
owners of the Company for the PASYIE TNE R
purpose of basic and diluted earnings/ (W518) 2 A2 Al A N EAG
(loss) per share from discontinued GRNpAE Pl Eic))
operations 1,128 (2,601)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 did not assume the exercise of
potential ordinary shares granted under the Company’s share
option scheme outstanding at year end since their exercise would

have an anti-dilutive effect.

St F 8 73 B BB SCRE 2B IR AS
# AR o

ABBE_Z R T A
T H =4 B IR R
fe R iy > S SR
T B4 LR 42K 18 AR AT (o 2 78
N AT TR B KA R
HREEEE -

HRAEA 2 7] i e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2021
Additions
Disposals/write-off
Effect of foreign currency
exchange difference

Balance at 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022

Additions

Disposals/write-off

Disposal of a subsidiary group
(Note 10)

Exchange realignment

Balance at 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and
impairment

Balance at 1 January 2021

Provided for the year

Disposals/write-off

Impairment loss in profit or
loss

Effect of foreign currency
exchange difference

Balance at 31 December 2021
and [ January 2022

Provided for the year

Disposals/write-off

Disposal of a subsidiary group
(Note 10)

Exchange realignment

Balance at 31 December 2022
Carrying amounts
Balance at 31 December 2022

Balance at 31 December 2021

Wk
TR 2K

25

/i

EREH B8

Jx#(# /'T+ ﬂ + - R
“EITHE-A-RZER

1R

HE/Mﬁ
BB & E (10
e o 5 %
REFZFF A= —H 28R
ZEHTE - B
Rt

RoF AR
SR

e /e

B BEER

ﬂiﬁﬁiﬁﬁZwu

Mo —E+ZA=+-AR
i St il Bt
G
/s

— (B £ 1 (4 sk 10)
e i 5 2

St ey - w1
T

[E S Y P4 ]
e S g Sl P

16. P > Wm Bkt

Furniture,
fixtures
Leased Leasehold and office Motor
properties improvements equipment vehicles Total
iR~ RER
HEwE  HEWERE ] i Hit
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T T
(Note (i), (ii))
(R&EG) ~ (i)
96,754 16,425 7492 3407 124,078
12371 3,596 1,710 3,029 20,706
(17,749) (1,527) (964) (80) (20,320)
(164) (30) (37 - (231)
91,212 18,464 8,201 6,356 124233
23,295 1,502 3302 - 28,099
(52,161) (1,482) (516) (171) (54,330)
- (107) (1,644) - (1,751)
- - 5 - 5
62,346 18,377 9,348 6,185 96,256
(61,746) (14,473) (6,408) (2,338) (85,465)
(19,845) (1,531) (598) (1,020) (22,994)
13,301 876 504 80 14,761
(6,798) (189) (184) - (7,17)
66 4 20 - 90
(75,022) (15,313) (6,606) (3,778) (100,779)
(14,757) (1,333) (1,160) (873) (18,123)
519 1,672 516 171 54,330
- 107 1,562 - 1,669
- - (7) - (7)
(37,808) (14,867) (5,755) (4,480) (62,910)
24,538 3,510 3,593 1,705 33,346
I I I I I
16,190 3,151 1,535 2,578 23454
I I I I I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, after taking

into account the residual values, are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leased properties Over the term of the lease

Over the shorter of term of lease or
20%

10% —33.33%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
Motor vehicles 10% —25%
(i) Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and
equipment)

The Group as lessee

16.

W3k ~ W5 Kl ()

k% - RR BOR AR (8
B P ) LA L4800 4 9148 3¢
SR -

EN-%7/E S &
EWERE  HENSH20%
(AR 5 o )
B~ HE KL 10%-33.33%
N ]
R 10%-25%

() PEAEEEGIAWE - BE
T:di))

A LE A 25 AR N

Leased properties

MYk
HK$’000
BT
As at 31 December 2022 RoFDHETA=1T—H
Carrying amount HR T {E 24,538
As at 31 December 2021 R_F -+ H=1+—H
Carrying amount M T 16,190
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BRE_F 4
+TZA=Z=+t—HIEEE
Depreciation charge resE A 14,757
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_F 4
TZA=t—HIEEE
Depreciation charge e A 19,845
Impairment loss recognised T T R U M 18 6,798
B 2 < Tl 4 A PR T
“z e 293



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16.

(i) Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and
equipment) (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Wk ~ W Ml ()

() BEIHEE B G AP - W5
i) ()

Expense relating to short-term leases % HAFH & 2 AH B 5 32
Variable lease payments not included KRFF AHE AR EZ
in the measurement of lease IR ZEN-ERE -

liabilities

COVID-19-related rent concessions 57 7 76 1R 9 2 AH BE FH 4

Total cash outflow for leases FH B4 0 s AR
Additions to right-of-use assets HETN o R

I BE 25 RN (75)
2022 2021
—x o e i
HK$’000 HK$°000
T ki T
3,548 617
837 147
(1,904) (910)
31,767 34,740
23,295 12,371

For both years, the Group leases various offices,
warehouses, and restaurants for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 5 years
(2021: 2 years to S years). Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16. W3 - Walm Kkt (4E)
(ii) Variable lease payments (i) VM E A

Leases of restaurants are either with only fixed lease BEREAESERAEEHE

payments or contain variable lease payments that are based TS EEMN11%

on 11% to 15% (2021: 11% to 15%) of sales and minimum BISH(ZFE—F 1 11%%

annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease term. 15%) w15 7 AT 58 F 6 1+ 3k I

Some variable payment terms include cap clauses. The AR B A A [ 7 B s A AR R AR

payment terms are common in restaurants in Hong Kong B - & T T“ﬁ i34k

where the Group operates. The amount of fixed and & E BRI o "% A K fzf—‘

variable lease payments paid/payable to relevant lessors %.i"“%ﬁfﬂﬁﬁfﬁéﬁﬁfﬁ

during the year: TiE - AFEENCAT AT
A B AR R[] 7€ B ] S A B
(NE€: i

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE _F_ZFELZH=A
H 1k 4

Number Fixed Variable Total
of stores payments payments payments

WsisR BEERSR WA FESKARE
HK$°000 HK$°000  HK$000
wRTor BRTxX #WTx

Restaurants without variable % nJ %8 FH B £+ 3%

lease payments 2B 9 20,636 = 20,636
Restaurants with variable 1 #J 8 FH & ] 3k
lease payments 2B 3 3,730 837 4,567
12 24,366 837 25,203
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE_F _—FELH=1—
H IL4E &
Number Fixed Variable Total

of stores ~ payments  payments  payments
IEaEcE BN WM AR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

wRTT BWTT BW%TT

Restaurants without variable 7] % FH & 1+ 3¢

lease payments Py 11 23,958 - 23,958

Restaurants with variable ~ B 1 T SR E A K
lease payments 2B 5 5,933 147 6,080
16 29,891 147 30,038

B ol B AT LA 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

f o A 5 He  WE ak

(#)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(ii)

Variable lease payments (Continued)

The overall financial effect of using variable payment

terms is that higher rental costs are incurred by restaurants

with higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected to

continue to represent a similar proportion of restaurant

sales in future years.

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are set out below:

16.

Wk ~ W Ml ()

(i) TSR B Ak (D)

{5 AT 2 A5
MR HEBERRNERES
AR R A A o AT AR
& B SCTRG I A R A AR AR A

PR A 114 A B B 5

2 B B ) BTRA L A

17. A5 w) 320 2w Z WA

T ER WK A [ T TR ) 2 ]
ZREHHEBIIT

Name of subsidiary

W 2 ) 44

Proportion of ownership interest

Bright Peak Investment Limited

EREARAT

City Ally Holdings Limited (“City Ally”)

TR PE A PR 2 ] (i)

Delight Sky International Limited
HRE AR

East Gain Enterprise Limited

it F#ARAT

Eternal Speed International Limited

ACREI A IR A ]

Fast Creation Group Limited

Golden Harvest Holdings Limited

SWHERA R AT

Paid up issued
Place of incorporation/ share capital/
registration/operations  registered capital
GRSV VAt
Akt 4 JiA /A
“British Virgins Islands” US$1
(BVI)
KBELTS ST
(SR L RS )
BVI USs1
Y AR R ESH
BVI US$1

S RBIBARAR

BVI US$1
BEELIE 1%
BVI US$!
Ed ) aed 1570
BVI US$1
BEELHE ESH
BVI USs$!
Ed e 1570

Directly

HE

100%

held by the Company
AR T A A b
2021
Y S
Indirectly Directly ~ Indirectly  Principal activities
fil % HE M R
100% - 100%  Investment holding
BB
- 100% = Investment holding
B
100% - 100%  Investment holding
BEHER
100% - 100%  Investment holding
B
100% - 100%  Investment holding
BEER
100% - 100%  Investment holding
R
100% - 100%  Investment holding

SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; %

B HEf T H = HIEFEE

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE ~ 17. A4 w] 2 ZMHE A w2 346 (40)
COMPANY (Continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
held by the Company
AR i 45 7 A R i L
Paid up issued 2022 2021
Place of incorporation/ share capital/ CROCE e et s
Name of subsidiary registration/operations  registered capital Directly  Indirectly Directly ~ Indirectly  Principal activities
Rkt g L,/ M o#
VI 20 ) 4% O P42t JieA / REM IR A Bk k23 HH M RECEH
Keen Profit Development Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
BRBRARAH by e 17 RERR
Profit Network Asia Inc. BVI US$600 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Y AR R 6007 fiaseediy
Way Union Development Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
REERARAA SR I L 157 BB
Eternal Code Holdings Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
T SR PR A ] EREURE 1%L REER
Happy Laughter International Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
SR LT 1378 BB
Star Kitchen Catering Group Limited BVI USS$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
ERHEEEARAR IR LB S BB
China Demeter Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$103,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Licensed to carry on
regulated activity in
connected with dealing
in securities, advising
on securities and asset
management
B R R IR il ki FEETH BRI RE
103,000,0007¢ AR R R B
B ZHETEE)
Delight Sky Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Money lending
S RMBHRAR il ki U
1,000,0007%
Amber Wealthy Holdings Limited BVI Uss1 - 100% - 100%  Inactive
BRI 1% TER
B < B B A B )

257
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 17. AAw EEME A Z 5 (HE)

COMPANY (Continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
held by the Company
A28 ) - R L
Paid up issued 2022 2021
Place of incorporation/ share capital/ TROTE TR
Name of subsidiary registration/operations  registered capital Directly  Indirectly Directly ~ Indirectly ~ Principal activities
Akt gL, Ao #f
VI 20 ) 4% 1 CR | P& t-¢IL WA/ A Bk 23 HE% [GEER = 3
Town Ally Investment Company Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of administrative
Limited services and investment
in securities
WEREARAT i b RATBOREE kB
Way Union Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100% - 100%  Money lending
I RS A IR Ei R 1000C U
Belicious (HK) Limited (“Belicious”) Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Distribution of alcoholic
beverage in Hong Kong
PRI T T A R 7 Tt H145,000,0007C A TR BOR
(VA T )
Nobel Education Organisation Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 51% - 51%  Provision of children
Limited (“Nobel Education”) education services
Sl A AR A i 5 15,000,0007C AL 5 R MR
(T4 8% )
Star Kitchen Catering Group (HK) Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% - 100%  Food and beverage
Limited business
ERREEE G HRAH i b LGV GiEa
BLVDHK Pte. Limited (Note (i)) Singapore $$100,000 - - - 100%  Food and beverage
business
BLVDHK Pre. Limited (f k(i) B 100,000 13 ¢ LU GES

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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17.

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during

Tk -

AL 5 5

Witk

both years.
Note:
) The subsidiary was disposed during the year. Further details are set out in (i)
Note 10.
GOODWILL 18. T
Cost JAR
At 1 January and 31 December w—H—HAkt+=H=1+—H
Accumulated impairment losses L RN F
At 1 January w—H—H
Impairment loss recognised in the year A P T R e (LM 4
(Note 20) (¥t 5320)
At 31 December wt—A=+—H
Carrying amounts USRI
At 31 December mwt+_HA=+—H

17. A2 vl £ R E A 6 Z w1 (4)

EREIIARF ZWE AT - EHE
i8I % S I i s W E B AR
ZHEMBEE - RIS WS
SH At A B 2 ] 2 R I A T R A R

T T 18] B 1) AR R 8 D L 3R AT

ZH B A E B R AR R o MR
TEHEOR B EEL0 ©

2022 2021
—x o e it
HK$’000 HK$’000
T ik aPTH
34,419 34,419
(27,185) (17,186)
(5,168) (9,999)
(32,353) (27,185)
2,066 7,234

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in Note 20.

i -

A4 T S L 2 B 320
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

19. EBEE

Trading rights 3o HE

2022 2021
—2 o ir e g
HK$’000 HK$°000
T ki AT
500 500

Intangible asset comprised the eligibility rights to trade on
or through the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group can use
to generate net cash flows. As a result, the trading rights are
considered by the management as having indefinite useful lives
because they are expected to contribute to net cash inflows
indefinitely. The trading rights will not be amortised until its
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead, it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

At the end of the reporting period, the trading rights with
indefinite useful life are allocated to the financial services
business cash-generating unit (“CGU”) for impairment
assessment (Note 20).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Goodwill has been allocated to the following CGUs for
impairment testing:

WHEEE - HIEEERWE - BE
Be B i 2 Bl 4 A B AL B A 0 A

PR 2 LT DA B4 A R A
AT AR B

2022 2021
R —gE =k
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T T T

CGU in alcoholic beverage distribution  JEAE fICRH 3§ 675 2
business B e R A 274 5,442
CGU in children education business REHEEG B ELEEA 1,792 1,792
2,066 7,234

In addition to goodwill above and trading rights set out in Note
19, property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets
and allocation of corporate assets) that generate cash flows
together with the related goodwill and trading rights are also
included in the respective CGU for the purpose of impairment
assessment.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGUs and
their major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

CGU in alcoholic beverage distribution business

The recoverable amount of this CGU was determined based
on value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation were those regarding the discount rate and
growth in revenue and direct costs during the year. Management
estimated the discount rate of 21.74% (2021: 16.30%) using
pre-tax rate that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the CGU. Changes in
selling price and direct costs were based on past experience and
expectations of changes in the market.

[ b 0 s 2 B 3 19 BT A 2 )
9[‘ 2 %ﬁifﬁj‘z{nu Eﬁ#@% N %)}5‘5&
A (LI O AR 7 e A Rl B &
f4 73 i) LA B AR B ) 7 2 B 22 ) e
JINELHE 7E AF B 1Y) B 4 8 A= B A7 v g
T T A -

e B < A LA Wi ] < R
HE ] H T AR B (R s

A OB 53 815 58 B 2 B 4 e 2 B A

AR B 4 7 AR B 2 AT (] i 4 A G 3
A B R AR e - AR
B BT A A BRI B R
DA R B B AR e R 1 B
Pl B T R 23R A0 L G B R
21.74%(—F ——4F 1 16.30%) > #%
ok T ) 2R 5 e i T 45 3 R ]
18 1 ) R A DA R B 4 7 AR B R AT
() JEL g o 5 B BB LA 2 B ) T
DA 38 1 48 B K T 3 TE I A B Jn B
" o

B ol B AT LA 7
e——ppy 201
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20.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in alcoholic beverage distribution business (Continued)

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the next
5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period had been extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 2.5%
(2021: 2.5%) per annum.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors considered
that the recoverable amount of this CGU was found to be lower
than its carrying amount.

Accordingly, impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$5,168,000 (2021: HK$9,999,000) had been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably adverse change
in any of these assumptions would result in further impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in alcoholic beverage distribution business (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the recoverable amount of the CGU in alcoholic beverage
distribution business at the end of the reporting period in
response to reasonably possible changes in the assumptions used
in calculation.

20. WHEEEE - HIPEEKWE - BE
B i i 2 B A LSt el A B 3 ()

RS BOBE 73 8 38 B 2 B 4 e A L for
(#)

RIS e E T AR A
FH T R A Bl 1 7 o U A T OB
3 2B B 4 7 A LA B T T
LA 52 ) -

2022 2021
—B AR —E A
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Effect on (decrease) Effect on
in the recoverable in the Recoverable
assumption 1Tl assumption amount
#ak B Hu g h G a7 i =]
(PH) S#EE (FF%)  S#MEeE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T
Pre-tax discount rate B AT 4 B % 0.5% (11) 0.5% (202)
Pre-tax discount rate B B A 4 B 2R 0.5%) 12 (0.5%) 218
Growth rate beyond the AR Z %11
five-year period R 0.5% 4 0.5% 140
Growth rate beyond the TAEHR Z 4% 1Y)
five-year period R 0.5%) ()] (0.5%) (130)
CGU in children education business GLE B E B Bl e a4 AL

The recoverable amount of this CGU was determined based
on value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation were those regarding the discount rate and
growth in revenue and direct costs during the year. Management
estimated the discount rate of 16.67% (2021: 15.7%) using
pre-tax rate that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the CGU. Changes in
selling price and direct costs were based on past experience and
expectations of changes in the market.

A HR 4 A BV 2 AT i ] 4 AR T AR
WA EER A E - R EER
B2 FEMBBETIRFERNZ AR
WA R R EERAZ B - EH
JEAG A B R £516.67%(—F —.—

0 15.7%) > JofdE e H R &
Ry [ B (2 T 3 el X Bl e R B

{3 2 45 7 JE B 2 BR B AT A 2R o B {H
S HAE AR 2 5 8 ) DUR L 28 B e
T35 T S B o B e o

B 2 < i B A R 24 )
TR R
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20.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in children education business (Continued)

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the next
5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period had been extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 2.5%
(2021: 2.5%) per annum.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors considered that
the recoverable amount of this CGU was found to be higher than
its carrying amount. No impairment loss was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts
of the CGU to exceed their recoverable amount.

CGU in financial services business

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering a period
of 5 years and pre-tax discount rate of 13.0% (2021: 11.3%).
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been extrapolated
using a steady growth rate of 2.5% (2021: 2.5%). The discount
rates used reflects specific risks relating to the relevant business.
Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
revenue and operating costs which are determined from past
performance and management’s expected market development.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors considered
that the recoverable amount of this CGU was found to be higher
than its carrying amount, no impairment loss was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts
of the CGU to exceed their recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGUs in provision of food and beverage of business

The Group mainly operates restaurants leased properties with
lease terms ranging from 1 to 5 years (2021: 2 to 5 years).
Management regards each individual restaurant as a separately
identifiable CGU and performs impairment assessments on
each of the CGU with impairment indicators by considering the
recoverable amount of such assets at restaurant level. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, management identified
those restaurants with impairment indicators and performed
impairment assessments to estimate the corresponding
recoverable amounts of their property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs were determined based
on value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation were those regarding the discount rate and
growth in revenue and direct costs during the year. Management
estimated the discount rate of 11% to 12% (2021: 10% to 11%)
using pre-tax rate that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risk specific to the CGUs. Changes
in selling price and direct costs were based on past experience
and expectations of changes in the market.

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the next
5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period had been extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 2.5%
(2021: 2.5%) per annum.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors considered that
the recoverable amount of certain CGUs were found to be higher
than their carrying amount. No impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) (2021:
HK$7,171,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 21. R—HAEREZEE
Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as AEEN—HEBEAEZREFTE
follows: W
2022 2021
HK$°000 HKS$’000
#WT T T
Cost of investment in a joint venture A — G B A 2 AR 15,000 15,000
Share of post-acquisition loss JRE A\ i 4% Js 1R (16,907) (16,907)
Share of other comprehensive income JARE AV JEL Al 4 T U 4 231 231
Effects of equity transaction of a joint —HGBEEREL S Z
venture (Note) 52288 (F 5E) 1,676 1,676
Note: B3
During the year ended 31 December 2017, BLVD Cayman Limited’s ownership WEE R —LEF A= —HIEFE -
interest in its operating subsidiary was increased from 80% to 100%. As a result BLVD Cayman Limited i /25 48 [ff & 23 =] /Y
of this equity transaction in the BLVD Group, the Group’s share of net assets of T HERE 25 B 80% 3 i1 £ 100%  H ABLVD
the BLVD Group was increased by an amount of approximately HK$1,676,000, GroupZ bl [RHEAZ 5 » AL FEAEBLVD
mainly due to the purchase consideration paid by BLVD Cayman Limited for GroupZ & /& T (B 34 i 49 5 #1,676,000 7T >
the additional ownership interest was lower than the carrying amount of non- FEZH RBLVD Cayman Limited 4871 ir A
controlling interest acquired. PREE M i T A ) A AR A7 2 A I I P i

HE 4 FY R TAT (BT 2 o

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the reporting REEDRERRZ 5B MEFE
period are as follow: WmE -
Country of Principal
incorporation/ place of Proportion of ownership
Name of entity registration business interest held by the Group  Principal activities
GRI W ERENR A M £
|4 A U ER g Jife 7 HE R i L 1) EL 3/ 1
2022 2021
St
BLVD Cayman Limited Cayman Islands Singapore 50% 50%  Operating restaurants,
BH & 1 5 B café and takeaway
outlets in Singapore
AN 58
R~ NVERE R
SN

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21.

Summarised financial information of BLVD Cayman
Limited and its subsidiaries (“BLVD Group’’)

Summarised financial information in respect of BLVD Group

is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts shown in BLVD Group’s consolidated

financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

BLVD Group is accounted for using equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

R—RHEEEEZRE )

BLVD Cayman Limited & 3 Ff} j& 2
w] (TBLVDE Ml 1) Z 4 %5 % Bl i 22

BLVDAE B 2 A 15 & Al Al 2t 4 51 4
T o DATR BARS B R 2 iR A U
FoR 5 B B A S Y BLVDAE B 45
& BB R T 5 R B & %8 - BLVD
45 [ iR 5% S5 A7 A PS4 (1 P
WIENIE o

BLVD Group BLVDZ [
2022 2021
- SN X B &
HK$°000 HK$°000
BTt T
Current assets i 1,675 1,662
Non-current assets I E = -
Current liabilities i B=K (18,510) (17,458)
Non-current liabilities I A E - -
Net liabilities S=EiREE (16,835) (15,796)
The above amounts of assets and LaliEE KA BSEOR
liabilities include the following: TS IH
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB S5 EY 43 43
Current financial liabilities (excluding T 4 AR OIS B 3E E AT
trade and other payables and HURE R R HL Al TR A i T I
provisions) B (10,864) (10,377)
B 2 < Tl 4 A PR T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21. R—HEEREIRE )
Summarised financial information of BLVD Cayman BLVD Cayman Limited % 3 [ J& 2
Limited and its subsidiaries (“BLVD Group”) (Continued) W] ((BLVD4E H 1) Z W % & Bl HE %

(&)
BLVD Group (Continued) BLVDZ 5] (#)
2022 2021
S-SR TR A
HK$°000 HK$’000
BTt T T
Revenue YA = -
Loss for the year attributable to equity 1 i #E A5 A JEAG 45 4F B s 18
owners (893) (996)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income 1 i ¥ A A MEAL AAE &
for the year attributable to equity HoAh 21 (BH 32 A
owners (146) 226
Total comprehensive expense for the year Tt A A MENG A4E B
attributable to equity owners AT B S AR KR (1,039) (770)
The above loss for the year include the following: A2 bl s 1 AL EE T 514501
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Interest expense FE S 932 956

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 21.
Summarised financial information of BLVD Cayman
Limited and its subsidiaries (“‘BLVD Group”) (Continued)

BLVD Group (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to

the carrying amount of the interest in BLVD Group recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

R—RHEEEEZRE )

BLVD Cayman Limited J¢ 2} & 4
"] ((BLVD% [H ]) Z #1 % & #f B 22

(#5)
BLVDZ [ (%)
Il B S R A B A A RS R

RNMERZIABLVDEE 2 4 2
MR T (L3R

Net liabilities of BLVD Group BLVD% [# 2 A 5 551
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A 4 [ T A A 4 L 451
interest

The Group’s share of net assets of BLVD 74 [ {5 BLVD Group &
Group & HE

2022 2021
—x o up T i
HK$’000 HK$’000
wIET T T
(16,835) (15,796)
50% 50%

The unrecognised share of loss and other comprehensive expense
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$519,000 (2021: HK$385,000) and unrecognised
accumulated share of losses as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$8,417,000 (2021: HK$7,898,000).

BE_F -+ -HA=1+—HIk
A B R R R AL e 4R R A A T
B S A &) 5519,00000 (& ——
4 W H385,00000) it —EF
A=+ —HRMREEN
i 18 5 4 6 8,417,0007T (& —
—4F {5 %7,898,0007C) °

R 2 R

Sz —pgn 209



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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22A. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

22A. %0 S AL A At 2 v W 2 2 &
il

Unlisted investments: JELTHE :
— Equity investments - RAE
— Fund investments -HEEHE

2022 2021
TR e SR
HK$’000 HK$000
T T
53 -

20 20

73 20

The Group has elected to designate these investments as at
FVTOCI as these investments are not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in the foreseeable future.

Notes:

a. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the unlisted equity securities
at fair value represent investments in equity securities issued by private
company. The directors of the Company estimated no fair value change of
these securities because the private company just started operation during
2022.

b. The unlisted fund investments at fair value represent the investments
placed to private funds incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received
distributions of approximately HK$Nil (2021: HK$38,000) from the fund
investments.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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22B. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

23.

24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL:

22B. % 2 fo (A 5F A\ R i 2 5 b & &

%A R A BB EZ &
¥ g

Listed investments held for trading: FEEEZ LHiRE -
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~ — 7 5 I 7 AR i 3

— Equity securities suspended from - HTIFEEIRAF IS
trading in Hong Kong

— Equity securities unlisted in Hong Kong — & #5 JF b 17 B A i 2

2022 2021
TRTTUE TR TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T
20,833 22,851

- 996

1,027 715
21,860 24,562

OTHER ASSETS 23.

Other assets included statutory deposits with the Hong Kong
Exchange and Clearing Limited and Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) amounting to
approximately HK$574,000 (2021: HK$230,000) as at 31
December 2022 and are non-interest bearing.

Fof ¥ e

HEMmEEafEn —F __F+=
A=1T—HEFBRLS XEE I
ARAF REB R REGHEARA
A ((HFBESE 2B ERBEAH
¥e574,00000 (= F ——4F ¥
230,00070) > ¥IAFHE -

INVENTORIES 24. 8
2022 2021
TR TTUE T4
HK$°000 HK$’000
W T ki cam T
Finished goods B R 1,533 1,470
R i 438 2 A R 2
ey 271



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. JEWRK
2022 2021
R TR A
HK$°000 HK$’000
BTt T T
Trade receivables JRE WAL 3R
— Non-financial services business — IF 4 Rl IR 7S 1,195 1,062
Less: Allowance for credit losses W 5 B TR - -
1,195 1,062
— Financial services business — 4 il IR SE S
— Dealing in securities -HE®S
— Cash clients -BEeEKF 263 573
— Margin clients - RESEF 77,849 88,640
— Clearing house - &EE T 790 3,212
78,902 92,425
80,097 93,487
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, trade receivables from A S O G St Sy Y £
contracts with customers amounted to approximately =+—H > RKAKF G4 Z B
HK$80,097,000 and approximately HK$93,487,000 respectively. o Al By %07 680,097,000 70 K £

#1593 487,0007T °

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

Non-financial services business (a)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on the
invoice date:

0 — 90 days 0% 90K

25. JEWIRZR (45)

b <6 il IR 5 3 5

PAF A48 55 H 1 251 2 &40
USEREY Fisti LK I el
HRES AT -

2022 2021
2 [ i
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
1,195 1,062

The Group’s trading terms with its customers from the
non-financial services business are mainly on cash and
smart card settlement, except for well established corporate
debtors for which the credit term is generally from 30 to 60
days (2021: 30 to 60 days). The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and the
management regularly reviews the overdue balances.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in
Note 38.2.2.

A B B < il R B SE 5
FZHBERKEE ST e L
RERAA - MEERNMEEREN
KEEBA > BB T30E
60K (—F ——4 : 30260K)
ZAREH o A G B 7oK BoAk 1
i) FC 2R e ] 2 R Ak T % A
J& & e R s I A B

AR LGSR E— 4
PR B EE38.2.2 -

B ol B AT LA 7
Sy 2713
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) Financial services business

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables arising from
cash clients and clearing house based on the trade date is as

25. WEMCHR K (4F)
(b) A RhARWSE

Bl % B 45 5 B A 1) B UL
HRARIEIA 22 5 B R 23 A7 4

follows: T
2022 2021
—m— iy [T
HK$’000 HK$’000
T ki cam T
0—90 days 0290k 3,774
91 — 180 days 91 & 180K - -
181 — 365 days 181 %365k = 11
1,053 3,785

The settlement terms of trade receivables arising from the
ordinary course of financial services business of dealing
in securities from cash clients and clearing house are two
days after trade date.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in
Note 38.2.2.
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26. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

26. MEWCE KA

Loans and interest receivables JHRE A R B A
Less: Allowance for credit losses

Analysed as: vig vl
Current L
Non-current FE i E)

2022 2021
SRR TR T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BTt BT T
16,506 16,020
(2,314) (357)
14,192 15,663
14,192 15,663
14,192 15,663

A maturity profile of the loans and interest receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the maturity date, net of
provision, is as follows:

T i 9 R i 2 39 2 22
BB FILE (G BR 45 Ah) 2139 155 0 4

0-90 days 0F 90K
91 — 180 days 912 180K
Over 180 days R 180K

T
2022 2021
TRBROUE TR AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T ki aTH
12,607 2,768
= 1,635
1,585 11,260
14,192 15,663

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note
38.2.2.

A B AR 2 15 B EUOR B3 — 2 w1

A B 5E38.2.2 o

B ol B AT LA 7
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27. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER  27. % - FEfFk 08 B 3 fib Wi sk 08
RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Prepayments TA AT IE 1,484 2,912
Deposits and other receivables iz 4 Jo HoAth BE U R OE 15,573 13,406
17,057 16,318
Deposits and other receivables included 7 A FE 8 & & 2 % 4 &
under non-current assets At B Wi A 3,694) (2,964)
Current portion included under current 7 A Ui &) & 2 2 B HAFE 43
assets 13,363 13,354

Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and
deposits were rental deposits amounting to approximately
HK$3,694,000 (2021: HK$2,964,000), which are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expenses after more than one
year. All of the other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expenses within one year.

2% 2 [ 1% At R SRR I~ FEAS K
HEHEEEHE RSB
3,694,000 C (& ——4F : ¥
2,964,0007T) > TR —FZ UK
SRR A B S o BT A HoAth B i 3KIH
A A — 4 1R Wi ] e 8 2 B S

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/TRUST BANK 28. H&RB&ZEY fast#iTIRE
ACCOUNTS

2022 2021

—g—-— —F— 4

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T T

Cash and cash equivalents Be kBl &% EY 42,325 40,577

Trust bank accounts HRCERITIRF 34,668 32,498

76,993 73,075

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/TRUST BANK
ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group,
deposits placed with securities brokers and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances earn interest at floating rate based on daily bank deposit
rates and short term time deposits earn interest at the respective
short term deposit rates. The bank balances and short term time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

The Group maintains trust bank accounts with authorised
financial institutions to receive and hold money deposited by
clients in the course of the conduct of the regulated activities.
These clients’ monies are maintained in one or more trust bank
accounts and bear interest at commercial rates. The Group has
recognised the corresponding trade payables to respective clients.
The Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset
those payables with the deposits placed.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28.

29.

BE kB, fh it BITIRE
(#)

B KB S5 E Y 16 A B T 5
B~ ORGSR AR R
T =8 A B Lk A B 2 S SRAT A
o RIRE HRAT A2 3RF R R
BRI B 2 SRAT &5 Bk M %45 A S
T K S B A B 2 e 0 E A
A o SRAT &G B S A I E WA SR A7
TR Sl 4 20 3 46 e kLA B R 47
HERAT -

A B 1 R T < R B L RE AR
FTHR P AR HEAT 52 808 16 B i e o
W B R & F A7 o 5% 5% %7 K
JEAF Y — A B2 (A 15 SESRATHRE &
R ER R E o AL E O R E
42885 5 B9 AR E AT Rk - AR
7 48 5 o L1 B 0 0 % 5 B A R
AR B A7 AT AR o

WA sk B Lt WEE A K S

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
T BT T
Trade payables JEAS IR
— Non-financial services business — FF 4 R IR SE 5 (R ()
(Note (i) 9,119 11,365
— Financial services business (Note — 4 Pl IR TS 2T (B i)
(i)
Dealing in securities HEHES
— Cash clients -BE&KF 31,607 24,101
— Margin clients -REBEEF 5,401 5,116
— Asset management - EEEM 110 303
- Brokers —- A = 398
Other payables and accruals Al A R T % TR 21,572 22,188
67,809 63,471
B 2 4 il 4% A FR 23 W]

TR R
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(©)

(ii)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables from non-financial
services business, presented based on invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

29. A MK B L Al E A K 8 (48)

0 UF%#ﬁiﬁimeDmfﬂv
e B I 4 il RS S 2 EAT IR 2

0—90 days 0% 90K
91 — 180 days 91 £ 180K

BT
2022 2021
ot Jantant TR —4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T
9,119 11,289
- 76
9,119 11,365

The settlement terms of trade payables arising from the ordinary course of
financial services business of dealing in securities are two days after trade
date.

Trade payables to clients bear variable interest at commercial rates, and
are repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date. No aged analysis
is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the aged
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of business.
At 31 December 2022, the trade payables amounting to approximately
HK$34,668,000 (2021: HK$32,498,000) were payable to clients in
respect of the trust and segregated bank balances received which are held
for clients in the course of conducting the regulated activities. However,
the Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset these
payables with the deposits placed.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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(i)  WHFI G — M MR S R AR
v e A= 22 TR A Bk 2 A BB R R 5
HAEmMR -

ﬁﬁEﬁZ% CIEHE Vil s8

,,niéiElﬂ;ﬁﬁ#’EWE@ 7-1:/\
7§$mﬁ HiR 5% 0 Ar B 1A SE TS 1
BT I AR B P RE AME A RO Y R
WREE AT c MFE 4+ H =+
—H > ) H34,668,00000 (& ——
4 HRIE32,498,0007T) A EAT FIHE
B K AE FE T B Wi UM ST SR AT 4%
% > THRNHEAT Z B TG B AR AR K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥

OTHER BORROWING

At the end of the reporting period, the other borrowing is from
an independent third party, is denominated in HK$, unsecured,
interest bearing at 11% (2021: 8%) per annum and repayable
within one year (2021: repayable within one year).

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$111,064,000 (2021:HK$81,321,000)
available for offset against future profits that may be carried
forward indefinitely due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. In additions, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$16,525,000 (2021:
HK$28,315,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

30.

31.

Fo o £

R BIR - HAEERE — 28
SEER =T 0 DA EHE - KA
FEAEF K11 % (—F ——4F : 8%)
AR RER — FENER(CF D —
A HIR—FENERR) o

HEHiE B JH

TR B A SRRE - fR A A Ak i )
A AT BRI > Al oA 8 A B
R4 A 111,064,0007T (%
T —4F - Pk 681,821,0007T) > A 4E
PR 1A 2% et DA 4K 8 o A i A1) - PR i
MEMERRIEIE BT G 2 o HhAh - A%
A7 47 % 16,525,00000 (—F ——
4 #E28,315,0000C) B AT 41T
IRp P 25 B o | A KN AT AR A ME B i )
A DA AR AT AT dE 0 R R = B
JIT DA 7 4 ik 552 B 5% 45 1K1 BT R
ZEGRMEERHEE -

LEASE LIABILITIES 32. HEAH
2022 2021
R —gs s
HK$°000 HK$’000
T o
Lease liabilities payable: JEE A RS B A -
Within one year —4E R 17,841 25,500
Within a period of more than one year & 8 —4F{H D A R 4F
but not more than two years 9,584 11,205
Within a period of more than two years i 4 {4 {H 2D it FL4F
but not more than five years 3,605 2,247
31,030 38,952
Less: Amount due for settlement within ¥ : ¥ A Vi 8 & &30
12 months shown under current A 1248 H W F3
liabilities A (17,841) (25,500)
Amount due for settlement after 12 SINE S i =K R
months shown under non-current 1218 H 1%
liabilities FI) 1A 45 Y FOH 13,189 13,452
B G 4 R PR ]
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33. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Authorised:

At 1 January 2021, 31 December
2021, 1 January 2022 and 31
December 2022

33. A
5 1% i £ 98 0.0 78 1Y 3% 3 %

Number of shares
Jit 1 8 H

’000
T

W :

RoE= A —H -

Rt ZHA=+—H

SEm A H R

Share capital
JBEA
HK$’000
W T

R CHES A= H 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: CETIEH R -
At 1 January 2021 RoF - —F—H—H 153,029 1,530
Issue of rights shares (Note (i)) BEAT LA 0 (B i) 459,089 4,591
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January N_F AT A= —H R
2022 TR T THE—H—H 612,118 6,121
Issue of shares upon exercise of share A 05 B P R A 8 1 TR 47 (BF i)
options (Note (ii)) 15,300 153
Issue of placing shares (Note (iii)) BEAT OB A (FFS 3E: (i) 125,484 1,255
At 31 December 2022 E_F__HF+A=+—H 752,902 7,529
Notes: W -
(i)  Issue of rights shares (@) BEAT G I By

(ii)

(iii)

280

Pursuant to a special general meeting on 21 June 2021, the special
resolution in relation to the underwriting agreement, whitewash waiver
and rights issue on the basis of 3 rights shares for every 1 existing
ordinary share held on the record date at a subscription price of HK$0.1
each was duly passed by way of poll. The rights issue of shares was
completed on 29 July 2021. Following the rights issue, 459,088,545
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were issued at the
subscription price of HK$0.1 per share. The new shares rank pari passu
with the existing shares in all respects. The net proceeds arising from the
rights issue was approximately HK$44,161,000, after deducting relevant
cost and expenses of approximately HK$1,748,000. The excess of the
subscription price over the par value of the shares issued was credited to
the share premium account.

Issue of shares upon exercise of share options

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 15,300,000 ordinary shares
were issued upon the exercise of a total of 15,300,000 share options at
exercise price HK$0.125 per share, giving rise to aggregate net proceeds
of approximately HK$1,913,000.

Issue of placing shares

On 27 September 2022, the Group completed the placing of aggregate of
125,483,612 ordinary shares of the Group of HK$0.01 each to not less
than six placees through placing agent at HK$0.10 per ordinary share.
The net proceeds from the placing of shares amounted to approximately
HK$12,171,000.
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(ii)

(iii)

WE_F - —FH -+ —HBER
FERl R & o A B - EEH
o S AR (PRt ok B R A LR BLA
S 7 5 ] A 3 B IR A 1 > RR B AE B
g 1 s 0. 170) 19 R Il R R SR EL DA R
2y COE S o B Y 4 A B R
—E® o —4EEA T UH MR o i
JEAE > AR/N 459,088,545 A A T {E
75 50,01 T 11 5 28 B 2 4% A 7 0.1
TG RR S BEAT o B B 45 T 1 2 B
BLA 0y = AT (6] 25 Hofr o 48 4Bk AR
B AR I 2 R 49 s W 1,748,000 1% >
ik B 7 A= A T 15 B TEL VR AR A A s
44.161,0007C © 78 M 5 68 8 25 17 I 1y
AT B A4 3505 43 EL R A BB T (B I -

AT D P 422 358 A e

BET - HF+H=+—HILE
BE 5 15,300,000 5 78 B ik DA AT {8
g 1B 5 #0125 70474 4 45 15,300,000
1y Wi R HE A% 3547 > B LB B 15 3k H
T AE A 51,913,0007T ©

FAT R R

R ECAFENAZFEH AN
52 FRER A D QB ) TR A i N 4 R iR
N 4 S 0 B v KR 0. 1000 2 A%
Mt 5 & 3£125,483,6 12 A5 /A 7 45 I i
H ¥ ¥0.01 70 2 578 B o fic &5 B4
3R TR R A 25 W5 1512,171,0000C
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RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 162 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value. The application of
the share premium account is governed by the Bermuda Law.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the amounts transferred from
share capital and share premium due to capital reorganisation
comprising the share consolidation, the capital reduction and the
share subdivision.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed in an extraordinary
general meeting and special general meeting held on 24 April
2014, 3 February 2016 and 27 May 2019 respectively, and
took effect on 5 June 2014, 4 February 2016 and 28 May
2019, the directors were authorised to use HK$195,134,000,
HK$15,782,000 and HK$10,712,000 credit balances in the
contributed surplus account result from the reduction of the
paid-up capital of the Company to eliminating or setting off the
accumulated losses of the Company.

Up to the year ended 31 December 2022, HK$221,628,000
(2021: HK$221,628,000) credit balances in the contributed
surplus account were used to eliminate the accumulated losses of
the Company.

34.

fii

A% B2 [ i A AE B T 08 1R 4 B R kA
SR H A B BN G A B IR R
BIQH 2GR E) & -

i Ay Yk T

J A5 it A5 415 ] 4% 6 38 JHL T (L 2 (A%
BEAT A T 7 A 2 ik 1 o B Vi
ARAGHE I 2 A AR ik R o

YR

mRETEAEM (B RAE
OF ~ EAH BB PR > B
FEFLERTR B A e B i (H 4 2
B

R Al —F — M4 A =+
MH > ZF—AXF_H=H K=
E—NLERLA-+LHEITZ R
BRRF R R R R — DU AR N
AHH > ZF—XNE_HMH K
F—JUERH =+ /\H A8z F Al
PR > H B R A A
FMEBRAEAZBARBIES
HETE A5 AR 5 195,134,0000C ~ i
15,782,0007C J i#5 10,712,000 7T >
DI B S A A B 2 BETE R -

WB8E_FZ__#+_H=+—H
IR > SO B R AR TE A5 BR s W
221,628,0007C (—F ——4 : {5 H
221,628,0007T) £ 8 F 7 3 8 A 2
Al Z AFHEE -

B 2 < i B A R 24 )
TR R
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34.

282

RESERVES (Continued)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve arises from (i) capitalisation of a loan and
represents the difference between the amount due to a former
beneficial shareholder capitalised and the nominal value of
shares; and (ii) the expiry of conversion option of convertible
bonds and warranty.

Share options reserve

The share options reserve comprises the portion of the grant
date fair value of unexercised share options granted to executive
directors, employees and consultants of the Group that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payments.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

FVTOCI reserve

The reserve represents cumulate gains and losses arising on
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
Group’s shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Group held on 30 September 2013. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the board of directors of the Group may grant options
to eligible persons, including directors of the Group and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for the shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and options which may be granted under any other
share option schemes of the Group shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue on 30 September 2013 unless
the Group obtains a refresh approval from its shareholders.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Group under
which such options are granted, as the case may be, shall not be
counted for the purpose of calculating whether the limit has been
exceeded. The 10% general limit was refreshed after the passing
of the ordinary resolution by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting dated 30 June 2022 on the basis of 627,418,060
shares in issue on that date. After the refreshment, the maximum
number of new shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options that may be granted under the 10% general limit so
refreshed is 62,741,806.

35.

JBe A 15k 22 5

WMIEA LB RN —F—=FILA
=+ H BT Z AL BRI R &
Jr gt 2 W A Pk A o AR S T PR A
$i PR ) 10 B ME 380 1) o AR R
HEIBCHERT B > AEEEE G S
B N (46 A 5 ) B L g
F 2 ) 4% R DARE L

i o

PR AR 5 0 T ME B 4% th 2 P o
JIHE e AR 45 A 4R ] AT o] JHL At 1 i
P ST B 352 2 B R A AT 8 T ]
TEITZ B RECR S BEE R =%
—ZF LA =1+ H B BT
Z10% > BRI 2 45 18 O 48 A Rt
HETE BT o AR 45 RO o ) sl A 4R [
AT ) L A 55 R ARE 5 ) 2 ka2
B 2 2% i M ME (RS Dl ) - R s
=N e L A N =
N o 10%—MRBEIR & = 4R
H =+ B 8470 B R EEKe -
A i AR A B R R AR TE H
627,418,060 B 817 i {1y 2 FL UE
TLAER o IREHE > RBKEH
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35s.

284

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and options which
may be granted and yet to be exercised under any other share
option schemes of the Group (or the subsidiary) shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under any share option schemes of
the Group (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the limit being
exceeded.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing from 30 September 2013.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be
such price as determined by the board of directors in its absolute
discretion at the time of the grant of the relevant option but in
any case the subscription price shall not be less than the higher of
(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the
nominal value of a share. The options must be taken up within
21 days from the date of grant upon payment of HK$1 and are
exercisable over a period to be determined and notified by the
directors to each grantee, which period may commence from
the date of acceptance of the offer of the grant of the options but
shall end in any event not later than ten years from the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to encourage the
participants, including employees, business associates and
trustees, to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
and at the same time allow the participants to enjoy the results
of the Group attained through their efforts and contributions and
to provide the participants with incentives and help the Group
in retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

No participant shall be granted an option if the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant to such participant would exceed 1% of the
shares for the time being in issue unless the proposed grant has
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting with the
proposed grantee and his associates abstaining from voting. A
circular must be sent to the shareholders of the Group disclosing
the identity of the proposed grantee, the number and terms of the
options granted and to be granted.

Where any grant of option is to a substantial shareholder (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Group or an independent
non-executive Director or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and the proposed grant of
option, when aggregated will result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of grant, (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5 million, then such proposed grant of option(s) must
be subject to approval by shareholders on a poll in a general
meeting where all connected persons (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Group must abstain from voting in favour
at such general meeting (except where such connected person(s)
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) intend(s) to vote against
the proposed grant of option(s) and his intention to do so has
been stated in the circular).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. Btz 5 (4E)

Details of specific categories of the share options granted by the /NI Y d s i B e
Group are as follows: LN

Weighted average
fair value

Option type Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price at grant date

= H Bz
Jil Je M 2 ) CHER ] A7 6 91 1] fIEEfE HEE A R A
HK$ HK$
LT W
2020 October 12 October 2020 12 October 2020 to 0.1473 per share 0.05
11 October 2021
TERIEELH “EFCRFTALCH CFCFELATSHE H10.14737C

“EZ=—4+A+—H

2022 January 17 January 2022 17 January 2022 to 0.125 per share 0.036
16 January 2023

B SN Sl S “EFCCHE-AHER ZEF S -ATERZE H%0.1257C
—EC=F-A1RH

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
2 8 6 Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Exercise
price

Name of Grantee Option Type Date of Grant Exercisable Period per share

REARS W A

Director:

&

Mr. Chan Chi Fung 2022 January 17 January 2022 17 January 2022 to HKS$0.125
16 January 2023

B SROZE-f CECZE-RTER ZECCE-ATERE WMok
e Swtst 2R YA

Sub-total

i

Employees 2022 January 17 January 2022 17 January 2022 to HK$0.125
16 January 2023

8 i Sl B St B SR S E O L AT
“RTZE-ARR

Sub-total

it

Total

i

35.

Outstanding

3

asat
1 January

2022

“FCR
B
bkt

JBe A 15 ik 22 5 (#7)

Outstanding

Granted Exercised Lapsed asat

during during during 31 December
the year the year the year

(Notei) (Note ii)

R
(i)

6,120,000 (6,120,000) - -

6,120,000 (6,120,000) - -

9,180,000 (9,180,000) - -

9,180,000 (9,180,000) - -

15,300,000 (15,300,000) - -

— e e e —
Weighted average e R = HKS0.125 HKS$0.125 = =
exercise price Ehost  ER0sT
Brercisable attheend AT FA7{f = 15300000 (15,300,000) = =
of the year
— e e e —
Notes: Bt 5

These share options were granted on 17 January 2022. The closing price
of the shares on 14 January 2022, the trading day immediately before the
date on which the share options were granted, was HK$0.125.

These share options were exercised on 9 June 2022. The weighted average
share price on 8 June 2022, the day immediately before the date of
exercise in respect of the share options exercised, was HK$0.125.

i. EMRER 2 - F—H LA
B R o FE - AU H
(R B fz s S T 22 5 )
4 Wi T A 2% 7 7012508 »

i SRR T AEANA LB
fifi o Bt —F = 4N H/NH (R
AT 5% 55 B R RE AT — B 1 Jin
SPHAME £ 90,1250 ©

B ol B AT LA 7
ey 287



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

35. fetrftakse 5 ()

Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
price 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of Grantee Option Type Date of Grant Exercisable Period per share 2021 the year the year the year 2021
e S S
—A—H TZR=1-H
EGIN SRR RibBg A BIRAER WA R i %M WAt
Directors:
LE R
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul 2020 October 12 October 2020 12 October 2020 to HKS0.1473 2484356 - - (2,484.356) -
11 October 2021
ES 4y CECRETR O CRCEEMICE CRCREMICHEE Elount
—& 4”5'H“ﬁ +‘ A
Mr. Ng Ting Ho 2020 October 12 October 2020 12 October 2020 to HK$0.1473 2,484,356 - - (2,484,356) -
11 October 2021
R CECRETR CECRETATCA :ﬁ‘ﬂﬂ% T2RE kot
e S5 5
Mr. Chan Chi Fung 2020 October 12 October 2020 12 October 2020 to HKS$0.1473 2,484,356 - - (2,484,356) -
(Note) 11 October 2021
REgELRD  CECFETR CECRETATCR 2%0% fﬁrﬂ TZHE EHoun
e S 5 5
Sub-total 7453068 - - (7:453,008) -
it
Employees 2020 October 12 October 2020 12 October 2020 to HK$0.1473 14,906,140 - - (14,906,140) -
11 October 2021
fE8 CECRERE O CECRELATCR CROZREPATCARE Blouni
“EEHAR
Sub-total 14,906,140 - - (14,906,140 -
it
Other eligible person:
HRERAL:
Director of a subsidiary 2020 October 12 October 2020 12 October 2020 to HK$0.1473 2484356 - - (2,484,356) -
11 October 2021
WEAHES e e S5 [ e Bt qqﬁ)ﬁ HE  ElomT
“FEHAT-H
Sub-total 2484356 - - (2,484,356) -
It
Total 24843564 - - (24.843,564) -
it
I I I I I
Weighted average il seelitid HKS0.1473 - - HKSO.4T -
exercise price 04T k0.4
Exercisableat theend — FAEATT F A7l 24843564 - S (B8 -
of the year

Note: Mr. Chan Chi Fung’s outstanding share options are transferred from
directors of subsidiaries due to his appointment as an executive director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 15,300,000 share
options were granted under the Company’s Share Option
Scheme. All of the share options has been exercised during the
year. As at 31 December 2022, there are no outstanding share
options.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 24,843,564 share
options were lapsed on 11 October 2021. No share options have
been exercised during the year ended 31 December 2021, and
there are no outstanding share options as at 31 December 2021.

The total number of share options available for issued under the
Share Option Scheme was 62,741,806 shares as at 31 December
2022 (2021: 15,302,951 shares), representing approximately
8.3% (2021: 2.5%) of the issued shares of the Group.

The fair value of the share options granted to employees and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries was determined
using the Binomial Model. Where relevant, the expected life
used in the model had been adjusted based on management’s best
estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
(including the probability of meeting market conditions attached
to the option), and behavioural considerations. Expected
volatility was based on the historical volatility of the Company’s
share price, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options were based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

35.

JBe A 458k 28 5 (#0)

HE_EX " +H=+—HI
¥ 5 15,300,000 5 5% HE C AR 98
A F) WEEREST BB o T B
MERENITHE - RF 41

“HZ=1—H > RN R
JREHE o

B2 F - —F+_H=+—HI1
EJE 5 24,843 56410 BERRAE R =&

AT RN BECFE
T A= HIRFEE S B

S RO ME AT O > MY 4
+_H:+ H o MR i R AT R AY
HE R HE o

WEEZFET A= —H MR
5 I I RE ST ) ] AL AT Y I RE
A 62,741,806 /8 (. ——4F ¢

15,302,951 #%) 4E$%IE§H&
By #18.3% (T ——4F : 2.5%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. Atk 5 ()

Inputs into the model i A\ BRI 2> &R}
Option type Option type
Ji Je 2031 Ji e e 231
2022 January 2020 October
—EF T HF—H —“EFFEFTH

Grant date share price s H IR 2
Exercise price TrfefE

Expected volatility TEHA P
Exercise multiple AT
Risk-free interest rate I JE Bz A %
Expected dividend yield TR R

HKS$#% #0.12507C HKS$#% #0.230000
HKS$#5#0.12500C HKS$#:#0.14737C

75.688% 64.812%
22-28 22-28
0.538% 0.081%
0% 0%

Options granted were fully vested at the date of grant. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, equity-settled share-based
payments to employees (including directors) of the Group of
approximately HK$550,000 had been included as an expense
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the corresponding amount of which had
been credited to share options reserve (Note 34). No liabilities
were recognised on the equity-settled share-based payment
transactions.

The total consideration received during the year ended 31
December 2022 from the grant of share options amounted to
HKS$3.

All share options have been accounted for under HKFRS 2. No
share options were outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

2 9 0 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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PENSION SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all its
eligible employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. There is no forfeited contribution that may be used by
the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, defined contribution
retirement benefits expenses of approximately HK$2,408,000
(2021: HK$3,301,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

36.
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37.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

A subsidiary of the Group is licensed with The Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”) for the business it operates in.
The Group’s licensed subsidiary is subject to liquid capital
requirements under Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by the SFC. Under SF(FR)R, the
licensed subsidiary must maintain a liquid capital (assets and
liabilities adjusted as determined by SF(FR)R) in excess of
HK$3 million or 5% of its total adjusted liabilities, whichever is
higher. Management closely monitors, on a daily basis, the liquid
capital level of the licensed subsidiary to ensure compliance with
the requirements under the SF(FR)R.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. As
part of this review, the Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

37. EAREM (4

7 4 8] 22— [ B Ja 2 6 o S A
BEGERZEg((HEg))EM
e g 2 0 - AEHZ R
B Ja > ) ZE 28 ST 35 B 6 B 2 vE
% N & (B BUE JR) #1 0 (TSF(FR)
RNDEFZHREBESRE - B
SF(FR)R - 7 L[ B 2 w) Z8 4t 47
8 5 153,000,000 70 35 H A8 57 B £ if
AR 2 5% (LARZ = 35 1 ) 2 T B &
& (&7 M B & TR 98 SF(FR) RfE &
HONEE) - HHES H %Y B RRE
A A B S T 2 T A B KT o AR
& SFE(FR)RIA N Z i 5E -

AEBMERERAAMERERE
Ao ME R I — R - AL E
% 8 E A A DL B A B & A 1A
o B

BAAMEER

R E BRI E A AR RN

2022 2021
SRR TR A
HK$°000 HKS$’000
W T T T
Debts (Note i) B (B 5T 20,054 20,061
Equity (Note ii) HE 4w (B 5EiD) 128,546 132,947
Gearing ratio BAAMKILE 15.6% 15.1%
Notes: KEGE :
i Debt is defined as short-term borrowing, as detailed in Note 30. i fE 75 E 38 4 S B A5 A > RIS U 5T
30 °
ii Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the ii REA5 W HE AR 2 vl A N AL Y 228 8
Company. A e St i o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. &@TH

38.1 @b T H R

38.1 Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

B B

2022 2021
- SN X R4
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T T
Fair value through profit or L TAEE AR 7 (152
loss (FVTPL): AEEFA R
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL 98 il #e o fE(E R AR £
Cips
Held-for-trading FEEE 21,860 24,562
Loans and receivables: AR IEN A
Other assets HoAth & 574 230
Trade receivables R AT i 2K 80,097 93,487
Loans and interest receivables B Wi K K LS 14,192 15,663
Deposits and other receivables i 4 B oAt E MR IH
(included in financial assets) (FFA SR &E E) 15,573 13,406
Trust bank accounts fFRESRITHRF 34,668 32,498
Cash and cash equivalents BG4S EY 42,325 40,577
Investments: HE -
Financial assets at fair value through %/ fFo(EE 51 A HAth 2 1i
other comprehensive income Wi i 2 4 U 73 20
Financial liabilities B A E
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: X1 I A 717 2 2 /Al
AiE -
Financial liabilities included in trade &1 AME A+ Hi% 35 S At B £+ 3K
and other payables TH 2 4 il 2 0 57,543 55,040
Other borrowing H At 158 20,054 20,061
Lease liabilities HEAE 31,030 38,952
B < B A PR W]

TR R
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

294

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, other assets,
trade receivables, loans and interest receivables, deposits
and other receivables, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, trust bank accounts, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, other
borrowing and lease liabilities. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risks.

38.2.1 Market risk
Foreign currency risk management

Transactional currency exposures arise from revenue
or cost of sales by operating units in currencies other
than the unit’s functional currency. Substantially
all the Group’s revenue and cost of sales are
denominated in the functional currency of the
operating units making the revenue, and substantially
all the cost of sales are denominated in the operating
unit’s functional currency. Accordingly, the directors
consider that the Group is not exposed to significant
foreign currency risk. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. <&@ T H )

38.2 15 Uk A PR H BR & BUR (A7)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

38.2.1 Market risk (Continued) 382.1 1l B3 ) g (#E)
Interest rate risk management Tl 5 ) g B FE
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in A B2 8 T fifs T 4 ) R A
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s )y g B N Y

interest-bearing financial assets and financial
liabilities. The Group are exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rates bank
deposits and fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed rate loans receivables, fixed rate borrowing and
lease liabilities. The directors continue to monitor the
interest rate exposure of the Group.

All of the Group’s loans receivables are based on
fixed interest rates with original maturities of 12
months (2021: 12 to 24 months). The Group prices
these loans receivables strategically to reflect market
fluctuations and achieve a reasonable interest-rate
spread.

The fixed rate instruments of the Group are
insensitive to any change in market interest rates.

FTEERERELERA
B B - A 4 M T B A
Bl RMATHER B
it &= A 2R R B S A [
S M R E B R - e
FREERHEREZ
N S AE A ) R R B o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

296

(Continued)

38.2.1 Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Changes in market interest rates may affect the
Group’s securities margin financing business and
the Group mitigates this risk by revising the margin
financing rate as and when appropriate.

Interest rates on bank deposits are relatively low and
not expected to change significantly.

No sensitivity analysis is performed as management
does not anticipate significant impact on interest-
bearing financial assets resulted from the changes in
interest rates and considers the risk is insignificant to
the Group.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity and unlisted
equity securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles. In addition, the
Group has appointed a team to monitor the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. <&@ T H )

38.2 15 Uk A PR H BR & BUR (A7)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.1 Market risk (Continued) 382.1 1l B3 ) g (#E)

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period.

For equity securities with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 1, if equity prices had been
15% higher/lower (2021: 15% higher/lower):

U post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2022 would decrease/increase by HK$2,609,000
(2021: HK$2,862,000). This is mainly due to
the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
equity investments.

Sensitivity analysis for unquoted equity securities
with fair value measurement categorised within Level
3 were disclosed in Note 38.3.

382.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties are arising from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

298

(Continued)

3822 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables from non-financial services
business

For the credit sales of goods to customers, the Group
does not have significant concentration of credit risk
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Regular review and follow up actions are carried
out on overdue amounts to minimise the Group’s
exposure to credit risk. An aging analysis of the
debtors is prepared on a regular basis and is closely
monitored to minimise any credit risk associated with
these debtors.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2022

38. & TR

38.2 1A %5 R B A PR A S BUR (4E)

38.2.2 15 B il b £ PE R Wk A 7F

1 (#8)

HF & AR 5 S I AR

e
TA

[] % 5 At 2 A5 6 P A
SHETW - B F
FERZFZ—F1+A
=+t—H > AKEHEI K
EREFHEEREE - B
g 2l E 5 B BUR
e FF R A
JEU B o A AR A R 2
5 EE B > A SR HE
A of 78 3 O Ao R E I 4R
PR EIT B - AEHE
3 A 5 I A T 2 R
sr i o DA YD B AE AR
JE W i o Sl R
B 1 25 B SR TEL AT B Y
fHE R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. <&@ T H )

38.2 15 Uk A PR H BR & BUR (A7)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.2 f £ B B PR ik EL ¥

382.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables from non-financial services
business (Continued)

The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL model for trade receivables over 90 days and
set the default criterion as 365 days past due based
on good repayment records for those trade debtors
having a continuous business with the Group and
the historical payment patterns in Hong Kong. They
are assessed based on their probability of default
and exposure of default with reference to historical
debt collection experience, adjusted by current and
forward-looking factors.

No credit evaluations are performed for retail
customers that transact in cash, Octopus or via
major credit cards. The Group’s trade receivables in
connection with sales settled through delivery service
platforms are with high credit rating and no past
default history. Given that these assets are short-term
in nature and the probability of default is negligible
on the basis of high-credit rating issuers, the expected
credit loss rates were insignificant and close to zero
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, and
accordingly, no loss allowance was recognised in
respect of trade receivables.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

300

(Continued)

3822 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables from financial services business

In respect of trade receivables arising from financial
services business, the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of trading limits,
trading approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
outstanding balances. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of each of reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. Margin calls are made when
the outstanding balances due from clients exceed
their respective limits with consideration of the
quality, liquidity and price volatility of individual
stock, and the transaction history and credibility of
the clients. Failure to meet margin calls may result
in the prohibition of further purchase of securities or
liquidation of the client’s positions on a case-by-case
basis.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. <&@ T H )

38.2 15 Uk A PR H BR & BUR (A7)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.2 f £ B B PR ik EL ¥

382.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables from tinancial services business
(Continued)

Margin clients are required to pledge securities
collateral to the Group in order to obtain the margin
facilities for securities trading. At 31 December
2022, loans to margin clients are secured by
clients’ securities pledged as collateral with market
value of approximately HK$467,159,000 (2021:
HK$482,217,000). Management has assessed the
market values of the pledged securities of each
individual client who has margin shortfall at the end
of each reporting period. Based on the assessment,
the loss given default is low in view of the estimated
realised amount of ultimate disposal of the collateral
and the management considers the ECL for
receivables from margin clients is insignificant and
therefore no impairment allowance was recognised.
The margin loans are repayable on demand and
bear variable interest at commercial rates. No aged
analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the aged analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of securities
margin business.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

302

(Continued)

3822 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables from financial services business
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, receivables due from cash
clients at the end of the reporting period relate to
independent clients that have good track records with
the Group or are subsequently settled. When cash
clients fail to settle on the settlement date, the Group
has the right to sell the purchased securities of the
respective transaction. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary after taking into consideration the
recoverability from the purchased securities and past
collection history of each client adjusted by current
and forward-looking factors.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, no impairment loss of trade receivables was
recovered and reversed, and no credit losses was
recognised.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. <&@ T H )

38.2 15 Uk A PR H BR & BUR (A7)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.2 f £ B B PR ik EL ¥

382.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)
Loans and interest receivables

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans and interest receivables so as to
minimise credit risk. The granting of loans is subject
to approval by the credit committee, whilst overdue
balances are reviewed regularly for recoverability. As
at 31 December 2022, loans receivables are charging
on effective interest rates mutually agreed with the
contracting parties, ranging from 10% to 18% (2021:
9% to 18%) per annum.

At 31 December 2022, loans and interest
receivables of approximately HK$1,593,000 (2021:
approximately HK$1,810,000) were secured by a
property in Hong Kong.

Included in the Group’s loans and interest receivables
were loan to and interest receivables from a former
director amounting to approximately HK$Nil (2021:
HK$808,000). Further details are set out in Note 12B.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38, GRLTHG
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 W B 4 PR H AR S BUR (78)
(Continued)
3822 Credit risk management and impairment 382.2 fa B b B PE L Wik AH 7F
assessment (Continued) 1 (#8)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

Having assessed the loan receivables under the
ECL model, as at 31 December 2022, the directors
concluded that there had not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, except
for loan receivables from three customers have been
individually impaired by HK$2,314,000 (2021:
HK$357,000).

The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL model for loans and interest receivables over 90
days past due and set the default criterion as 365 days
past due based on good repayment records for those
loan borrowers having continuous business with
the Group. They are assessed individually based on
Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment and
their probability of default and exposure of default
with reference to historical credit loss experience,
adjusted by current and forward-looking factors.

Movements in the Group’s impairment loss
recognised of loans and interest receivables are as

FENG 3 TR B (#8)
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HEME2.314,00000( . F
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B XA B A
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follows: mF -

2022 2021

—B— —E A

HK$000 HK$°000

wH T T IC

Balance at beginning of the year  FH] 5 % 357 4,310
Impairment loss recognised L R ol (e 12 1,957 357
Written off s - (4,310)
Balance at end of the year R &S R 2,314 357
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. <&@ T H )

38.2 B R B A% B H BE B BUR (48)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
3822 Credit risk management and impairment 38.2.2 i B B £ PR K W 1F 7F
assessment (Continued) 1 (78)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, loans and
interest receivables of approximately HK$1,957,000
(2021: HK$357,000) were individually impaired.
The total amount of the provision was approximately
HK$2,314,000 (2021: HK$357,000). This was related
to three customers (2021: a customer) for whom the
directors are of the view that the collection of this
loans and interest receivables was not probable.

Other financial assets

For other receivables, trust bank accounts and cash
and cash equivalents, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model application of HKFRS
9 based on 12 month ECL.

The credit risk on deposits and other receivables is
limited because the counterparties have no historical
default record and the directors expect that the
general economic conditions will not significantly
changed for the 12 months after the reporting date.

The credit risk on trust bank accounts and cash
and cash equivalents are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

3822 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal

credit rating

PR A

Low risk
(9N
Watch list
B

Doubtful

TE5E
Loss

fER

Write-off

Hi

Description

W

The counterparty has a low risk of default and

does not have any past-due amounts

o F I EA BB - HAlf AT ]

TR

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but

usually settle after due
fEB NSRBI A%
MBRER

date

i, 4/,

fa K

R

There have been significant increases in

credit risk since initial recognition through

information developed internally or external

resources

HRAR R MR IR o R 4
1 e B A £ 5 5 S 1

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-

impaired

H RN B B OB R B

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is

in service financing difficulty and the Group

has no realistic prospect of recovery

s 2 AN INGUN. Eiiip L 3E

AR B Y4 B4

38. & TR

38.2 BA %R b

B E B R BUR ()

38.2.2 15 B il b £ PE R Wk A 7F
1 (#48)

oAt <2 i 7 (7))

A 45 W A B R B
AT AL B 48 LA BRI

Trade
receivables

HE iR

Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired

T BT Bk 1R -
AEE

Lifetime ECL — not credit-

impaired
F AT BkiR -
R ERE

Lifetime ECL — not credit-

impaired

THENTE MG Bl -
A B AR B(E
Lifetime ECL - credit-

impaired
T E Bl -
84 A

Amount is written off

HisH 1 Bl

Other

financial assets/
other items
Hib R R/
HAbIE A
12-month ECL

121 A B B 1
12-month ECL
12 A 0 5 B8

Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired

F AT Bk iR -
R EBE

Lifetime ECL —credit-
impaired

T B RE R -
B8R 5 B

Amount is written off

Hi s 1 Bl
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38, &R H ()
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 WU IR B 4 PR H AR S BUK (48)
(Continued)

382.2 Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)
The tables below detail the major credit risk

exposures of the Group’s financial assets, which are
subject to ECL assessment:

External Internal
credit credit 12-month or
Notes  rating rating lifetime ECL

121 F s 7
ek AhEBEEREAR AWERTS  HNERER

Financial assets at amortised cost

SR B i R S

Loans and interest receivables 26 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL

TEMC 530 B A B A {1905 12 A A BEGE e
Watch list 12-month ECL
BERAE 12 B
Loss Credit-impaired
it fE

Trust bank accounts 28 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL

faRLRITIRF A ivi0 1218 I B Bl 4

Cash and cash equivalents 28 AA+ N/A 12-month ECL

Be KB ESEY A 1218 F B Bl £

Deposits and other receivables 27 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL

e R REROR A {0 1218 F B Bl £

38.2.2 f £ B B PR ik EL ¥

1 (47
H At 2 il & ()
NEFRREHEBES

s 15 Al Y A 4 B <
Y T il ) E A

2021
i SaE =

(OO e T Gross carrying amount

M T 441 i A8

HK$'000 HK$'000 [sSSUUS: Y
RPN LSOl Tl BT

9441 14,681
4751 982
2314 16506 3716020

34,668 34,668 32,498 32,498

42,325 42,325 40,577 40,577

15,573 15,573 13,406 13,406
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &R T B4
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 W IR B A PR H AR S BUK (48)
(Continued)
3822 Credit risk management and impairment 38.2.2 15 B | i & PE B o {H 7T
assessment (Continued) 1 (#8)
Other financial assets (Continued) HoAh 2l &7 (48)
2021
e Seis
External Internal
credit credit 12-month or
Notes  rating rating lifetime ECL (OO v TNl Gross carrying amount
IVETES
WRE AMBEEES ABGERES NG RER I 42 i A (A
UGV | HK$'000  HK$'000
ERTT EWTr RSP e
Trade receivables 25 N/A (Note) Lifetime ECL 1,195 1,195 1,062 1,062
= Non-financial services business (provision matrix)
TEMURRR - 3 R IR 305 A (Hf3E) FEMEEEEER
(e e - -

Trade receivables 25 N/A Watch list Lifetime ECL 78,902 78,902 92,425 92,425

— Financial services business (not credit impaired)

RENSC AR — 4 AN S 2E 7 AE BEE FRIRNGEEER

(O 65 B WA

Note: For trade receivables, other than financial services business, fiek © B RE IR O = (R
the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 4 AR EH AL > A

9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except 42 18 B B A s B

for debtors with credit-impaired, the Group determines the i 4 v B 9 5E 114 5 5
expected credit losses on these items by using a provision T EH BN E A
matrix, grouped by past due status. s &2 kR B -

B LA A 0 Dol (2 M

WHR SN > AR 4R
T 38 171K R 7 AL Y 5%
A B % S E H
WA (S FL R
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. <&@ T H )

38.2 15 Uk A PR H BR & BUR (A7)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.2 f £ B B PR ik EL ¥

382.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers in relation
to provision of food and beverage, alcoholic beverage distribution
and miscellaneous, and provision of children education services,
because these customers consist of a large number of small
customers with common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired).

Gross carrying amount

1 (44)

H-Alh 35 Al B (A
Mgk ()

A5 oy 7% S T A5 A J g A B ) —
ARy o A RL AR F LS K
L[] Jo 5 R NS T
#% 56 JE\ B T I T S ORI A A
WA IR A I RE Sy - A
AH 7 A1 P D R S e R 6
PR S AORE - TR OB B
Fe e o DA PR B B A R
B eP il L 5 2 W - R AR
P A B a0 I A5 ks 1H AR
A5 8 A0 R A0 ) A B AR
HR AT 19 £ 80 R e 2 R (I 4
fE FWAE) ©

W i AR

2021

BT
Average Average Trade
loss rate  receivables loss rate receivables
F- 3 HH FEW Rk ISl TEcES JRE WS K
HK$’000 HK$°000
®H T T T
Current (not past due) B H (o 781 H79) 0% 1,195 0% 1,062

B R VAT LA
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

310

(Continued)

3822 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no impairment loss
of trade receivables (2021: reversal of impairment allowance of
approximately HK$346,000) is provided based on the provision
matrix.

38.2.3 Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2022

38. & TR

38.2 1A %5 R B A PR A S BUR (4E)

38.2.2 15 B il b £ PE R Wk A 7F

1 (#8)

HoAth <2 B (A
WiEE ()

il Tt S 15 38 T 2 MR T 1 4 30
(ORERER E 3+ FUE S
ARF Eh 2 22 A 55 g BRIV RT A5 B9
T P AR R R AR A P
5 o A B o A5 52 1 ol A B
A D LR AT B R MR AR
B B o

NBE T —F+ A=
— H IR R > MEAEAR R AR
ek 5 1412 TR S AR (B 3 A (%
T I (R A A
346,0007C) ©

38.2.3 In B & £ B £ P

EHEERENE E A
BB AL K
B e R AR A A
H R R E S KT E
EeBHTREL—F
iR N
HEAESE -

A 4R T Y O s E B B
ZBLR KRB E &
oK o FEOR LA R T 2
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &R TH#)
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 W IR B 4 PR H B S BUR ()

(Continued)

38.2.3 Liquidity risk management 38.2.3 Ui By & < B PR
The following table details, the maturity profile of the N R A A
Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting R LR A 4 o B B
period, based on the contractual undiscounted H2 & A&
payments. G e

Over 1year  Over 2 years Total
On demand but not but not contractual Total
Effective or less than more than more than  undiscounted carrying

interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amounts

HER AR BRVE  MARARNB
ERPHRE s HRER ERSER iERTE S Wi AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
wH T i AT T wh T R

At 31 December 2022 REBZA
FZAZ—H
Non-derivative FRTESHE

financial liabilities

Trade and other payables RE AR S AR it 508 NA
by i 57,543 = = 57,543 57,543
Other borrowing i 11% 2,019 - - 2,019 20,054
Lease liabilities HEA R 275% ~1.83% 19,132 10,43 3,691 32,866 31,030
98,694 10,043 3,691 112,428 108,627
_—— e e e —
At 31 December 2021 RERT—A
+ZAZt—H
Non-derivative FATE S A
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables RERTHRT S LA i 508 N/A
3.1l 55,040 - - 55,040 55,040
Other borrowing b 8% 21468 - - 21468 20,061
Lease liabilities HEARH 2.75% = 1.83% 27,045 11,618 2290 40,953 38,95

103,553 11,618 2,290 117,461 114,053

B ol B AT LA 7
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

312

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purpose. The directors
of the Company determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For instruments
with significant unobservable inputs under Level 3, the
Group engages independent qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The directors work closely with the
independent qualified valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Fair value hierarchy

38. & TR

38.3 & T H2 A REAR =

MBS BT > ARHEE
R 43 4 T H DL fo B (E R
B o A0 Rl E S R E R
A T B (R Al (5 il K
AfH e

A REAR 2 SUAB (IR > A4 B 2
] HE A AT B T S R o B
JRHE =R BA R
Bl AR TR > ARHEH
TR R S B A (ELRTAEE AT
{H o 75 =5 BB 57 5 AR Al (e T
T 1F LUBR 2 A (405 I
iy A (B BL B

B RAE e it 4 4 AL (A 2 2
i R i AL 2 A L

LB EE R

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Financial assets included in Level 1 R R THMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL TN B BRI AR f5 2 4l
& 20,833 22,851
Financial assets included in level 2 €505 —JGK 2 &l &
Financial assets at FVTOCI Fie N S B (E A oAt 4 i
i 4 Pl 73 20
Financial assets included in Level 3 — G155 = |82 & Ml &%
Financial assets at FVTPL TN FUE BRI AR 5 2 a2l
B 1,027 1,711
During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were BE_F__HF+-A=+—

transfers between Level 1 and 3.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

The details of movements in fair value measurements in
Level 3 are as follows:

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

38. & TR

383 &Rl THZ A RMEMEE 2 ()

A B (AR 2
ST

I ﬁ“dw

BZIFH ARG 7 2 B

2022 2021
TR U TR T AR
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
FVTPL FVTPL
4 A A B
Al AfHfEZ At A Z
41 il ¢ e 45l
HK$°000 HKS$’000
BT W T
At beginning of the year E@fﬁ%ﬂ 1,711 617
Change in fair value recognised in N E A TERR 2 fliﬁfﬁ“ﬁéﬂ
profit or loss (included in change (Fe A AMEEF AR
in fair value of financial assets at P& Z’Aﬁﬁﬁ%@)
FVTPL) (108) (537)
Transfer from Level 1 to Level 3 B 55— AR 250 =g AR
(Note (a)) (Bt 5 (a)) - 1,631
Transfer from Level 3 to Level 1 55 = A AL 2 5 — g AR
(Note (b)) Bﬁuj{(b)) (576) -
At end of the year AAER 1,027 1,711
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured MR-F__HER-FE A

at fair value as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

“AZ+t—H o AREE R

(EECFNVIWEE e m i

s o
=

B 2 < i B A R 24 )
TR R
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

314

(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

Note: (a) The transfer from Level 1 and Level 3 was due to the
suspension of share trading of equity securities, Beijing Gas
Blue Sky Holdings Limited (“BG Blue Sky”) (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock
code: 6828) and EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited (a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange with stock
code: 8101), since 18 January 2021 and 2 August 2021
respectively.

(b) The transfer from Level 3 to Level 1 was due to the
resumption of share trading of BG Blue Sky on 25 July 2022.

(c) The suspended/delisted shares are included in the equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfer into and transfer out of Level 3
as at the date of event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2022
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383 &Rl THZ A RMBEMEE = ()

B=EH AR T 7 2 B

(#H)

MEGE -

(a)

(b)

()

B —EREBES=
J& &% T3 ik oy Rl A =
T —F—H+/NHK
—EF-_—-%NH_H
o JERR SRR R K
A BRZS A (b 58 498 56
R — A W 28 B £
W EdZ AR Bt
9% © 6828) XEJE (Hong
Kong) Holdings Limited
(— [ A Bt 22 if GEM b
M2 AR B
8101) Z LA 7 7 W %
A B 5T o

o8 =R 25—
Jo& &% T3 i Ak B R SR
BER MR — % — =
LA = HIRIEE

=]

f=

ST AR T —
FE+-A=+—H %
TEE BRI 2 B R
AN B RIRA REER
ATE £ 4 i E 2 AR
W o ARLEE ZBUR R
RS R  #FaE
i o B A v R R A
S AR A S o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. & T H )

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

383 &Rl T HZ A RMEMEE 2 ()

(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the quoted market bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on

observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3.

There was no change in valuation techniques during the
year ended 31 December 2022. The directors believe
that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
techniques, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

B=EH AR T 7 2 B

(#H

RERTSRE &M TR
N AREET RS R Z
Sk BRI o e W] 2 5 K
SEWIR A 35 B - &8 - &
RO~ ATSELR I ~ RO s B
SR MRN > TR S R AE
W S B O R R AT 2 52
By o % R 2 i o AR
B Az e EE 2™
GrifE i E AR - %5
TREFENE G -

7 FE A G BT R B T
H (g s TR) 2 A o fE
(5 AG(E T WA E © W% 5%
il {8 75 3 3 1 o 1 P 2 T B
ST 5 BOE o T AR D RO
FrEEB M - MTAZA
FABE 5 < B A B R A B
B A ATBE > M T AR
B JERR -

ik — JH Bk 22 TH B R i A B
Ik DA T8 i 5 R s AR U
JA B TR A5 RS =g #k -

REE_F_—_HF+_A=+
— HIRAFBE > fh(E 75 83 A
B o EHEIAMETERHZ
fli 5t RAEE GEA LR G B85
ARVLR) AR B 2~ S B (EH 2 B)
(FEA &5 18 4 B JH Al 22 T Ui
R A B IR AR BR
HRIE A E

B ol B AT LA 7
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38. & TR

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

(Continued)

Below is a summary of relationship of unobservable
input(s) to fair value, significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of financial instruments together with a
quantitative analysis as at 31 December 2022:

Financial assets

Unlisted equity
securities -
approximately
HK$656,000
(2021: HK$715,000)

I AR 5 -
%*ﬂ%% 0007C
# 7 — ﬂ:
WH715,00000)

Valuation
technique

fii i 5 %
Market Approach

i

Relationship of
unobservable
input(s)

to fair value
B\ B o
SN LRI B R

Higher the change in
share price, higher
the fair value and
vice versa

MBS
R

Higher the discount
for lack of
marketability,

lower the fair value

and vice versa

RZ T2
BB -
N AR
RZ IR

Significant
unobservable
Input(s)
BEXATBE
LN ¢
Change in share
price of
comparable
companies
since delisted
of the share

E
ATHERFZ
e fE %

Discount for lack of
marketability

BT TR b
it

38.3 &l THZ A REMAE &)

B=JERA A At 2 2 B
(#H)

RE-F__HF+_A=1+—

ERRIVAGIE % 31N € TN

BEZ IR - S TEMAEZ

EkTT’&*ﬁJ’*)\%@%@@%
BN ZBMEWT

Range/  Sensitivity of fair value
amount  to the input(s)
BABIRA LB
W/ W 2EBE
0.27% 5% increase (decrease)
(2021: 0.68%) in share price of

comparable companies
would result in

increase (decrease)
in fair value of
approximately
HK$1,000 (2021:
HK$1,000)

A HC A R TR 8

(D) 5% & 55

A S (A I G
ﬁﬁi%*ﬁ 0007
(CFZ—f:
R 1,00070)

5% increase (decrease)
in the discount rate of
lack of marketability
would result in
(decrease) increase
in fair value of
approximately
HK$9,0002021:
HK$9,000)

Bz WA 2 B
iﬁﬁbn (D) 5% & H 5

YA E (A (B0 36
%”‘@ 0007
— 7 — /l:f
%”15‘9,00075

0.27%
i
0.68%)

20.6%
(2021: 20.6%)

20.6%
(-5
20.6%)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &R TH#)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 38.3 &k L HZ A fo AR ()
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements EZJER A R E M A= 2 B
(Continued) (%)
Below is a summary of relationship of unobservable W oEFEFET =1 —
input(s) to fair value, significant unobservable inputs to H o ASalBIE A SR B i
the valuation of financial instruments together with a EEZ R - &M TARMEZ
quantitative analysis as at 31 December 2022: (Continued) RS A B A i A\ B[R]

B BT - (8)

Relationship of
unobservable Significant
Valuation input(s) unobservable Range/  Sensitivity of fair value
Financial assets technique to fair value Input(s) amount  to the input(s)
AMBEEANE  EAATHE LN N
EMEE fii 7 8 HAREEZHE  WARE WE/ oW 2RBE
Unlisted listed Market Approach  Higher the changein  Change in share 027% 5% increase (decrease) in
equity securities - share price, higher price of comparable (2021: share price of comparable
approximately the fair value and companies since 12.89%) companies would result
HK$371,000 vice versa last trading date in increase (decrease)
(2021: suspended listed in fair value of
equity securities approximately HK$1,000
- approximately (2021: HK$2,000)
HK$420,000)
T LA & 2 iz RERBEK B B A U AR 021% AT HEYA R IER
- #8371,0007C AREEEE,  WHREBARAZERE CESE @)5eEEH
(CFZ—f R IR 2 1280%  AREEEDED)
BEEA EiRASSs ﬁﬁ#éi‘é‘looox
- #71#:%£420,000 70) (CFZ—F
#2.00070)

Higher the discount for Discount for lack of 20.6% 5% increase (decrease) in
lack of marketability (2021: the discount rate of
marketability, lower 20.6%) lack of marketability
the fair value and would result in (decrease)
vice versa increase in fair value of

approximately HK$5,000

(2021: HK$5,000)

wZigREt e sz 206% SRZAGRELHEE

BT Wi (CFZF BN 5% & EH
AREERE 206%  ARBEEED)HEN
R %%%smmc

R

ﬁ%SﬂOOJB

B ol B AT LA 7
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38, GRLTHG

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 38.3 kb L HZ A foH 6= ()
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FE=ZJER A A AR B
(Continued) (%)
Below is a summary of relationship of unobservable W_EZAHE+ A=+ —
input(s) to fair value, significant unobservable inputs to H > /N Al Biacim A SR LA
the valuation of financial instruments together with a EEZ IR - &M TARMEZ
quantitative analysis as at 31 December 2022: (Continued) RS A B A i A\ B[R]

BN ZBMBEWT - ()

Relationship of
unobservable Significant
Valuation input(s) unobservable Range/  Sensitivity of fair value
Financial assets technique to fair value Input(s) amount  to the input(s)
ATBEHANE EAATHE BABR A R
EREE fii 77 8 HAREEZHE  WABRE WE/ W ZHEE
2021: suspended listed Market Approach  Higher the changein - Change in share 2021 2021: 5% increase
equity listed equity share price, higher price of comparable 4.27% (decrease) in share price
securities - approximately the fair value and companies since last of comparable companies
HK$576,000 (Note) vice versa trading date would result in increase
(decrease) in fair value of
approximately HKS$1,000
"R CUREE O Tk TeEZBHK - e B 5 S H . SR
LA 2 - i NREERS Ttt?? N2 421%  EEMED) %0
576,000 () RZIK R fE5H) AR
#0007
Higher the discount for Discount for lack of 2021: 2021: 5% increase
lack of marketability 20.6% (decrease) in the
marketability, lower discount rate of lack of
the fair value and marketability would
vice versa result in (decrease)
increase in fair value of
approximately HK$7,000
BZIGREEL WSz IR TR ZERTEREG
REBLAE - iz 206% BN
B RS - ()% HHA R
RZIMA [ETE (D) S
#H7,0007C
Note: The suspended equity securities in 2021 was resumed share MisE : EEEERABHFR T
trading on 25 July 2022 and transferred from level 3 to level 1 “HEEAZ T HRERS
during the year ended 31 December 2022. WRBE—F_—4F+"H
= B SR = AR
LN
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. & T H )

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

383 &Rl T HZ A RMEMEE 2 ()

(Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are carried at other than fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement
made between the Group and HKSCC, the Group has a
legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC on the same
settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a net
basis. In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the trade receivable from and payables to cash
clients that are due to be settled on the same date and the
Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

#% 4 L [ H UL Sb it 4 2 <2 i
R B i L 2 2 AL A

AR S A SR AR m A
7% o A R 2 e
B B 2 R T (i BRUHC A — % —
—HERCFECFHZH=T
— H Z 2> o fE (e 3 48 B OK 2

i

\

s Y L L1 2 B

AR FT R A 3 A o
YUAT R A 22 PR OB h
Fir KR 2 < 1l e I 4l B

=53
= o

HRPEAS G ) S A 2 B3 2 AR
2 SR A A e A
BT 15 AT R R AT REA
DATEA A 465 5 B i 565 4
SRR R AT B R AT > TA
EE BRI F AR o I
b > ARG A 5 T R AT
REFITA (] F 45 8 B A B 465 KA
BRI B 45 0 5 A0 E1 0 R WSO R e
JEATHRR - T A% 2 B 45 1 A
2SI CRTE S
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. & THG)

383 &Rl THZ A RMEMAEE = ()

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

320

(Continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting <2 B A B i £ A ()
(Continued)
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts of
financial financial
assets assets
(liabilities)  (Liahilities) Related amounts
Gross setoff  presented not offset in the consolidated
amounts of in the in the statement of financial position
recognised consolidated ~consolidated BB G MR I
financial ~statement of  statement of itipaiil E
assets financial financial ~ Financial  Collateral
(liabilities) position position  instruments received  Net amount
IS E
RIER  RES R
B 4 sz RHEA
EHEE &Y+ 25z
(Af)z  mEE SHEE B3
A% (RBAE EREE SRR gL HH
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
WHTL  BMTx WWTx BWTx  B%Tx wWTx
2022 Y S
Financial assets EHEE
Trade receivables from clearing R A& AT RHEEF 2
house and cash clients FEUR 2,534 (1,481) 1,053 = 1,053
Financial liabilities EHERH
Trade payables to clearing house 455 R H &% F 2
and cash clients it (33,088) 1481 (31,607) - (31,607)
2021 B S
Financial assets SHMEE
Trade receivables from clearing KA EI KA EEF £
house and cash clients R 7459 (3,674) 3,785 - 3,785
Financial liabilities SRAR
Trade payables to clearing house [ 455 Fit kR &% F 2 e
and cash clients fHiRax (21.775) 3,674 (24,101) - (24,101)
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
Disposal of Amber Glory

On 14 January 2022, City Ally Holdings Limited (“City Ally”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
sale and purchase agreement with an individual (‘“Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to purchase, and City
Ally agreed to sell, (i) the Sale Share, representing the entire
issued share capital of Amber Glory, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands with limited liability; and (ii) the Sale Loan,
representing all the shareholder’s loan owning by the Amber
Glory, at an aggregate consideration of S$5,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$29,000). The Purchaser is a director of a
subsidiary of Amber Glory and a director of a joint venture of
the Group.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
14 January 2022.

39.

H 8 Fit )& 2w
H &R

WZFEZFE—H A > KA
2 6 [t B 4 F B I A BR A
(o)) B — 2 N+ ([’ J5 ) #T %
BE Wk o B B EBAK
ok [R] = b B GO B e > By AR
(— [A] 7 % Jogg e 2 B s A Sz 2
HRRA ) ETBEBITRA 5 K3i)
HFEER > AHIBERZ A BK
B BAE 55,0005 N3 T (1
B A5 29,00000) o B A I
— [ B J A ) 2 S R AR AR [ —
GEMEZES o

E— LR AN B A —F
“E-ATHEA R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FORM 40. @A B E AR 2 A IR

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NRFFIIAREE B BETEE EA
BEEHN - MEEHELEZA
B 27y il U o A 2 A O A AR

HLEZEAHERERI BN
B ECR AR B &=

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flow were, or future cash
flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

o

cash flows from financing activities.

Other Lease
borrowing liabilities Total
It £ £ HMEaR At
(Note 30) (Note 32)
(FE30) (W 3E32)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT R T BT
As at 1 January 2021 —4—H—H 10,016 03,024 73,040
Changes from financing cash flows: MER SR EEE)
Repayment of lease liabilities R EARE (30,729) (30,729)
Proceeds from other borrowing HAL G R P %’” 20,000 - 20,000
Repayment of other borrowing fE i HAb & (10,000) - (10,000)
Other changes: HAb5H) :
COVID-19-rent concessions received LR e iR 2 4 B
iR - (910) (910)
New leases entered ERIHHE - 12,371 12,371
Early termination of lease RRAEHE - (4,680) (4,680)
Exchange adjustments B 5, 4 ¢ - (124) (124)
Interest expenses FE B X 798 3,247 4,045
Interest paid AR (753) (3,247) (4,000)
At 31 December 2021 and R-F -+ A=+~
1 January 2022 HE-Z - _"F—H—H 20,061 38,952 59,013
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREEE
Repayment of lease liabilities fEREMEARE - (25,369) (25,369)
Other changes: Hofth 55 -
COVID-19-rent concessions received L ICHT R et R o A B L 2
g - (1,904) (1,904)
New leases entered el HHE = 23,295 23,295
Early termination of lease RERLEHE = (3,496) (3,496)
Disposal of a subsidiary group 5 b 5 - (450) 450)
Exchange adjustments i 5, 4 ¢ - 2 2
Interest expenses FE B 1,665 2,013 3,678
Interest paid AR (1,672) (2,013) (3,685)
At 31 December 2022 A S—
+ZA=+—H 20,054 31,030 51,084

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 f# # —F — — 41 = H =—+—H ILF ¥

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BB RS

I %2 5 A A B 9
FE 41 » 7S L A 47 1 L A
T2EHWT -

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the year: T+

(@) Transactions with related parties

2022 2021
—E R
Related party Nature of transaction HK$°000 HK$’000
I W8k ot E BT T T
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul Commission income from (1) - 33
(Director) securities dealing
RO (E ) #rEEZMERA
Interest income from (ii) - 20
securities dealing
BHEZFERA
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Director) Commission income from (1) 1 56
securities dealing
RIS () HRHEZMERA
Interest income from (i) - -
securities dealing
A2 HE AR
Mr. Lam Chun Kei (note (iii)) Loan interest income - 22
Ml 58 A (B ¥ (i) BRI
Mr. Ng Ting Kit (Shareholder) and Commission income from () 3 51
his close family members securities dealing
RIEBE S (B S HHREEZMERA
Interest income from (i) - 18

securities dealing

HHZAE KA

B ol B AT LA 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 41. BT 2 5 (48)
(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (a) BB RS (%)
2022 2021
S TR T
Related party Nature of transaction Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
LY ot E B &1 W T T T
Companies controlled by Commission income from () 136
Mr. Ng Ting Kit (Shareholder) and securities dealing
his close family member
RIEGESEA (R BT [ei3=y PALEAON
g I Pa/NE
Interest income from (i) 5 58
securities dealing
B EE 2 BIRA
Mr. Chan Chi Fung (Director) and Commission income from (i) 87 53
his close family members securities dealing
RS B s (B o) A e G PAIEA TN

Interest income from
securities dealing

W5 B H A B

(i) - 18

Notes:

@) The commission income from securities dealing was calculated at
rates ranged from 0.03% to 0.05%.

(i)  The interest income from securities dealing was based on the rates
which substantially in line with those normally received by the
Group from third parties.

(iii)  Mr Lam Chun Kei was the director of the Group and resigned on 1
September 2021.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
3 2 4 Annual Report 2022

i HBHEHEHEZMERALR T
0.03%ZE0.05% 2 H HK51E -

(i) WX EHEZFLE WA TIRER
ﬁ(ﬁ A4 [ 1) £ = 77 — Al
B 2 A4 E o

(i) MEBIIGE B AEFAIES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 41.

(b)

Outstanding balances with related parties

Included in the trade receivables and payables arising from

the ordinary course of business of the financial services

business are amounts due from/(to) certain related parties,

the details of which are as follows:

IR Wik U5 52 % ()

S B 0B ' 2 AR i A 4 B

FEATA 4 IR B 2605 B — M
PSR v AR 2 IR ISR B

FHAREK -

RN (A % T

BRI T < SKIE > REIEUIR

2022 2021
- SN X R4

Related party Nature of account HK$’000 HK$°000
oA Y5 75 F BT S W
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul (Director) Cash account (18) (18)
SRR A (EH) BeFn

Margin account (61) (D)

REEEF O
Mr. Lam Chun Kei (note (1)) Cash account - (D)
AR BS54 (B EEG)) BeEFA

Loan and interest receivable - 808

JRE S 3 % IR
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Director) Cash account 45) (13)
SRR e (E ) HEeEFn

Margin account 37 37

fRaEE P 0
Mr. Ng Ting Kit (Shareholder) and Cash account (255) (122)

his close family members

SIS A () B oAl HEeEFn

Margin account 7 (6)

fRaEE P 0

B 2 < Tl 4 A PR T

TR R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fk 1 A 5 H  WE aE (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 41. PRI 2R 5 (74)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued) (b) BB 2 K& &% (4E)
2022 2021
TR —E T —F
Related party Nature of account HK$°000 HK$’000
A Wi 75 POy #W T T
Companies controlled by Cash account (131) (127)
Mr. Ng Ting Kit (Shareholder) and
his close family members
S IR e AR (R B Al BaEFn
PEfhil 2 A ]
Margin account 7) 77)
e 0
Mr. Chan Chi Fung (Director) and Cash account (131) (363)
his close family members
R 8 o AR () SO BaEFn
Margin account 12) (12)
R F 0
Note: M5
(1) Mr Lam Chun Kei was the director of the Group and resigned on 1 (1) VoS e N S
September 2021. ERZEFEZ—FIJLH —HE
1T -
The outstanding balances of cash accounts above represent RERER - FPIBEF O
the net balance of trading accounts at the end of the KREATHE RIS HIRE 2 58k
reporting period. #H o
(¢) Compensation of key management personnel (¢ FEBFHBALZHE
The remuneration of key management during the year was AAERE > FEEHE 2 B
as follows: o
2022 2021
JS- ~ Y —E T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
BT T T
Salaries, allowances and benefit e N NE W AER 4,647 3,793
in kind
Contributions to retirement benefit AR RAE A FE AR 59 57
schemes
Equity-settled share option expense DA JBEHE %5 5 1 A B B =2 223 -
Discretionary bonus LR AN 247 161
5,176 4,011

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

I 23 (4
&5 o A 0 e % B R (7))
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥
42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  42. A% &) Bk It 26 J% 5k i 52 B
COMPANY AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

7% 2 W) B 551K Ui e

Statement of financial position of the Company

2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000
T BT
Non-current asset I B A e
Investments in subsidiaries N ag NI E R § <y 1,557 1,557
Current assets B
Deposits, prepayments and Fer ~ TEATEOHE B A e
other receivables A 544 586
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WAL o g 2 ) K TR 129,129 114,419
Cash and cash equivalents e NS S EY 6,409 21,693
136,082 136,698
Current liabilities ik =K
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST o g 2 ) K TE 60,659 59,889
Other payables and accruals JH At B A SR I I A 2 1,582 1,504
62,241 61,393
Net current assets T E A 73,841 75,305
Net assets & R 75,398 76,862
Capital and reserves AR ik 1
Share capital A 7,529 6,121
Reserves fiti Hi 67,869 70,741
Total equity HE 5 SR 75,398 76,862

ARFRZMBRRERD IR —F =
FE=H A DY H RS i AR
RETIEE > 3 F 21 3E S AUREE

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director Director
#HHF #HH
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul Mr. Ng Ting Ho
Rkt REW L

B ol B AT LA 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fa 0 WW B5 Hie  B (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — & — —4F 1= H =+—H ILFF ¥

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. A W) AR O 2 B il s S5 B (7))
COMPANY AND RESERVE MOVEMENT (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserve A2 ) il 1 52 B)

Share
Share  Contributed Capital options Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total

Revi® — SARER  RARE BRERE  RHER it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T WM W EWTx #WTx #RTx

Balance at | January 2021 R-FZ—F—-H—-HZ
s 160,109 153,351 71317 824 (377,761) 14,040

Profit and total comprehensive 74 I A1 & 2 T i

income for the year Fo ] - - - - 17,295 17,295
[ssue of rights shares BEATALIR I O 41,318 - - - - 41,318
Transaction cost related to issue 1711k it A 5 B 49

of rights shares EH AR (1,748) - - - (1,748)
Lapse of share options TERCHE AL - - - (824) 660 (164)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R -F_—#+_H

ES P4 199,679 153,351 71317 - (359,806) 70,741
Loss and total comprehensive A4 [ i 18 R 2 1 5 i

expense for the year A - - - - (16,098) (16,098)
Recognition of equity settled  FERR A A& M 3

share-based payments - - - 550 - 550
Tssue of shares upon exercise of 17 MR FE 4% 3 17 it

share options 2,310 - - (850 - 1,760
Issue of placing shares BRERR 11,294 - - - - 11,294
Transaction cost related to issue  SLE1T M (0 A9 26 53

of shares A (378) - - - = (378)

Balance at 31 December 2022~ %~ "4
A=+ B2 212,905 153,551 71317 (375,904) 67,369

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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43.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A 3 U 55 Hie 3 B E (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY AND RESERVE MOVEMENT (Continued)

Contingent liabilities

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company has issued a
corporate guarantee in respect of other borrowing made by an
independent third party to a subsidiary. The fair value of the
guarantee has not been provided for in the Company’s financial
statements as the directors of the Company consider the amount
involved to be insignificant.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a) The fair value of listed equity securities are determined
based on the quoted market closing price available on the
Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange at the end of
the reporting period.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the realised gains and unrealised losses on
financial assets at FVTPL from changes in fair value
on financial assets at FVTPL held as at 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately HK$636,000 and
HK$5,984,000 respectively

42,

43.

7% 2 ) B 5 51K Dt e B fk i 52 h (7))

s £ 1

BEFT - "FR-F_—F+2
H=+—H  Aort— 2B
=7 T — ] A B 2 R4 0 A £
B AFRER - HRARFIESR
R DR 7 % AN NI & e
AN ) 4 B B R w R R A PR Y
ARMEE -

e o 1% B

(a) ETTBEARES:Z N ARMEE TR
i 5 1 R 2 i Bk 32 B 3 R
GEM Jif 545 2 iy i i 85 die i

R E

RZSE AR A B I R
HI > R=F 4+ A=
+— B 2 %A AR EEFA
His 2z S REE N EEEE)
BN REEF AR Z &
Pl S B A B o B B s
553 7l 2 %0 #5 636,000 7T K
W5 155,984,0007C °

B ol B AT LA 7
-y 329



Five-year Financial Summary

e 4 T 5 N R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # £ — &~ — 41 = H =+—H ILF ¥

1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 1.1.2019 1.1.2018
to to to to to
31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
“RTTE e S e < e Sy “E-NE
—H—H% *H H# *H H§ —A—HZz S
+ZA=Z+—H J@H:Jr H +4H:+ H +ZA=Z+—H +ZHA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T T T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(& E) (K5 (K= 51) (B )
Results E
Revenue KA
Continuing operations REERREN 141,903 164,764 127,719 94,597 36,455
Discontinued operation ~ CLA% [E &84 5 - 12,721 10,528 17,547 36,968
141,903 177,485 138,247 112,144 73,423
Loss from operations REEK 2 ER
Continuing operations PR BT (16,345) (6,818) (9,404) (43,263) (35,524)
Discontinued operation B4R A ST (178) (2,469) (319) (12,489) (5,104)
(16,523) (9,287) (9,723) (55,752) (40,628)
Finance costs A LA
Continuing operations PR EER (3,681) (3.918) (3,665) (1,977) (38)
Discontinued operation AR RE R ~ (132) (131) (49) -
(3,681) (4,050) (3,796) (2,026) (38)
Gain/(loss) on BALEATIIRN S
deconsolidation of NGV E- Y
subsidiaries (54)
Continuing operations FHER AR - - - - (308)
Discontinued operation AR RE SR 1,306 - (2,400) - -
1,306 - (2,400) - (308)
Assets impairments BEW(E
Continuing operations FHER S T = (7,171) (11,849) (42,735) -
Discontinued operation RESIRE-E 7 = - - (4,868) -
- (7,171) (11,849) (47,603) -
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Five-year Financial Summary (Continued)

h 4 T 5 4 R (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —F — —4F = H = —H ILF ¥

1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 1.1.2019 1.1.2018
to to to to to
31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
“FCC B S2 i e <02 e Sayik:d “E N\
—H—HZ —H—HZ —H—HZ —A—HZE s
“RICE e S “EIEE “E— A “F—N\E
A ER il = —H A=t —H A=A A= H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
i BT BT T T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(RE5) (BE7) (K5 (K5
(Loss)/profit before tax BRI (B HR) /i A
Continuing FHRRUE ST
operations (20,026) (17.907) (24918) (87975) (35.870)
Discontinued B4R A TS
operation 1,128 (2,601) (2,850 (17,406) (5,104)
(18,898) (20,508) (27,768) (105,381) (40,974)
Income tax expense P Bt B 3
Continuing FEREER
operations (69) (485) (757) (132) (320)
Discontinued RESIR - E
operation - - - - -
9) (485) (757) (132) (320)
(Loss)/profit for the year 4% (548 /1 A1
Continuing FHER BT
operations (20,095) (18,392) (25,675) (88,107) (36,190)
Discontinued BRI BEER
operation 1,128 2.601) (2850) (17.406) (5.104)
(18.967) (20993) (28525) (105.513) (41.294)
B B INT
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Five-year Financial Summary (Continued)

e 4F 0 55 4 22 (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — % — — 4= H =1 —H IF ¥

1.1.2022 1.1.2021 1.1.2020 1.1.2019 1.1.2018
to to to to to
31.12.2022 31.12.2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
“EROOE B a2 “FEE “FNE ~F— N\
—H—H% —H—H=% —H—Hz —A—HZz S
“EROTE “EF “ECXE “E-0E ZE N
e ES il | f = —H t-A=t—H tZA=t—H A=A
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&= 51) (K5 () (K5
(Loss)/profit attributable to: 51 A L FE{f;
(548 /Wi A -
Owners of the /N 2SN
Company
Continuing FEREER
operations (19,972) (17,957) (25,647) (88,084) (36,412)
Discontinued B4R ST
operation 1,128 (2,601) (2,8006) (16,127) (4,130)
(18,844) (20,558) (28,453) (104,211) (40,542)
Non-controlling FEE MR 42
interests
Continuing FHERA R
operations (123) (435) (28) (23) 222
Discontinued EA RS ET
operation - - (44) (1,279) (974)
(123) (435) (72) (1,302) (752)
31.12.2022 31 12 2021 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
i S B SacS <o K i S
s il I = +—H tZA=1+—H +ZA=+—H +ZH=1—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T T T T
ASSETS AND B R A
LIABILITIES
Total assets BEE 248,381 256,547 243,024 207,226 284,556
Total liabilities MEME (119,010) (122,652) (132,875) (68,687) (38,059)
129,371 133,895 110,149 138,539 246,497
Equity attributable to THI AT R £
Owners of the /NTE 2PN
Company 128,546 132,947 108,766 136,726 243,416
Non-controlling e i £
interests 825 948 1,383 1,813 3,081
129,371 133,895 110,149 138,539 246,497
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